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In addition to historical information, this annuaéport on Form 10-K contains forwaddoking statements within the meaning
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and @e@1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.s@ leatements include, among o
things, our expectations regarding the anticipatetpact of our new products and product enhancemeamtkiding Invisalign G5 ar
ClinCheck Pro will have on doctor utilization andiromarket share, our expectations regarding prodmix and product adoption, ¢
expectations regarding the existence and impaateafonality, our expectations regarding the finahaind strategic benefits of our iTe
scanner, our expectations regarding the continuggdaasion of our international markets the levelooir operating expenses and gr
margins, and other factors beyond our control, adlas other statements regarding our future opiera, financial condition and prospe
and business strategies. These statements magirtordrds such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “inters’ “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” or
other words indicating future results. These famvBbboking statements are subject to certain risks andertainties that could cause act
results to differ materially from those reflectedthe forwardlooking statements. Factors that could cause ortridoute to such differenc
include, but are not limited to, those discussedtém 2 “Managemens$ Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiondaResults «
Operations”, and in particular, the risks discusskeelow in Part I, ltem 1A “Risk Factors”"We undertake no obligation to revise or upt
these forward-looking statements. Given thesesrahd uncertainties, readers are cautioned not It undue reliance on such forward-
looking statements.

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our Company

Align Technology, Inc (“We”, “Our”, “Align”) desigs, manufactures and markets a system of clearaaligperapy, intraral scanne
and CAD/CAM (computer-aided design and compuateied manufacturing) digital services used in dnti orthodontics, and dental recc
storage. Align Technology was founded in March 138W incorporated in Delaware in April 1997. Ourathguarters are located
2560 Orchard Parkway, San Jose, California 9513thd aur telephone number is 408-4¥000. Our internet address
www.aligntech.com. Our international headquarteesi@cated in Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

We have two operating segments: (1) Clear Aligkeown as the Invisalign System; and (2) ScanneaidsSamvices ("Scanner"), known
the iTero intraeral scanner and OrthoCAD services and formerlgrrefl to as our Scanners and CAD/CAM Services seg(h8CCS"). Fc
the year ended December 31, 20XTlear Aligner revenues represent approximatelp@4ent of worldwide revenue, while Scanners 1sgm
the remaining 6 percent of worldwide revenues. Waridute the vast majority of our products dirgcthb our customers: orthodontists
general practitioner dentists ("GPs"), as wellcasestorative dentists, including prosthodontigésjodontists, and oral surgeons.

We received 510(k) clearance from the United Statesd and Drug Administration (“FDA™o market the Invisalign System in 19
The Invisalign System is regulated by the FDA a€lass Il medical device. In order to provide Inligi treatment to their patien
orthodontists and GPs must initially complete avidalign training course. The Invisalign Systenpignarily sold through a direct sales fa
in the United States ("U.S."), Canada, Europe, @rthin Asia Pacific countries including Australdew Zealand, China and Japan. We
distributor model for the sale of our products onftore country markets in the Asia Pacific, Européddie East and Africa ("EMEA"), at
Latin America regions.

We acquired the iTero digital intaral scanner and CAD/CAM services business, ounis@asegment, in April 2011. Our iTero scat
is used by dental professionals and/or labs andcesrfor restorative and orthodontic digital prdeees as well as Invisalign digital impres:
submission. We received 501(k) clearance from DA o market iTero software for expanded indicasion 2013. Scanners and CAD/C;
Services are primarily sold through our direct sdlerce in North America and in select internatiomarkets primarily through distributi
partners.

Clear Aligner Segment
Malocclusion and Traditional Orthodontic Treatment

Malocclusion, or the misalignment of teeth, is aighe most prevalent clinical dental conditioneceting nearly a billion people,
approximately 50% to 75% of the population of majmveloped countries. Approximately 6.8 million pkpannually elect treatment
orthodontists worldwide, of which approximately 2nllion have mild to moderate malocclusion and apgplicable to Invisalign treatment -
our served market.




In the U.S., orthodontists and GPs treat malocotugirimarily with metal arch wires and bracketdened to as braces, and augn
braces with elastics, metal bands, headgear am atitillary devices as needed. Available optiarsrhproving treatment aesthetics incl
the use of ceramic, tooth-colored brackets or bmpdirackets on the inside, or lingual surface,hef patient$ teeth. The average treatm
takes approximately 12 to 24 months to completeragdires several hours of direct dental profesdiorvolvement, known in the industry
“chair time,” including the initial diagnosis, ct@@n of an appropriate treatment plan and bondihthe brackets to the patiestteeth, an
attachment of arch wires to the brackets. Subseqtsits involve tightening or otherwise adjustitige braces approximately every six we
until the final visit when the dental professionamoves each bracket and residual bonding agemt tihe patiens teeth. Upon completion
the treatment, the dental professional may, abhiger discretion, have the patient use a retainer.

The Invisalign System

The Invisalign System is a proprietary method feating malocclusion based on a series of dgmescribed, custom manufactul
clear plastic removable orthodontic aligners. Theidalign System offers a range of treatment ogti@pecialized services, and proprie
software for treatment visualization and is congtisf the following phases:

Orthodontic diagnosis and transmission of treatnaate to us The dental professional prepares and sendspasients treatment da
package which consists of a prescription form, B\poyl-siloxane, (or "PVS") impression of the relevant démrches, photographs of
patient and, at the dental professional’s electiergys of the patient’s dentition. The dental pssional can also submit an intwl scan ¢
“digital impression”instead of a physical PVS impression through eiifiero or 3M True Definition, currently the onlyhar Invisalig
qualified intra-oral scanner.

Preparation of 3D computer models of the patiemtifial malocclusion. Upon receipt, we use the treatment data pactagenstruc
digital models of the patierst’dentition. In cases where a PVS impression has babmitted, we use computed tomography, know@ T
scanning to develop a digital, three-dimensionahgoter model of the patiest’'current dentition. In cases where the dentalepsione
submits a digital impression, this step in the pescis eliminated.

Preparation of computer-simulated treatment andving of treatment using ClinCheck softwand/e transform this initial digital moc
into a proposed custom, thrdamensional treatment plan, called a ClinChecktineat plan. The ClinCheck plan simulates appropriabtt
movement broken down into a series of tweek increments, and details timing and placeméming attachments that will be used du
treatment. Attachments are tooth-colored “buttamhsit are sometimes used to increase the biomeaidnice on a specific tooth or teett
order to effect the desired movement. The pase@tinCheck treatment plan is then made availabléné prescribing dental professional
the Invisalign Doctor Site which enables the deptafessional to project tooth movement with a lefeaccuracy not previously possible v
metal arch wires and brackets. By reviewing andratimg the treatment simulation, the dental professii retains control over the treatrr
plan. ClinCheck Pro is the next generation Invigalireatment software tool, designed to provideenmecise control over final tooth posit
and to help Invisalign providers achieve their tmeant goals. This latest software innovation feaduinteractive 3D controls that, for the 1
time, allow Invisalign providers to make adjustneetd the position of individual teeth directly dret3D model and to visualize the effect:
the whole dentition in real time.

Construction of molds corresponding to each steprezitment Upon the dental professionalapproval of the ClinCheck treatment p
we use the data underlying the simulation, in cociion with stereolithography technology, to counstra series of molds depicting the fu
position of the patient’s teeth. Each mold is dicapof the patient’s teeth at each two-week stafghe simulated course of treatment.

Manufacture of aligners and shipment to the deptafessional From these molds, aligners are fabricated byspiresorming polymeris
sheets over each mold. Aligners are thin, cleastiglaremovable dental appliances that are cust@mufactured in a series to correspon
each two-week stage of the ClinCheck animationgidis are generally worn for consecutive tmeek periods which correspond to
approved ClinCheck treatment plan. After two weeksuse, the patient replaces them with the next ipathe series, advancing to
movement with each aligner stage. Throughout treatnthe doctor may place attachments or use @thetiaries to achieve desired to
movements, per the doctor’s original prescriptiad eesulting ClinCheck treatment plan.

Retention. Upon completion of the treatment, the patienyrha prescribed our single clear retainer producbwr Vivera Retaine
product.




Scanners and Services Segment

Although advancements have been made in matesald for taking dental impressions since their ohidion one hundred years &
the overall impression process has remained relgtivnchanged. Shortcomings such as voids, putlld,the general margin for error h
remained inherent in conventional impressions, suttbequent retakes create unnecessary costs linical@ractice. Intrasral scanning is ¢
emerging technology that we believe will have sabsal impact on the future of dentistry. By enaglihe dental practitioner to create a
image of the patient’'s teeth using a handheld Hoted scanner inside the mouth, inteal scanning is more efficient and precise ande
comfortable for patients, compared to the messodifort, and subjective nature of taking physicapiessions. The digital model created
an intra-oral scanner is more accurate than a phlyBhpression and substantially reduces the ratesioration “remakes$o patients a
recalled less often and the appointment time ferréstoration is shorter because of fewer adjugsnerhich results in greater overall pat
satisfaction.

As the only intra-oral scanner in the market basadoarallel confocal imaging, the iTero intveal scanner utilizes laser and opt
scanning to capture the contours of the patsetntition, gingival structures and the bite. deaptures 100,000 points of laser light in pe
focus without the use of powder to coat the teaflbwing for contact of the wand and tooth. Thedd#rof contact scanning for the cliniciar
that it eliminates the challenge of hovering over teeth at a specific distance which can be caaegld. For the patient, they enjoy a n
comfortable powder free experience which allows dhieician to provide a very comfortable patiennt& experience. Within minutes,
accurate 3D digital impression can be viewed orstireen. The 3D digital model file can be usedvBoious procedures and services inclu
fabrication of physical dental models for use blgsldo create restorative units such as veneemysnbnlays, crowns, bridges and imp
abutments; Invisalign digital impression submissitigital records storage; orthodontic diagnosigj arthodontic retainers and appliances.

The iTero intra-oral scanner consists of a moldl@puter unit, display screen, control foot pedal erand to scan and capture a patient
dentition (full or partial dental arch). iTero seéire features include occlusal map, eraser toge &dm tool, realime modeling and an opti
to submit scans for Invisalign treatment. iTeroides doctors and labs with an open choice to éxgeneric digital files of their digit
impression to use with other third party dental/ger providers. This allows the digital impresstonintegrate with cone beam CT images
implant and orthodontic treatment planning. In-@dfiraining on the system and features is provadest the unit is delivered to the practice.

Our Products and Services

Our net revenues are generated from the sale dbllbgving product offerings:

Fiscal Year
Percentage of Net Revenues by Product 2014 2013 2012
Invisalign Full Products 77% 75% 78%
Invisalign Express Products 11 11 9
Invisalign Non-case* 6 7 5
Scanners and Services 6 7 8
Total net revenues 100% 10C% 10C%

* Non-case net revenues include retainers, trgindvenues, and ancillary offerings under our Chdagner product lines
Clear Aligner Products

Invisalign Full . Used for a wide range of malocclusion, the InigsaFull treatment consists of the number of adignnecessary
achieve the doctog’'treatment goals. Invisalign Full treatment aligrere manufactured and then delivered to the Hprdgessionals in a sing
shipment. Invisalign Full is sold in the U.S., @da, and our international regions. The Invisakgti product is included in "Invisalign Fi
Products."

Invisalign TeenThe Invisalign Teen treatment includes all the dezg of Invisalign Full treatment, plus additiofedtures that addre
the orthodontic needs of teenage patients suclo@gl@mnce indicators, compensation for tooth eauptind six free single arch replacen
aligners. This product is predominantly marketedtihodontists who treat the vast majority of malasion in teenage patients. Invisa
Teen treatment aligners (other than the replacealgmters) are manufactured and
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then delivered to the dental professionals in glsishipment. Invisalign Teen is sold in the UGanada, and our international regions.
Invisalign Teen product is included in "Invisali§nll Products".

Invisalign AssistlUsed for anterior alignment and aestheticalfiented cases, the Invisalign Assist treatmergrefadded support to (
dental practitioners throughout the treatment psscencluding progress tracking that allows thetaleprofessional to submit new impressi
every nine stages. When the progress tracking rieduselected, aligners are shipped to the dentdéssional after every nine stages the
helping to achieve successful treatment outcomesddfinantly marketed to GPs, Invisalign Assistnignded to make it easier to se
appropriate cases for their experience level aattnent approach, submit cases more efficiently magage appointments with sugge
tasks. Invisalign Assist is sold in the U.S. anch&#a. The Invisalign Assist product is includedinvisalign Full Products".

Invisalign Express (10 and 5) and Invisalign Lifelnvisalign Express treatment, Invisalign Lite traaht and Invisalign i7 treatment
lower-cost solutions for less complex orthodontases, norcomprehensive treatment relapse cases, or straigbterior to restorative
cosmetic treatments such as veneers. InvisaligneSgpl0 and Invisalign Express 5, which are sottiénU.S. and Canada, uses up to 10 ¢
sets of aligners, respectively. Invisalign Lite almbisalign i7, sold in our international regionsses up to 14 and 7 sets of aligr
respectively. For Invisalign Express/Lite/i7, akga are manufactured and then delivered to theatlprtfessionals in a single shipment.
Invisalign Express (10 and 5) products and Invigaliite /i7 products are included in "Invisalignfgss Products".

Retention. We offer two products for post treatment retemti®he first is a single set of custom clear aligretainers. The seconc
offered as a set of four custom clear alignersedallivera Retainers made with proprietary matesiedng enough to maintain tooth posi
and correct minor relapse if necessary. Each sétvafra Retainers is intended to be used for tlomesecutive months and deliver one yei
retention. Doctors can prescribe Vivera RetainerdHeir Invisalign and their non-Invisalign patien

Invisalign non-case revenuegnvisalign nonease revenues represent retainer products discabsed, Invisalign training fees and s.
of ancillary products, such as cleaning material atjusting tools used by dental professionalsndpitie course of treatment.

Feature Enhancementg/e have consistently introduced enhanced featuness the Invisalign System over the past severatsy suc
as Invisalign G3 (launched in October 2010), InNggaG4 (launched in November 2011), and Invisaligf (launched in February 2014). M
recently, in November 2014, we announced the upecgmelease of Invisalign G6 clinical innovationg forst premolar extraction. The
feature enhancements are a collection of clinibabvations designed to address some of the mosifisant treatment challenges doct
encounter.

Invisalign G5 is our first set of innovations deweg specifically as an integrated solution to echareatment predictability for deep b
a specific type of malocclusion. Invisalign G5 fgatenhancements include:

» Precision Cuts, which are custom mesial and distaks used to provide anchorage for elastics amiwrbeutouts to accommod:
buttons bonded to the tooth aimed to help treaéptstwith Class Il and Class Il malocclusion; and

* SmartForce features engineered to achieve morecpabte tooth movements using custom optimizedchtteents and Power Ridc
designed to provide additional force in cases wher&in types of root movement are prescribed.

» Precision aligner bite ramps designed to disoccthdgosterior teeth for improved efficiency in pdxte treatment

Invisalign G6 is engineered to improve clinical @anmes for orthodontic treatment of severe crowdang bimaxillary protrusio
Invisalign G6 clinical innovations will be availalto Invisaligntrained providers beginning in the first quarter 215 with limitec
commercialization, followed by full commercializati in Asia Pacific, Europe, Middle East and Afriand Latin America geograph
throughout 2015 and North America in early 201&idalign G6 feature enhancements include:

» New SmartStage programmed tooth movements thamizgtithe progression of tooth movements and prowiégner activatior
engineered to eliminate unwanted tipping and unadanterior extrusion during retraction.

* New SmartForce features that are designed to delineforce systems necessary to achieve predictabth movements. These r
features include Optimized Retraction Attachmentssigned to work with SmartStage technology foeafe bodily moveme
during canine retraction, with or without elasties\d new Optimized Anchorage Attachments, desigonediork with SmartSta¢
technology to maximize posterior anchorage.




SmartTrack™ Aligner Material. SmartTrack, the next generation of Invisalign cleligner material is a proprietary, cust@mgineere
material that delivers gentle, more constant faroesidered ideal for orthodontic tooth movementny@ntional aligner materials relax i
lose a substantial percent of energy in the indats of aligner wear, but SmartTrack maintainsex@mmstant force over the two weeks tt
patient wears the aligners. The flexible SmartTnaelkterial also more precisely conforms to toothphotogy, attachments, and interproxi
spaces to improve control of tooth movement througlireatment. SmartTrack became the new standead aligner material for Invisali
products in North America beginning January 2018 enFebruary 2013 for Europe and other internaionarkets where we have obtai
regulatory approval.

Scanners and Services Products
Scanners

iTero Scanner. The iTero scanner is available as a single hamlvpdatform with software options for restorative @rthodonti
procedures. The iTero scanner includes our inne¥giowderless technology and features a modermgrmlescanning wand and easytise
keyboard design with full color model renderingabling clinicians to show patients a liike final model of their scanned dentition.
market and sell the iTero in North America andefest international markets.

The iTero scanner is interoperable with our Invggakreatment such that a full arch digital scan ba submitted for the Invisalign ci
submission process treatment. In January 2014 nweumced that we qualified the 3M™ True Definitieanner for use with Invisalign ci
submissions. This qualification enables Invisaligroviders with a True Definition scanner to submitdigital impression in place of
traditional PVS impression as part of the Invisalase submission process. We support an opemsy/stgproach to digital impressions
continue to work with intraoral scanning comparirgsrested in developing interoperability for uséwnvisalign treatment.

Restorative software for iTer&oftware designed for GPs, prosthodontists, pentisks, and oral surgeons which includes featuoe
restorative procedures commonly performed in tipgactices such as veneers, inlays, onlays, crowridges and implants. The iT¢
restorative software provides the ability to scammdrants and full arches, and allows simple povidar-capture of digital impressions
singleunit cases as well as more complex restorativerapthnt treatment plans. The iTero software alsut@ios Invisalign interoperability
support clear aligner orthodontic treatment.

In the past year, we have expanded the digital fawkoptions to include several partnerships whprbvide our customers with
broader spectrum of CAD/CAM options. Connectivigrimership announcements include:

» |OS Technologies Inc, a wholly owned subsidiafyGlidewell Laboratories, provides the option tdlreameday restorations in tl
office.

 DENTSPLY Implants featuring connectivity with ATLANS™ custom abutmen

»  Zimmer Dental, Inc. with connectivity with ZimmefZcustom abutments for implar

Orthodontic software for iTerdSoftware designed for orthodontists for digitalamts storage, orthodontic diagnosis, Invisalignitdi
impression submission, and for the fabrication rrited models and retainers. The iTero orthodosuitware digitally captures the contour:
the dentition and the gingival structures, providien accurate, powdéree digital orthodontic scan in just minutes. THigital impressio
procedure ensures a more comfortable patient expezi and produces a precise scan that can be sshmietegrated with Invisali
treatment, OrthoCAD iCast, and OrthoCAD iRecordahhallows a doctor to utilize sophisticated measignet and treatment planning tools.

CAD/CAM Services

iTero Models and DiesAn accurate physical model and dies are manufadtoased on the digital scan and sent to the latrgraf the
dentists choice for completion of the needed restorafldre laboratory also has the option to export tiyétalifile for immediate production
coping and fulleontour restorations on their laboratory CAD/CAMstms. The laboratory conducts then completes ehamic buildup ¢
staining and glazing and delivers the end resalprecisely fitting restoration. iTero prostheti@s/e a near-zero remake rate.

OrthoCAD iCastiCast provides a digital alternative to traditiostdne cast models which allows for simplified atg and digital reco
retrieval. The iCast digital model contains a fstherican Board of Orthodontics ("ABO") base andisilable from an iTero scan or fror
traditional alginate impression.




OrthoCAD iRecordiRecord provides a digital alternative to tradiabistone cast models which allows for simplifiedrage and digiti
record retrieval. This simplified model without ABO base is an economical option for record retentiRecord is available exclusively fri
an iTero scan.

Chair Side Applications

Invisalign Outcome Simulatorin January 2013, we announced the commercialadiiity of the Invisalign Outcome Simulator, ourst
Invisalign chairside application powered by the iTero scanner.iftexactive application provides GPs and orthodsthn enhanced platfo
for patient education and is designed to increasatrhent acceptance by helping patients visuahiee benefits possible with Invisali
treatment. As the only Invisalign chair-side intnal scanning application on the market, the IdigesaOutcome Simulator's unique dual v
layout shows a prospective patient an image ohaisdwn current dentition next to his/her simulafied! position of how their teeth may lo
after Invisalign treatment. Using a full arch Iralign scan, the Invisalign Outcome Simulator taiew minutes to run and may be vie
chair-side, on the scanner, or from a computergudityAlignTech.com. Intuitive tools allow doctors tmake realime adjustments
individual teeth during consultations that increpatient education and the likelihood of patierdegtance.

Our iTero scanner includes orthodontic softwarstamative software, or both, and the Invisalign @ute Simulator. The orthodontic
restorative software may also be purchased subsdguer an upgrade fee. The Invisalign Outcome Bator is not available for st
separately.

Other proprietary software mentioned in this Annidaport on Form 16 such as ClinCheck and ClinCheck Pro software tivésaligr
Doctor Siteand enhanced feature solutions such as Invisalgaré included as part of the Invisalign System anednot sold separately nor
they contribute as individual items of revenue.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to establish Invisalign clear alignassthe standard method for treating malocclusiah tanestablish the iTero intreral
scanner as the preferred scanning protocol forigiatiscans, ultimately driving increased prodadbption by dental professionals. We int
to achieve this by continued focus and executioounfstrategic growth drivers: Market Expansioncio Preference, and Brand Strength.

1. Market Expansiol. We expect to continue to grow and expand oum®ass by investing in resources, infrastructure,inti@tives tha
will drive growth from both a geographic and markegment standpoint. From a geographic standpaiatfocus our efforts ¢
expanding our sales territory coverage in all of divect sales geographies, with particular emgghasbur highest growth areas s
as Europe and the Asia Pacific region. We strivenke sure that our new geographies and our exgaedetories international
have everything they need from the products, tostigport, to the people, in order to successfudbaldish Invisalign as the treatm
of choice for orthodontics in each geographic markeom a market segment standpoint, we are focosevo important marke!
adults and teenagers. We believe expansion in thesmarkets can be achieved through product inthava that can expand the ty,
of indications our Invisalign products can trea weell as by expanding the overall market for oditratics, primarily with adults wt
would not otherwise seek treatment with traditiowsles and brackets. We believe continued markptaiesgion can be achieved
having the right products, services, and commuiticatworldwide to give our doctors the confidentoeytneed to treat with Invisali
more often and attract potential patients to theictice so they ask for Invisalign by name.

In parallel with these investments, we also engagerofessional marketing, clinical support and @ion initiatives that suppt
doctor practice development and facilitate the iometd growth of their practices.

In our iTero scanner business, we leverage our gwdbsales and marketing resources to facilitageaitioption and penetration
each product into our doctors’ practices. Many wf customers recognize that having an iTero scaamnehairside improves practi
effectiveness for Invisalign as evidenced by highgisalign utilization rates among customers vethiTero scanner.

2. Doctor PreferenceWe want all of our doctors to have the confidennd eotivation to lead with Invisalign for every @att tha
walks into their practice. We strive to achievesthy investing in two areas. First, continuing gprove product predictability a
applicability for more complex cases thereby exjragthe types of malocclusion that our Invisaligogucts can treat. As an exam
we launched Invisalign G5 in February 2014, whiepresented our first set of features engineeredifgdly to treat deep bi
malocclusion. We estimate that deep bite manifitesédf in approximately 30% to 40% of the orthodontases treated worldwi
depending on geography. We also recently




announced the upcoming release of Invisalign Gfical innovations for first premolar extractionshel'nature of malocclusion tl
requires first premolar tooth extraction is an odbntic problem that affects more than 50% of pedaplAsia, 20% in Europe and 1.
in North America. Secondly, enhancing the customerperience by making it easier to treat with Bmegrate Invisalign into the
practices. As an example, we launched ClinCheck iRrBebruary 2014, the next generation Invisaliggatment software tos
designed to simplify the treatment process and betgloctors achieve their treatment goals.

3. Brand StrengthOur goal is to make Invisalign a highly recognizesime brand worldwide by creating awareness forshiigr
treatment among consumers and motiving potentiééma to seek treatment from an Invisalign proxidie support of this objectiv
we invest in initiatives designed to strengthen global brand name recognition and drive consunuechase intent. We accompl
this objective through an integrated consumer ntarfgestrategy that includes television, media, abcietworking and eve
marketing.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

Our manufacturing facilities are located in Juaidexico, where we conduct our aligner fabricatidistribute and repair our scann
perform our CAD/CAM services, and in Or Yehudaatdrwhere we produce our handheld irdrat scanner wand. The final assembly of
iTero scanner is performed by a third party manufae located in Israel. Our Invisalign digitaldteent planning and interpretation for iT
restorative cases are conducted primarily at oailitia located in San Jose, Costa Rica. Informatiegarding risks associated with
manufacturing process and foreign operations mdpunred inltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under lleading “Risk Factors.”

Our quality system is required to be in compliamgth the Quality System regulations enforced by Ei2A, and similar regulatiol
enforced by other worldwide regulatory authorit&e are certified to EN ISO 13485:2003, an inteéametlly recognized standard for med
device manufacturing. We have a formal, documentpdlity system by which quality objectives are defl, understood a
achieved. Systems, processes and procedures dearierged to ensure high levels of product and serguality. We monitor the effectiven
of the quality system based on internal data anetticustomer feedback and strive to continuallgrione our systems and processes, t¢
corrective action, as needed.

Since the manufacturing process of our productsireg substantial and varied technical expertise believe that our manufactur
capabilities are important to our success. In otdgproduce our highly customized, highly precisedical quality products in volume,
have developed a humber of proprietary processgseghnologies. These technologies include comgbéixvare algorithms and solutions,
scanning, stereolithography and automated aligaaidation. To increase the efficiency of our maatifiring processes, we continue to ft
our efforts on software development and the impnoset of ratdimiting processes, or bottlenecks. We continuougdgrade our proprieta
threedimensional treatment planning software to enhatm®puter analysis of treatment data and to redime spent on manual a
judgmental tasks for each case, thereby incredbimgfficiency of our technicians in Costa Ricaattdition, to improve efficiency and incre
the scale of our operations, we continue to iniretfite development of automated systems for thedation and packaging of aligners.

We are highly dependent on manufacturers of speedhlscanning equipment, rapid prototyping machimesin and other advanc
materials for our aligners, as well as the optalectronic and other mechanical components of oua-0ral scanners. We maintain sin
supply relationships for many of these machines matkrials technologies. In particular, our CTrstag and stereolithography equipn
used in our aligner manufacturing and many of thiécal components for the optics of our inweal scanners are provided by sir
suppliers. We are also committed to purchasingfatiur resin and polymer, the primary raw materigded in our manufacturing process
clear aligners, from a single source. The neeceptace one of our single source suppliers couldeaudisruption in our ability to time
deliver certain of our products or increase cdsee Iltem 1A Risk Factors- “We maintain single supply relationships for certafnour ke'
machines and materials technologies, and our bgsir@doperating results could be harmed if supply isnietdd or ends or the price of re
materials used in our manufacturing process incesds

Sales and Marketing

Our sales efforts are focused primarily on the dalign System and continuing to increase adoptiwhuilization by orthodontists a
GPs worldwide. In North America, Europe and certasia Pacific country markets, we have direct saled support organizations, wh
includes quota carrying sales representativess saégmagement, and sales administration.

Currently, we have several distribution partneiet gell the Invisalign System in smaller noore country markets in the EMEA, A
Pacific and Latin America regions. We evaluate agdlistribution partners in other non-core coumtigrkets on a case-lmase basis or ass
modifying our current distribution agreements, asinternational business grows. We continued
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to expand in our existing markets through targétedstments in sales coverage, professional maketnd education programs, along \
consumer marketing in selected country marketaduition, given the significant long term potentis® EMEA geography represents anc
support we can now provide by utilizing our direowverage model in Europe, beginning in February42®i& began the transition of a sr
number of countries into direct sales regions. Wietiaued the transition of additional smaller coig#t during the year which will contin
through February 2015. We expect to leverage oigstieg infrastructure and resources to bring satesrage and customer support to t
countries, most of which are adjacent to our diyecbvered European countries. Due to the smalumwe of business from our EMI
distributor, we do not anticipate that this traiesitwill have a material effect on our financiatudts in the next several years.

For the iTero scanner, we have a small team otdgales representatives in North America. Oumintal scanner sales team lever:
leads generated by our Invisalign sales and mauke&sources, including customer events and ingtistdeshows. We sell the iTero scan
in select country markets internationally and Witk to grow the scanner business over time.

We market Invisalign by communicating the benefifsthe Invisalign System to dental professional®ulgh our training prograr
online and traditional mail campaigns, trade shavegje journals and print. We also promote the fitsnef Invisalign through our integrat
consumer marketing platform which combines tradaioprint and broadcast media with a balanced rhigublic relations, event marketit
and social media. The goal of this platform isase awareness of Invisalign as the best optiona feealthy, beautiful smile among adults
teenagers. In addition, our consumer marketinggriatenables us to help prospective patients figdeat Invisalign treatment practice that
meet their needs. For intra-oral scanners, in mdio leveraging Invisalign customer events amdusiry tradeshows to communicate 1
benefits of digital scanning to dental professienale also have training programs, educational ite=band limited print advertising.

We provide training, marketing and clinical supptartorthodontists and GPs. In 2014ve had approximately 43,340 active Invisa
providers.

Research and Development

We are committed to investing in worblhss technology development, which we believeitical to achieving our goal of establish
the Invisalign System as the standard method &atitig malocclusion and our inteaal scanning platform as the preferred scannigopp
for 3D digital scans. Our research and developrmeapienses were $52.8 million , $44.1 million , art®.$ million for the year ende
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Our research and development activities are dideitieard developing the technology innovations thatbelieve will deliver our ne
generation of products and platforms. Our researuth development activities range from accelerafimiduct and clinical innovation,
developing manufacturing process improvementsg$earching future technologies and products.

In an effort to demonstrate Invisalignbroad treatment capabilities, various clinicaecatudies and articles have been publishet
highlight the clinical applicability of Invisalignto malocclusion cases, including those of severenptexity. We undertake pre-
commercialization trials and testing of our teclugital improvements to the product and manufactupirocess.

Intellectual Property

We believe our intellectual property position reggnets a substantial business advantage. As of Dewedit, 2014 we had 352 issu
U.S. patents, 97 pending U.S. patent applicatiand,257 foreign issued patents, as well as 108ipgfidreign patent applications.

We continue to pursue further intellectual propepsotection through U.S. and foreign patent appibees and nordisclosur
agreements. We also seek to protect our softwa@jrdentation and other written materials underetrsecret and copyright laws. We cai
be certain that patents will be issued as a refwhy patent application or that patents that Haen issued to us or that may be issued i
future will be found to be valid and enforceable aufficient to protect our technology or produ€sir intellectual property rights may not
successfully asserted in the future or may be idatdd, circumvented or challenged. In additiom, fdws of various foreign countries do
protect our intellectual property rights to the saextent as U.S. laws. Our inability to protect pwoprietary information could harm ¢
business. Information regarding risks associatetl vailing to protect our proprietary technologydaour intellectual property rights may
found inltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under hleading “Risk Factors.”
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Seasonal Fluctuations

General economic conditions impact our businessfaaghcial results, and we experience seasonatisreelated to our two operat
segments, customer channels and the geographiiologdhat we serve. For example, European salésvidfalign treatment are often wea
in the summer months due to our customers and plagients being on holiday. In North America, sumnsetypically the busiest season
orthodontists with practices that have a high patage of adolescent and teenage patients as maetpavant to get their teenagers startt
treatment before the start of the school year; lvewenany GPs are on vacation during this timetaedefore tend to start fewer cases. Fo
Scanner segment, capital equipment sales are stitemger in the fourth calendar quarter. Consedydhiese seasonal trends have cause
may continue to cause, fluctuations in our quartezbults, including fluctuations in sequentialeaue growth rates.

Backlog

Due to the individualized nature of an Invisaligeatment which is prescribed by a doctor, no tweesaare alike, and we maini
relatively low levels of backlog. The period fromhieh a treatment data package (or “a casefeceived until the acceptance of the di
ClinCheck treatment plan is dependent on the demtafessionab discretion to modify, accept or cancel the treathplan. Therefore, v
consider the case a firm order to manufacture atgjionce the dental professional has approved kh€l@ck treatment plan. Our Invisal
backlog consists of ClinCheck treatment plans tiete been accepted but not yet shipped. Becaiggee@ are shipped shortly after
ClinCheck treatment plan has been accepted, wevegethat backlog is not a good indicator of futumeéisalign sales. Our quarterly Invisal
revenues can be impacted by the timing of the Clet® treatment plan acceptances and our abilighip those cases in the same quarter
define our intrasral scanner backlog as orders where paymentsenably assured and credit and financing is apprbue the scanner has
yet shipped. Our int-oral scanner backlog as of December 31, 2014 wbmaterial.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive market and weoenter a wide variety of competitors, includinggker companies or divisions
larger companies with substantial sales, marketirggearch and financial capabilities. We also facenpetition from early sta
companies. Although the number of competitors gabig segment, currently our products compete dyrecfainst products manufactured
distributed by various companies, both within andswe the U.S., including Danaher Corporation, 3fona Dental Systems, Inc.
Dentsply International, Inc. Information regardinigks associated with increased competition mafobad inltem 1Aof this Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors.”

Key competitive factors include:
» effectiveness of treatme
* price
» software feature
» aesthetic appeal of the treatment met
* customer suppo
» customer online interfac
* brand awarenes
* innovation
» distribution networlk
» comfort associated with the treatment met
» oral hygiene
» easeofuse; a

» dental professionalghair time
We believe that our products compare favorably withcompetitors’ products with respect to eacthebe factors.
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Government Regulation

In order for us to market our products, we mustimbtegulatory authorization and comply with exieagproduct and quality syste
regulations. These regulations, including the nemménts for approvals or clearance and the timaimed| for regulatory review, vary frc
country to country. Failure to obtain regulatorypagpval and to meet all local requirements includemgguage and specific safety standar
any country in which we currently market or plamtarket our products could prevent us from markegiroducts in such countries or sub
us to sanctions and fines. The approval by govemimethorities is unpredictable and uncertain amag not be granted on a timely basis,
all. Delays in receipt of, or a failure to receiweich approvals or clearances, or the loss of aayiqusly received approvals or clearan
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition, and results of operations.

We believe we are in compliance with all FDA, fetleand state laws and International regulatory irequents that are applicable to
products and manufacturing operations. Countryifipeegulatory framework and requirements are hggtted in the following examples:

u.s.

In the U.S., the Medical Device Amendments of 1896he Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act ("FDA"Aand its subseque
amendments, and the regulations, provide the FDXA authority over medical devices and the resealatical testing, manufacture, labeli
distribution, sale, and promotion of such deviddsdical devices are classified into one of threessés (Class I, Il or 1ll). The class to wt
the device is assigned determines, among othegghthe type of preaarketing submission/application required for madethorization. Ot
Invisalign aligners and intraral scanners are classified as Class || medicatds and we have obtained applicable 510(k) cheas for oL
marketed products.

The FDA Act also requires manufactured devicesotoply with applicable Quality System Regulationsahhimpose certain procedu
and documentation requirements upon us with resppedesign, development, manufacturing and qualggurance activities, including
reporting of adverse experiences with the use efdievice. We are subject to unannounced inspectipnegulatory authorities to determ
compliance with applicable regulations, and thespéctions may include the manufacturing facilitidsour subcontractors. Labeling ¢
promotion activities are subject to scrutiny by B2A and, in certain instances, by the Federal @@dmmission. The FDA actively enfor
regulations prohibiting marketing of products farapproved uses. Noncompliance with applicable reqénts can result in, among ot
things, warning letters, fines, injunctions, cipiénalties, recall or seizures of products, totgbantial suspension of production, failure of
government to grant pm@arket clearance or approval for devices, withdtafanarketing approvals, and criminal prosecutithe FDA als
has the authority to request repair, replacemergfand of the cost of any medical device manufactwor distributed by us.

European Union

The member states of the European Union ("EU") tel@pted the European Medical Device Directives (MB/42/EEC) that form
single set of medical device regulations for all Bwémber countries. The MDD defines the quality exyst safety, and performar
requirements to be met by manufacturers for theadpcts, called the Essential Requirements. Ceatifin to ISO 13485, an internatio
standard for quality management systems, demoest@mpliance with the quality system requiremenitiined in the MDD. Our Quali
Management System is 1SO 13485 certified by thdidBriStandards Institute, an approved full scopdifidd Body (as defined in ti
regulations).

Canada

In Canada, the system of approval for medical devis governed by the Medical Device Regulationshef Department of Justi
(SOR/98282), including quality system requirements basedS®D 13485, facility registration, and device fisang. The scope of our Qua
Management System certification includes the agldl#i requirements defined by Health Canada.

Japan

In Japan, the Ministry of Health, Labour, and WedfdMHLW), regulates medical devices under the Plaaeutical Affairs Law ("PAL"
Manufacturers with no local presence in Japan rappbint a Marketing Authorization Holder ("MAH") tmanage their device registrat
process and liaise with the Pharmaceutical and d&édievices Agency ("PMDA"), Japanimedical device market regulator. Manufacture
Class Il, lll and IV devices must implement a gtyadiystem compliant with the PAL and MHLW Ordinartks9 (Japan QMS Regulation) i
submit QMS Conformity Assessment Application. Thepe of our
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Quality Management System certification includes additional requirements defined by PAL and Inigsahas been authorized for sale.

China

In China, the China Food and Drug AdministratioBKDA") regulates medical devices. The device cfisdion process in China diffe
significantly from those in the EU and the U.S.dapproval of the medical device in the countryod§in is required before beginning
registration process. Compliance with U.S. FDA Qua&ystem Requirements and/or ISO 13485 will $at3FDA quality management syst
requirements. CFDA has approved our submissioimfasalign.

Other Government Oversight

We are also subject to various laws inside andideithe U.S. concerning our relationships with treare professionals and governn
officials, price reporting and regulation, the puian, sales and marketing of our products andisesy the importation and exportation of
products, the operation of our facilities and disttion of our products. As a global company, we subject to varying degrees of governr
regulation in the various countries in which weldeiness, and the general trend is toward incrglssiringent oversight and enforcem:
Initiatives sponsored by government agencies, ligiis bodies, and the private sector to limit ¢hewth of healthcare expenses generall
ongoing in markets where we do business. It ispassible to predict at this time the lotegm impact of such cost containment measurt
our future business.

Our customers are healthcare providers that maseipebursed by federally funded programs such asidaat or a foreign nation
healthcare program, each of which may offer songredeof oversight. Many government agencies, botheastic and foreign, have increa
their enforcement activities with respect to hezdtle providers and companies in recent years. Egrioent actions and associated defens
be expensive, and any resulting findings carry riek of significant civil and criminal penaltiesoF example, the U.S. Federal Physii
Payment Sunshine Act went into effect in 2014 whiaduires public transparency of transfers of vatughysicians.

We are also subject to numerous data protectioninegents that span from individual state and matidaws in the US to multinatior
requirements in the EU. In the U.S,, final reguas implementing amendments to the Health Insur®actability and Accountability Act
1996 (“HIPAA") became effective in the latter part of 2013 with HIPAA Omnibus Rule. The EU is currently considgra proposal to en:
legislation governing data protection which woulanisform the current mix of European countriesis to one overarching multinational i
Meanwhile, the Asia Pacific region has also segidrdevelopment of privacy laws, including in Sipgee, Hong Kong, and Australia. \
believe we have designed our product and serviterings to be compliant with the requirements oplegable data protection laws ¢
regulations. Maintaining systems that are comphaith these laws and regulations is costly and @oatjuire complex changes in the way
do business or provide services to our customeusttagir patients. Additionally, our success maydependent on the success of healtt
providers in managing data protection requirements.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014we had approximately 3,580 employees, includifB2@ in manufacturing and operations, 730 in sate
marketing which includes customer care, 260 inaedeand development and 270 in general and admating functions.

Available Information

Our website is located awww.aligntech.com and our investor relations website is locatechtép://investor.aligntech.com The
information on or accessible through our websiasat part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. @Qumnual Reports on Form 1K; Quarterl
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form &#t, proxy statement on Schedule 14A for our anrstatkholders’'meeting an
amendments to such reports are available, freehafge, on our investor relations website as soomeasonably practicable after
electronically file or furnish such material withet SEC. Further, a copy of this Annual Report omFd0-K is located at the SECPublic
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, B0849. Information on the operation of the PuBRl&ference Room can be obtainel
calling the SEC at 1-800-SE@330. The SEC maintains an internet site thatatostreports, proxy and information statements @i
information regarding our filings atww.sec.qov
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding our executive officers as of February2Z8,5 :

Name Age Position

Thomas M. Prescott 59 President and Chief Executive Officer

David L. White 59 Chief Financial Officer

Jennifer M. Erfurth 45 Vice President, Global Human Resources
Roger E. George 49 Vice President, Corporated_agal Affairs and General Counsel
John P. Graham 46 Vice President, Marketing and Chief Marketing Odfic
Timothy A. Mack 56 Vice President, Business Depetent
Raphael Pascaud 43 Vice President, International
Christopher C. Puco 54 Vice President, North Aozar Sales

Zelko Relic 50 Vice President, Research & Development
Emory M. Wright 45 Vice President, Operations

Thomas M. Prescotias served as our President and Chief Executivieedfand as a member of our Board of Directorsesikiarct
2002. Prior to joining us, Mr. Prescott was Presidand Chief Executive Officer of Cardiac Pathwadgs., a publiclytraded medical devii
company, from May 1999 until its acquisition by Bms Scientific in August 2001. Mr. Prescott thenrkexl as a consultant for Bos
Scientific Corporation until January 2002. Priorworking at Cardiac Pathways, Mr. Prescott heldous sales, general management
executive roles at Nellcor Puritan Bennett, InonirApril 1994 to May 1999.

David L. Whitehas served as our Chief Financial Officer ("CFQrigs August 2013. Prior to joining us, Mr. Whit@asvCFO of Enecsy
Ltd., a privatelyheld supplier of solar micro inverters and moniigrisystems from June 2012. Prior to Enecsys, he Exasutive Vici
President and CFO at NVIDIA Corporation, a fablessniconductor company known for its developmentdvanced graphics and h
performance computing processors from February 2009ne 2011. Prior to NVIDIA, he was Executive®/President of Finance and CFt
SANMINA- SCI Corporation, which provides contract desigmpy chain, and manufacturing services from 2002069. He also served
CFO at Asyst Technologies Corporation, CEO at Csecel® Technologies Corporation, and Senior VicesiBeat of Finance at Conr
Peripherals.

Jennifer M. Erfurthhas served as our Vice President, Global HumanuRess since October 2012. Prior to joining us, Eidurth wa:
Senior Vice President of Shared Services at DynoeNdnc., a manufacturer and supplier of induk#iglosives, from July 2011 to July 20
and was Vice President, Human Resources for Fe@galal Corporation prior to that. From 2001 to @0Ms. Erfurth held positions
increasing responsibility at Schawk, Inc., mostkergly as Global Senior Vice President of Human Reses, a position she held from 2
until her departure in 2010. Earlier in her carsle served as Director of Human Resources at CBNTArporation and World Color.

Roger E. Georgbas served as our Vice President, Corporate andl l&dtairs and General Counsel since July 2002orRo joining us
Mr. George was the Chief Financial Officer, Vicee$ident of Finance and Legal Affairs and GeneralirGel of SkyStream Networks
privately held broadband and broadcast network pgnent company. Prior to SkyStream, Mr. George wagartner at Wilson Sons
Goodrich & Rosati, P.C. in Palo Alto, California.

John P. Grahanhas served as our Vice President, Marketing andf@harketing Officer since July 2013. From 2011iulné joined us
Mr. Graham was Vice President and Chief Marketirificer at GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare, aball healthcare company. Prio
GlaxoSmithKline, he was with Johnson & Johnsonlfryears in multiple marketing leadership rolesluding Vice President, U.S. Market
for Johnson & Johnson Vision Care.

Timothy A. Mackas served as our Vice President, Marketing andnBss Development since May 2012. He served as Riiesiden
Business Development since our acquisition of Catiahdings, Inc. in April 2011. At Cadent, he weesident and Chief Executive Offi
since 2009. He joined Cadent in 2005, as Execwtize President & General Manager where he ledritreduction and adoption of Cadent
new 3D digital imaging technology into the mark@tior to Cadent, Mr. Mack was Vice President areh&@al Manager of DENTSPI
Ceramco, a whollywned subsidiary of DENTSPLY International. PriorDENTSPLY, Mr. Mack held a series of managemeositons it
the U.S. and Europe within Consumer ElectronicsMedical Imaging Divisions at Eastman Kodak Company
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Raphael Pascaudias appointed Vice President, International in dayp2014. He joined Align in 2010 as Vice Presidamd Managin
Director for the Europe, Middle East and Africa Reg ("EMEA"). Prior to Align, Mr. Pascaud spent §dars in various management posit
within DePuy, a Johnson & Johnson family of companincluding Vice President Orthopedics of EMEAI afice President Marketing
International.

Christopher C. Pucdias served as our Vice President, North AmericasSsince December 2012. He joined Align in 2006 asle
director and in 2008 became senior director forBhstern sales area. Most recently, as Vice PmgsafeSales Strategy, he led Align's go-to
market strategy and managed the integration ofN\iieh American scanner and CAD/CAM services salgmimization. Mr. Puco has mi
than 20 years of experience in the medical dewideistry, holding sales management positions in Btafhtsups and established corpol
environments. Prior to Align, he was with Unitecateés Surgical Corporation, General Surgical Innowat Baxter BioSurgery and Fus
Medical Technologies.

Zelko Relicwas appointed Vice President, Research & Developrirebecember 2013. Prior to joining Align, Mr. Relvas Vice
President, Engineering for Datalogic Automatiorglabal leader in automatic data capture and indstutomation markets from 2012. |
Relic was previously Vice President, EngineeringDainaher Corporation, Acctert Systems business from 2010 to 2012 beforeat
acquired by Datalogic Automation. From 2005 to 2018 was at Siemens Medical Solutions USA, mostng as Vice President, and fr
2002 to 2004 he held senior management positioesigineering at Kulicke & Soffa Industries, designand manufactures of semicondu
products. He also held management positions at KeAeor, manufacturer of metrology tools from 1982000.

Emory M. Wrighthas served as our Vice President, Operations ddeeember 2007. He has been with us since MarclD,
predominantly in manufacturing and operations roleeeviously, Mr. Wright served as Vice Presidé&ténufacturing and, most recently, \
General Manager of New Product Development. Rdgoining us, Mr. Wright was Senior ManufacturiManager at Metrika, Inc. a medi
device manufacturer, from May 1999 to March 2066om July 1994 to May 1999, Mr. Wright served asniiger of Manufacturing a
Process Development for Metra Biosystems Inc.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We depend on the sale of the Invisalign systemtfoe vast majority of our net revenues, and any dieelin sales of Invisalign treatme
for any reason, a continued weakness in general mmmic conditions, or a decline in average sellingiges would adversely affect r
revenues, gross margin and net income.

We expect that net revenues from the sale of thisdlign System, primarily Invisalign Full and Isalign Teen, will continue to accol
for the vast majority of our total net revenues fbe foreseeable future. Continued and widespreatkeh acceptance of Invisalign
orthodontists, GPs and consumers is critical to fature success. If orthodontists and GPs expegienceduction in consumer demand
orthodontic services, if consumers prove unwillitmgadopt Invisalign as rapidly as we anticipateirothe volume that we anticipate
orthodontists or GPs choose to use a competitieelymt rather than Invisalign or if the averageisegllprice of our product declines, 1
operating results would be harmed.

Demand for our products may not increase as rapidlg we anticipate due to a variety of factors inding a weakness in genel
economic conditions.

Consumer spending habits are affected by, amorey ¢itings, prevailing economic conditions, leveisemployment, salaries and wi
rates, gas prices, consumer confidence and conguenegption of economic conditions. A general slowd in the U.S. economy and cen
international economies or an uncertain economitooki would adversely affect consumer spending tsalvhich may, among other thin
result in a decrease in the number of overall altimbic case starts, reduced patient traffic in idesitoffices, reduction in consumer spenc
on higher value procedures or a reduction in thmadel for dental services generally, each of whiokld/ have a material adverse effect on
sales and operating results. Weakness in the gedmlomy results in a challenging environment fdlireg dental technologies and dent
may postpone investments in capital equipment, siscimtraeral scanners. In addition, Invisalign treatmertijol currently accounts for t
vast majority of our net revenues, represents @ifgignt change from traditional orthodontic treatm, and customers and consumers m:
reluctant to accept it or may not find it prefeeabd traditional treatment. We have generally neetipositive feedback from orthodontists, !
and consumers regarding Invisalign treatment als Aotalternative to braces and as a clinical metbothe treatment of malocclusion, bt
number of dental professionals believe that theshlign treatment is appropriate for only a limitpdrcentage of their patients. Incree
market acceptance of all of our products will depanpart upon the recommendations of dental psidesils, as well as other factors incluc
effectiveness, safety, ease of use, reliabilitgttaics, and price compared to competing products.
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The frequency of use of the Invisalign system byhmdontists or GPs may not increase at the ratetth@ anticipate or at all.

One of our key objectives is to continue to incesaslization, or the adoption and frequency of,ufehe Invisalign System by new ¢
existing customers. If utilization of the Invisaligsystem by our existing and newly trained orthats or GPs does not occur or does
occur as quickly as we anticipate, our operatirsglte could be harmed.

We may experience declines in average selling mio€our products which may decrease our net revesu

We provide volume based discount programs to owtods. In addition, we sell a number of productdiffierent list prices. If w
introduce any price reductions or consumer rebaigrams; if we expand our discount programs inftib@re or participation in these progre
increases; if our product mix shifts to lower pdgeroducts or products that have a higher percenbhgleferred revenue our average se
prices would be adversely affected and our netrme®s, gross profit, gross margin and net income beageduced. Furthermore, although
U.S. dollar is our reporting currency, a portionanir net revenues and net income are generategtéigh currencies. Net revenues anc
income generated by subsidiaries operating outsidthe U.S. are translated into U.S. dollars usixghange rates effective during
respective period and are affected by changes dmasge rates. As a result, negative movements rirerezy exchange rates against
U.S. dollar will adversely affect our average sgjliprice and consequently the amount of net reveamel net income in our consolide
financial statements.

As we continue to grow, we are subject to growthated risks, including risks related to excess anstrained capacity at our existir
facilities.

We are subject to growth related risks, includingess or constrained capacity and pressure onntemnal systems and personnel
order to manage current operations and future dgraffectively, we will need to continue to implemiemd improve our operational, finant
and management information systems and to hiri, tnaotivate, manage and retain employees. We neayrable to manage such gro
effectively. Any such failure could have a mateddlerse impact on our business, operations arspects.

Because we cannot immediately adapt our productiapacity and related cost structures to changirggket conditions, ol
manufacturing capacity may at times exceed orstadirt of our production requirements. In additidmroduct demand decreases or we fz
forecast demand accurately, we could be requiredite off inventory or record excess capacity gea; which would lower our gross mar
Any or all of these problems could result in thes@f customers, provide an opportunity for commepiroducts to gain market acceptance
otherwise harm our business and financial results.

If we fail to sustain or increase profitability orevenue growth in future periods, the market prié@ our common stock may decline.

If we are to sustain or increase profitability inire periods, we will need to continue to increasenet revenues, while controlling
expenses. Because our business is evolving, iffisult to predict our future operating results lewels of growth, and we have in the past
been and may in the future not be able to sustairhistorical growth rates. If we do not increasefipability or revenue growth or otherw
meet the expectations of securities analysts @sitors, the market price of our common stock Wil decline.

Our financial results have fluctuated in the pashd may fluctuate in the future which may cause vuldy in our stock price.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the padtvae expect our future quarterly and annual opegaesults to fluctuate as we focus
increasing doctor and consumer demand for our ptsdiihese fluctuations could cause our stock ptiwedecline or significant
fluctuate. Some of the factors that could causeoperating results to fluctuate include:

» limited visibility into and difficulty predictig the level of activity in our customerngtactices from quarter to quar!
» weakness in consumer spending as a result of dlaelelvn in the U.S. economy and global econor
» changes in relationships with our distribut

» changes in the timing of receipt of Invisalign caseduct orders during a given quarter which, gieem cycle time and the del
between case receipts and case shipments, coutdalmampact on which quarter revenue can be rezedni

 fluctuations in currency exchange rates againsutise dollar

» changes in product m
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« our inability to predict from period to perioklet number of trainers or the availability of dostoequired to complete intiaral scanne
installations, which may impact the timing of whewenue is recognized;

 if participation in our customer rebate progranré@ases our average selling price will be adveratgcted
» seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctors@irtoffices and their availability to take appognts

» success of or changes to our marketing programs fuaarter to quarte

» our reliance on our contract manufacturerstiergroduction of sub-assemblies for our irdral scanner
 timing of industry tradeshow

» changes in the timing of when revenue is recognizeduding as a result of the introduction of n@noducts or promotion
modifications to our terms and conditions or assult of changes to critical accounting estimatasesv accounting pronouncements;

» changes to our effective tax r¢
» unanticipated delays in production caused by ingefit capacity or availability of raw materie

» any disruptions in the manufacturing process, idiclg unexpected turnover in the labor force oritiieoduction of new productic
processes, power outages or natural or other disdstyond our control;

» the development and marketing of directly compatdiproducts by existing and new competit

* major changes in available technology or the pezfees of customers may cause our current proddetiragfs to become le
competitive or obsolete;

e aggressive price competition from competit
» costs and expenditures in connection with litiga

 the timing of new product introductions by us aml competitors, as well as customer order defemamticipation of enhanceme
or new products;

» disruptions to our business due to political, ecoiwoor other social instability, including the ingtaof an epidemic any of whi
results in changes in consumer spending habitsuroars unable or unwilling to visit the orthodontis general practitioners offic
as well as any impact on workforce absenteeism;

» inaccurate forecasting of net revenues, produarhother operating costs; i

» investments in research and development to deveopproducts and enhanceme

To respond to these and other factors, we may teeethke business decisions that could adversedctaffur operating results suct
modifications to our pricing policy, business sture or operations. Most of our expenses, suchhgdayee compensation and lease pay!
obligations, are relatively fixed in the short tefdoreover, our expense levels are based, in pargur expectations regarding future reve
levels. As a result, if our net revenues for aipalar period fall below our expectations, whetleaused by changes in consumer spen
consumer preferences, weakness in the U.S. or Igedmnomies, changes in customer behavior relaieadtertising and prescribing «
product, or other factors, we may be unable tosidjpending quickly enough to offset any shortfalhet revenues. Due to these and ¢
factors, we believe that quarterqoarter comparisons of our operating results maybeomeaningful. You should not rely on our resiii
any one quarter as an indication of our futureqrenince.

Our future success may depend on our ability to elep, successfully introduce and achieve marketegutance of new products.

Our future success may depend on our ability toelbpy manufacture, market, and obtain regulatomragml or clearance of ne
products. There can be no assurance that we wilbte to successfully develop, sell and achieveketaacceptance of these and other
products and applications and enhanced versiomsioéxisting product or software. The extent ofl aate at which, market acceptance
penetration are achieved by future products isnatfan of many variables, which include, among othings, our ability to:
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» correctly identify customer needs and preferencespaedict future needs and preferer

* include functionality and features that addressauer requirement

» ensure compatibility of our computer operating syst and hardware configurations with those of astamers
 allocate our research and development fundingdduymts with higher growth prospet

* anticipate and respond to our competitdes’elopment of new products and technological imtions
 differentiate our offerings from our competitoo$ferings

* innovate and develop new technologies and appics

» the availability of thirdearty reimbursement of procedures using our prex

» obtain adequate intellectual property rights;

» encourage customers to adopt new technolc

If we fail to accurately predict customer needs preferences or fail to produce viable technologies may invest heavily in resea
and development of products that do not lead toifsdgnt revenue. Even if we successfully innovate develop new products and proc
enhancements, we may incur substantial costs ingdeo, and our profitability may suffer. In additj even if our new products .
successfully introduced, it is unlikely that theillwapidly gain market share and acceptance piiisndue to the relatively long period of time
takes to successfully treat a patient with InviggaliSince it takes approximately 12 to 24 monthdréat a patient, our customers may
unwilling to rapidly adopt our new products untiley successfully complete at least one case ot mnutie historical clinical results ¢
available.

Our ability to market and sell new products maydle subject to government regulation, includingrapal or clearance by the FC
and foreign government agencies. Any failure in ability to successfully develop and introduce ohiave market acceptance of our |
products or enhanced versions of existing produotdd have a material adverse effect on our operatésults and could cause our
revenues to decline.

A disruption in the operations of our primary frelg carrier or higher shipping costs could cause &daline in our net revenues or
reduction in our earnings.

We are dependent on commercial freight carriersnanily UPS, to deliver our products to our custosaéf the operations of the
carriers are disrupted for any reason, we may lablento deliver our products to our customers dimaly basis. If we cannot deliver ¢
products in an efficient and timely manner, ourtoosers may reduce their orders from us and ourewetnues and operating profits cc
materially decline. In a rising fuel cost envirormmeour freight costs will increase. If freight t®snaterially increase and we are unable to
that increase along to our customers for any reasatherwise offset such increases in our costedfrevenues, our gross margin and fina
results could be adversely affected.

We are dependent on our international operationdhieh exposes us to foreign operational, politicahé other risks that may harm o1
business.

Our key production steps are performed in operatlooated outside of the U.S. At our facility iarSJose, Costa Rica, technicians t
sophisticated, internally developed computerdeling program to prepare digital treatment plavisich are then transmitted electronicall
Juarez, Mexico. These digital files form the basisthe ClinCheck treatment plan and are used toufaature aligner molds. Our or«
acquisition, aligner fabrication and shipping opierss are conducted in Juarez, Mexico. In additiorthe research and development ef
conducted in our San Jose, California facility, also carry out research and development at locatiorMoscow, Russia. In addition,
customereare, accounts receivable, credit and collectiorts @istomer event registration organizations atatéml at our facility in San Jo
Costa Rica. We also have operations in Israel witierelesign and wand assembly and our ioted-scanner are manufactured. Our relianc
international operations exposes us to risks awceémminties that may affect our business or regiltgperation, including:

« difficulties in hiring and retaining employees geally, as well as difficulties in hiring and retaig employees with the necess
skills to perform the more technical aspects ofaperations;

« difficulties in managing international operatioms;luding any travel restrictions to or from oucifdies located in Russia and Isr:
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fluctuations in currency exchange ra

increased income taxes, and other restrictiondiani@tions, if we were to decide to repatriate arfiyur foreign cash balances bac
the U.S,;

import and export license requirements and regiris!
controlling production volume and quality of themé#acturing proces

political, social and economic instability, incladi as a result of increased levels of violenceuardz, Mexico or the Middle East. !
cannot predict the effect on us of any future armeadflict, political instability or violence in tise regions. In addition, some of
employees in Israel are obligated to perform annesérve duty in the Israeli military and are subje being called for additior
active duty under emergency circumstances. We tgmedlict the full impact of these conditions oninighe future, particularly
emergency circumstances or an escalation in thiéigablsituation occurs. If many of our employeas aalled for active duty, o
operations in Israel and our business may not ketalfunction at full capacity;

acts of terrorism and acts of w

geopolitical risks around the Ukraine and the pgabtsi of additional sanctions against Russia whazmtinue to bring uncertainty
this region;

interruptions and limitations in telecommunicatservices

product or material transportation delays or disoup including as a result of increased levelsiofence, acts of terrorism, acts of \
or health epidemics restricting travel to and froor international locations or as a result of raltalisasters, such as earthquake
volcanic eruptions;

burdens of complying with a wide variety of locauntry and regional law
trade restrictions and changes in tariffs;

potential adverse tax consequen

If any of these risks materialize in the future, ee@ld experience production delays and lost caysl revenue.

We earn an increasingly larger portion of our tota¢venues from international sales and face riskisemdant to those operations.

We earn an increasingly larger portion of our togalenues from international sales generated traugy foreign direct and indire

operations. As a result of these sales operatisagace a variety of risks, including:

local political and economic instabili

the engagement of activities by our employees,raoturs, partners and agents, especially in castvith developing economies, 1
are prohibited by international and local trade éadsbr laws and other laws prohibiting corrupt payts to government officia
including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the BKibery Act of 2010 and export control laws, initepof our policies ar
procedures designed to ensure compliance with thase

although it is our intention to indefinitely reirsteearnings outside the U.S., restrictions on thesfer of funds held by our forei
subsidiaries, including with respect to restric@m our ability to repatriate foreign cash toth8& at favorable tax rates;

fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

increased expense of developing, testing and maé&aadized versions of our produc

Any of these factors, either individually or in cbimation, could materially impact our internatiorgderations and adversely affect
business as a whole.
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A key step in our manufacturing process relies ampsisticated computer technology that requires n@ghnicians to undergo a relative
long training process. If we are unable to accurtepredict our volume growth, and fail to hire a fficient number of technicians i
advance of such demand, the delivery time of ouogiucts could be delayed which could adversely &ftag results of operations.

Training production technicians takes approxima@iyto 120 days. As a result, if we are unablectugately predict our volume grow
we may not have a sufficient number of trained mégihns to deliver our products within the timefemur customers expect. Such a d
could cause us to lose existing customers or dadttract new customers. This could cause a dedlimair net revenues and net income
could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our headquarters, digital dental modeling processaesd other manufacturing processes are principallgcated in regions that au
subject to earthquakes and other natural disaste

Our digital dental modeling is processed in ourilitgclocated in San Jose, Costa Rica. The openmatittam in Costa Rica cree
ClinCheck treatment plans using sophisticated caerpsoftware. In addition, our customer facing @piens are located in Costa Rica.
aligner molds and finished aligners are fabricateduarez, Mexico. Both locations in Costa Rica khekico are in earthquake zones and
be subject to other natural disasters. If thegernsajor earthquake or any other natural disastarragion where one of these facilities is loci
our ability to create ClinCheck treatment planspand to customer inquiries or manufacture and shipaligners could be compromised wt
could result in our customers experiencing a sigaift delay in receiving their completed alignensl @ decrease in service levels for a pe
of time. In addition, our headquarters facilityQalifornia is located in the San Francisco Bay Avea earthquake or other natural disastt
this region could result in a disruption in our cgg®ns. Any such business interruption could mallgrand adversely affect our busine
financial condition and results of operations.

Our information technology systems are critical twr business. System integration and implementatiseues and system security ri:
could disrupt our operations, which could have a tedal adverse impact on our business and operatiegults.

We rely on the efficient and uninterrupted operatid complex information technology systems. Afloinmation technology systems
vulnerable to damage or interruption from a varieftysources. As our business has grown in sizecantplexity, the growth has placed, .
will continue to place, significant demands on oformation technology systems. To effectively mgmahis growth, our information syste
and applications require an ongoing commitmentigiicant resources to maintain, protect and ecbagxisting systems and develop
systems to keep pace with continuing changes wrimdition processing technology, evolving industng aegulatory standards and chan
customer preferences. We are in the process ofeimghting a multi-year, companyide program to transform certain business procest
extend established processes, including the transib a single enterprise resource planning ("BR¥gftware system to perform varic
functions. The implementation of additional funcidity in the ERP system entails certain risks|uding difficulties with changes in busin
processes that could disrupt our operations, saauaability to track orders and timely ship protd) manage our supply chain and aggre
financial and operational data. During transitieves must continue to rely on legacy information eyst, which may be costly or inefficie
while the implementation of new initiatives may rexthieve the anticipated benefits and may diverhagament's attention from ot
operational activities, negatively affect employeerale, or have other unintended consequencestiéuaaliy, if we are not able to accurat
forecast expenses and capitalized costs relatigt toroject, this may have an adverse impact orfioancial condition and operating results.

If the information we rely upon to run our busises were to be found to be inaccurate or unreligf¥ee fail to properly maintain o
information systems and data integrity, or if wé fa develop new capabilities to meet our businessds in a timely manner, we could t
operational disruptions, have customer disputesg tar ability to produce timely and accurate regpdrave regulatory or other legal proble
have increases in operating and administrative resge® lose existing customers, have difficultytiraating new customers or in implemen
our growth strategies, or suffer other adverse egmsnces. In addition, experienced computer progiens and hackers may be abl
penetrate our network security and misappropriate aonfidential information or that of third padiecreate system disruptions or c:
shutdowns. Furthermore, sophisticated hardwareogedating system software and applications thatitreer internally develop or proct
from third parties which we depend upon may contdéfiects in design and manufacture, including “Bugsd other problems that ¢
unexpectedly interfere with the operation of thetegn. The costs to eliminate or alleviate secupitgblems, viruses and bugs could
significant, and the efforts to address these problcould result in interruptions that may haveatenial adverse impact on our operations
revenues and operating results.

System upgrades and enhancements require signiésgenditures and allocation of valuable employs®urces. Delays in integrat

or disruptions to our business from implementatérihese new or upgraded systems could have a ialadelverse impact on our financ
condition and operating results.
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Additionally, we continuously upgrade our custonfacing software applications, specifically the @heck and MyAligntec
software. Software applications frequently contirors or defects, especially when they are firsbduced or when new versions are rele:
The discovery of a defect or error or the incomnighiy with the computer operating system and haadwconfigurations of customers in a |
upgraded version or the failure of our primary mfiation systems may result in the following conssges, among others: loss of revent
delay in market acceptance, damage to our repatatiancreased service costs, any of which coulkha material adverse effect on
business, financial condition or results of operadi

Furthermore, our business requires the securentiasi®n of confidential information over public merks. Because of the confiden
health information we store and transmit, secubitgaches could expose us to a risk of regulatotipraclitigation, possible liability ar
loss. Our security measures may be inadequateet@pr security breaches, and our business opesagiod profitability would be advers
affected by, among other things, loss of custoraatspotential criminal and civil sanctions if theng not prevented.

There can be no assurance that our process of wingrexisting systems, developing new systems ppstt our expanding operatio
integrating new systems, protecting confidentialgua information, and improving service levels lwibt be delayed or that additional syst:
issues will not arise in the future. Failure to qugtely protect and maintain the integrity of auformation systems and data may result
material adverse effect on our financial positi@sults of operations and cash flows.

Competition in the markets for our products is imse and we expect aggressive competition from @gstompetitors and othe
companies that may introduce new technologies ie fature.

Currently, our products compete directly againsdprcts manufactured and distributed by various @origs, both within and outside
U.S. Many of these manufacturers, including DanaBerporation, 3M, Sirona Dental Systems, Inc. anent®ply International, ha
substantially greater financial resources and natufing and marketing experience than we do ang imahe future, attempt to develop
orthodontic system similar to ours or combine tedbgies that make our product economically unatitvac The expiration of certain k
patents commencing in 2017 owned by us may resulidditional competition. Large consumer produanpanies may also enter
orthodontic supply market. Furthermore, we may fe@epetition in the future from new companies timaty introduce new technologies.
may be unable to compete with these competitorsomedor more of these competitors may render athmiglogy obsolete or economice
unattractive. If we are unable to compete effetyiwith existing products or respond effectivatyany products developed by new or exis
competitors, our business could be harmed. Incdeesmpetition has resulted in the past and makeérfuture result in volume discounting
price reductions, reduced gross margins, reducefitadsility and loss of market share, and reducetaeprofessionalsefforts and commitme
to expand their use of our products, any of whichld have a material adverse effect on our netmee®, volume growth, net income and s
price. We cannot assure you that we will be ablecimpete successfully against our current or futerapetitors or that competitive pressi
will not have a material adverse effect on our bess, results of operations and financial condition

If the security of our customer and patient informatids compromised, patient care could suffer, and weuld be liable for relate
damages, and our reputation could be impaired.

We retain confidential customer and patient infaiora in our processing centers. Therefore, it igicad that our facilities ar
infrastructure remain secure and that our facdied infrastructure are perceived by the markegpéand our customers to be secure. De
the implementation of security measures, our itfugsure may be vulnerable to physical bréas- computer viruses, programming ert
attacks by third parties or similar disruptive deobs. If we fail to meet our client®xpectations regarding the security of healtt
information, we could be liable for damages andreputation could be impaired. In addition, patiesate could suffer, and we could be liab
our systems fail to deliver correct informatioraitimely manner. Our insurance may not protectas this risk.

Our success depends in part on our proprietary taotogy, and if we are unable to successfully enferour intellectual property right:
our competitive position may be harmed. Litigatimtpims of this type is costly and could distraatrananagement and cause a decline
our results of operations and stock price.

Our success will depend in part on our ability taimain existing intellectual property and to obtaind maintain further intellectt
property protection for our products, both in th&sUand in other countries. Our inability to docsmld harm our competitive position. As
December 31, 2014 we had issued 352 U.S. patents, 97 pending W®@npapplications, and 257 foreign issued patemtd, 108 pendir
foreign patent applications.

We intend to rely on our portfolio of issued andhgi@g patent applications in the U.S. and in ottmmtries to protect a large part of
intellectual property and our competitive positidmawever, our currently pending or future patelihds may not result in the issuance
patents. Additionally, any patents issued to us bgghallenged, invalidated, held unenforceable,
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circumvented, or may not be sufficiently broad tevent third parties from producing competing pretdisimilar in design to our products
addition, any protection afforded by foreign pasemtay be more limited than that provided under Padents and intellectual prope
laws. We also rely on protection of our copyrightade secrets, knowew and proprietary information. We generally eritéo confidentialit
agreements with our employees, consultants andcollaborative partners upon commencement of aioalsitip with us; however, the
agreements may not provide meaningful protectioairesy the unauthorized use or disclosure of oudetraecrets or other confiden
information, and adequate remedies may not exigh#uthorized use or disclosure were to occur. i@aiility to maintain the proprieta
nature of our technology through patents, copysgittrade secrets would impair our competitiveaad&ges and could have a material ad
effect on our operating results, financial conditiand future growth prospects. In particular, dufaito protect our proprietary rights mi
allow competitors to copy our technology, which Icbadversely affect our pricing and market shaneaddition, in an effort to protect ¢
intellectual property we have in the past been mag in the future be involved in litigation. Theteotial effects on our business operat
resulting from litigation that we may participatethe future, whether or not ultimately determimeaur favor or settled by us, are costly
divert the efforts and attention of our managenaeit technical personnel from normal business operat

Litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties amdavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorabléng could include monetary damay
or, in cases where injunctive relief is soughtirganction prohibiting us from selling our productmny of these results from our litigation co
adversely affect our results of operations andkspoice.

While we believe we currently have adequate intdroantrol over financial reporting, we are requiretb assess our internal control ov
financial reporting on an annual basis and any futa adverse results from such assessment could tdsuh loss of investor confidence
our financial reports and have an adverse effect oar stock price.

Pursuant to the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002 and the rules and regulationsyrtyated by the SEC, we are required to furnisbunForn
10K a report by our management regarding the effengs of our internal control over financial repayt The report includes, among ot
things, an assessment of the effectiveness ofnbeimial control over financial reporting as of gl of our fiscal year, including a statemer
to whether or not our internal control over finalceieporting is effective. This assessment mustidedisclosure of any material weakness
our internal control over financial reporting idiied by management. While we believe our intewwitrol over financial reporting is currer
effective, the effectiveness of our internal colstiio future periods is subject to the risk that oantrols may become inadequate becau
changes in conditions, and, as a result, the degfreempliance of our internal control over finagcreporting with the existing policies
procedures may become ineffective. Establishirgiintg and maintaining an effective system of indé¢igontrol over financial reporting requi
significant resources and time commitments on thg pf our management and our finance staff, mayuire additional staffing ai
infrastructure investments, and would increase amsts of doing business. If we are unable to askattour internal control over financ
reporting is effective in any future period (oraifir auditors are unable to express an opinion ereffectiveness of our internal controls
conclude that our internal controls are ineffedtiwee could lose investor confidence in the accysand completeness of our financial repi
which could have an adverse effect on our stoatepri

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to atttaand retain key personnel, we may be unable tasome business opportunities
develop our products.

We are highly dependent on the key employees inatinical engineering, technology development, sakeaining and marketil
personnel and management teams. The loss of thieesprovided by those individuals may signifidamelay or prevent the achievemen
our product development and other business obgstand could harm our business. Our future suosékalso depend on our ability
identify, recruit, train and retain additional gfied personnel, including orthodontists. Few odbnptists are accustomed to working i
manufacturing environment since they are genetadiyned to work in private practices, universita®d other research institutions. Thus,
may be unable to attract and retain personnel with advanced qualifications necessary for the ¢urtdevelopment of o
business. Furthermore, we may not be successfidtaining our key personnel or their services. ¢ are unable to attract and retain
personnel, our business could be materially harimedddition, our ability to recognize revenue be tirect sales of our inti@al scanne
depends in part upon our ability to schedule aaff s@inings. The loss of the services providedhmse individuals or our ability to timely h
such personnel in sufficient numbers based on olumve growth, may harm our business. If we areblent retain our trainers or replace <
individuals with persons having equivalent techhiegpertise and qualifications, or if we are unatdesuccessfully instill such techni
expertise in newly hired personnel or accurategdmmt the number of such personnel needed, ouwemehues could be materially harmed.

If we infringe the patents or proprietary rights afther parties or are subject to a patent infringent claim, our ability to grow ot
business may be severely limited.

Extensive litigation over patents and other intglial property rights is common in the medical devindustry. We have been sued
infringement of third party’s patents in the past ave may be the subject of patent or other litigrain the future.
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From time to time, we have received and may irftiwgre receive letters from third parties drawing attention to their patent rights. While
do not believe that we infringe upon any valid @amdorceable rights that have been brought to dentan, there may be other more pertil
rights of which we are presently unaware. The d&feand prosecution of intellectual property suitierference proceedings and related |
and administrative proceedings could result in &uiigl expense to us and significant diversiorefddrt by our technical and managen
personnel. An adverse determination of any litmatr interference proceeding to which we may bexarparty could subject us to signific
liabilities. An adverse determination of this natwould also put our patents at risk of being iitkzieéd or interpreted narrowly or require u
seek licenses from third parties. Licenses mayeravailable on commercially reasonable terms al ain which event, our business woulc
materially adversely affected.

We maintain single supply relationships for certaiof our key machines and materials technologies,daaur business and operatil
results could be harmed if supply is restrictedends or the price of raw materials used in our mdaaturing process increases.

We are highly dependent on manufacturers of speedlscanning equipment, rapid prototyping machimesin and other advanc
materials, as well as the optics, electronic amgmomechanical components of our intral scanners. We maintain single supply relatigos
for many of these machines and materials technedodm particular, our CT scanning and stereolithpgy equipment used in our alig
manufacturing and many of the critical componentstlie optics of our scanners are provided by eisglppliers. We are also committe:
purchasing the vast majority of our resin and paynthe primary raw materials used in our manufaeguprocess for clear aligners, fror
single source. If these or other suppliers encadimancial, operating or other difficulties orafir relationship with them changes, we migh
be able to quickly establish or qualify replacemsatirces of supply and could face production iofgions, delays and inefficiencies
addition, technology changes by our vendors couddugt access to required manufacturing capacityequire expensive, time consum
development efforts to adapt and integrate new pegeint or processes. Our growth may exceed the itgpafcone or more of the
manufacturers to produce the needed equipment atdriads in sufficient quantities to support ouowth. Conversely, in order to sec
supplies for production of products, we sometimetreinto noneancelable purchase commitments with vendors, whakid impact ot
ability to adjust our inventory to reflect decligirmarket demands. If demand for our products is than we expect, we may experie
additional excess and obsolete inventories anaioed to incur additional charges and our profitgbmay suffer. In the event of technolc
changes, delivery delays, or shortages of or is&®a price for these items, our business andthrprospects may be harmed.

We depend on a single contract manufacturer and pligr of parts used in our iTero scanner and anysdiption in this relationship ma
cause us to fail to meet the demands of our custsrend damage our customer relationships.

We rely on a third party manufacturer in Israeh$semble our iTero scanner. As a result, if thisl fharty manufacturer fails to deliver
components or if we lose its services, we may bablento deliver our products in a timely manner and business may be harmed. ,
difficulties encountered by the third party mantfmer with respect to hiring personnel, and mamitej acceptable manufacturing stand:
controls, procedures and policies could disruptahility to deliver our products in a timely mannEnding a substitute manufacturer ma
expensive, time-consuming or impossible and coafdilt in a significant interruption in the supplfyaur intra-oral scanning products. A
failure by our contract manufacturer that resuitsiélays in our fulfillment of customer orders nwause us to lose revenues and suffer da
to our customer relationships.

We primarily rely on our direct sales force to salur products, and any failure to maintain our dio¢ sales force could harm o
business.

Our ability to sell our products and generate resnprimarily depends upon our direct sales forghinvour North American ar
international markets. As of December 31, 2014our North American sales organization consistell approximately 28
people. Internationally, we had approximately 1&@@mgle engaged in direct sales and sales suppoft@scember 31, 2014We do not ha\
any longterm employment contracts with the members of argct sales force. The loss of the services praliole these key personnel n
harm our business. If we are unable to retain @ectisales force personnel or replace them witlividuals of equivalent technical exper
and qualifications, or if we are unable to sucadbsinstill such technical expertise or if we fad establish and maintain strong relations
with our customers within a relatively short periofitime, our net revenues and our ability to maimtmarket share could be materi
harmed. In addition, due to our large and fragnttictestomer base, we may not be able to providefalur customers with product supg
immediately upon the launch of a new product. Assault, adoption of new products by our customeay tre slower than anticipated and
ability to grow market share and increase our ee¢mues may be harmed.
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If our distributor relationships are not successfubur ability to market and sell our products woulde harmed and our financi
performance will be adversely affecte

We depend on relationships with distributors fag tharketing and sales of our products in variousggaphic regions, and we hav
limited ability to influence their efforts. Relyingn distributors for our sales and marketing coludstm our business for various reas

including:

agreements with distributors may terminate preneffidue to disagreements or may result in litigatietween the partne
we may not be able to renew existing distributaeagents on acceptable ter

our distributors may not devote sufficient resosrtmethe sale of produc

our distributors may be unsuccessful in marketingproducts

our existing relationships with distributors mayegude us from entering into additional future agaments with oth
distributors; and

we may not be able to negotiate future distribagneements on acceptable tel

Complying with regulations enforced by the FDA amdher regulatory authorities is an expensive anth#-consuming process, and a
failure to comply could result in substantial pertads.

Our products are considered medical devices andubject to extensive regulation in the U.S. aridrimationally. FDA regulations ¢
wide ranging and govern, among other things:

product design, development, manufacturing anéhtg
product labeling

product storag

preimarket clearance or appro\

complaint handling and corrective actic

advertising and promotion; a

product sales and distributic

Our failure to comply with applicable regulatoryguérements could result in enforcement action lgyRDA or state agencies, which r
include any of the following sanctions:

warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent des@ed civil penaltie
repair, replacement, refunds, recall or seizureunfproducts
operating restrictions or partial suspension altslhutdown of productio

refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance enparket approval of new products, new intended uses)odifications to existir
products;

withdrawing clearance or praarket approvals that have already been grantel

criminal prosecutiol

If any of these events were to occur, they couldrhaur business. We must comply with facility régiton and product listir
requirements of the FDA and adhere to applicablali@uSystem regulations. The FDA enforces its @uabystem regulations throu
periodic unannounced inspections. Our failure ke tsatisfactory corrective action in response ta@verse inspection or the failure to con
with applicable manufacturing regulations coulduted enforcement action, and we may be requicefind alternative manufacturers, wh
could be a long and costly process. Any FDA enfioreet action could have a material adverse effectson
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Before we can sell a new medical device in the UoB.market a new use of or claim for an existimgdoict we must obtain FC
clearance or approval, unless an exemption ap@@ibtining regulatory clearances or approvals canablengthy and timeensumin
process. Even though the devices we market havainelot the necessary clearances from the FDA, we lpeaynable to maintain st
clearances in the future. Furthermore, we may lablento obtain the necessary clearances for nevcekethat we intend to market in
future. Our inability to maintain or obtain reguat clearances or approvals could materially hanmbusiness.

In addition, as part of the Dodelank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectioh, fiee SEC adopted disclosure requiren
regarding the use of certain minerals, known adlicominerals, which are mined from the Democra#epublic of Congo and adjoini
countries, as well as procedures regarding a matwié's efforts to identify and discourage thersimg of such minerals and metals prodt
from those minerals. Additional reporting obligatsoare being considered by the European Union.ifipeementation of the existing U
requirements and any additional requirements iropicould affect the sourcing and availability afteds used in the manufacture of a lim
number of parts (if any) contained in our produEis: example, the implementation of these disclsaguirements may decrease the nu
of suppliers capable of supplying our needs fotaitemetals, thereby negatively affecting our @pilo obtain products in sufficient quanti
or at competitive prices. Our material sourcindpisad based and mutiered, and we may be unable to conclusively vetify origins for a
metals used in our products. We may suffer findrani@ reputational harm if customers require, aedane unable to deliver, certification 1
our products are conflict free. Regardless, we witlur additional costs associated with compliamgth these disclosure requireme
including time-consuming and costly efforts to detime the source of any conflict minerals usedun groducts.

If compliance with healthcare regulations becomesstly and difficult for our customers or for us, wemay not be able to grow o
business.

Participants in the healthcare industry are suligeixtensive and frequently changing regulatiomden numerous laws administerec
governmental entities at the federal, state andll@mvels, some of which are, and others of whidcyrbe, applicable to our business.
response to perceived increases in health care rostcent years, Congress passed health camenréfgislation that President Obama sic
into law in March 2010. This legislation containsamy provisions designed to generate the revenueessary to fund the cover:
expansions. The most relevant of these provisioastteose that impose fees or taxes on certaineglited industries, including medi
device manufacturers. Effective January 1, 2013, m&dical device manufacturer, we were requirguhtoan excise tax on the price for wt
we sell our medical devices in the U.S. This Medidavice Excise Tax ("MDET") applies to most medidavices, including our produc
which could have a material, negative impact onresults of operations and our cash flows.

During March 2014, Align had extensive discussiaith the IRS and they informed us that our aligrems not subject to the MDE
however, our scanners are still subject to the MD&S a result of these discussions, beginning inckl2014, we ceased expensing and pe
the MDET for aligners, which reduced our general administrative expense for the year ended DeceBhe2014by approximately $6
million compared to the prior year period. The srdiax expense was $7.1 million for the year erdletember 31, 2013; however, MDET
year endeDecember 31, 201das reduced to $0.3 million due to the changeschab®ve. Additionally, we are in process of claignm$6.!
million refund of MDET paid in 2013 related to caligners; however, because this claim is subjecev@ew and approval by the IRS, we h
not recorded a receivable as the outcome of thi mugndeterminable. Any future changes in theliappility of the MDET as it applies to
or refunds of amounts previously paid will be refma as an additional expense or a credit to thedlimlated statement of operations in
period in which it becomes probable and reasona&siymable. The MDET is included in general and auihiative expenses in 1
consolidated statements of operations.

Furthermore, our healthcare provider customersabs@ subject to a wide variety of laws and regataithat could affect the nature
scope of their relationships with us. The healtagaarket itself is highly regulated and subjecttianging political, economic and regulat
influences. Regulations implemented pursuant toHealth Insurance Portability and Accountability tAtHIPAA"), including regulation
affecting the security and privacy of patient heedire information held by healthcare providers #rdr business associates may require
make significant and unplanned enhancements ofvacdt applications or services, result in delaysancellations of orders, or result in
revocation of endorsement of our products and sesvby healthcare participants. The effect of HIP#& newly enforced regulations on
business is difficult to predict, and there canngeassurance that we will adequately address teeéss risks created by HIPAA and
implementation or that we will be able to take atege of any resulting business opportunities.
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Extensive and changing government regulation of thealthcare industry may be expensive to complyhvéihd exposes us to the risk
substantial government penaltie

In addition to medical device laws and regulatiamsmerous state and federal healthgatated laws regulate our business, cove
areas such as:

. storage, transmission and disclosure of medicaltinétion and healthcare recol

. prohibitions against the offer, payment or receiptemuneration to induce referrals to entitiesvpdimg healthcare services
goods or to induce the order, purchase or recomatimdof our products; and

. the marketing and advertising of our prodt

Complying with these laws and regulations couldeRpensive and timeensuming, and could increase our operating casteduce ¢
eliminate certain of our sales and marketing aigigior our revenues.

We face risks related to our international saleagciuding the need to obtain necessary foreign regfiolry clearance or approvals.

Outside of North America, we currently sell our gueots in Europe, Asia Pacific, Latin America and Middle East and may expand i
other countries from time to time. For sales of products outside the U.S., we are subject to doregégulatory requirements that vary wic
from country to country. The time required to obtalearances or approvals required by other casmmay be longer than that requirec
FDA clearance or approval, and requirements foh aprovals may differ from FDA requirements. Weynb& unable to obtain regulat
approvals in one or more of the other countriesvitich we do business or in which we may do businedbe future. We may also inc
significant costs in attempting to obtain and me&imforeign regulatory approvals. If we experiedetays in receipt of approvals to market
products outside of the U.S., or if we fail to neeethese approvals, we may be unable to markepmducts or enhancements in internati
markets in a timely manner, if at all.

Our business exposes us to potential product lidpitlaims, and we may incur substantial expenskweé are subject to product liabili
claims or litigation.

Medical devices involve an inherent risk of prodiigility claims and associated adverse publiditde may be held liable if any prod
we develop or any product that uses or incorporatgsof our technologies causes injury or is otlegviound unsuitable. Although we inte
to continue to maintain product liability insuraneglequate insurance may not be available on agepierms, if at all, and may not proy
adequate coverage against potential liabilitiegpréduct liability claim, regardless of its merit eventual outcome, could result in signific
legal defense costs. These costs would have theteff increasing our expenses and diverting managés attention away from the operat
of our business, and could harm our business.

Historically, the market price for our common stodias been volatile.

The market price of our common stock could be sikie wide price fluctuations in response to vasidactors, many of which &
beyond our control. The factors include:

. quarterly variations in our results of operationd &quidity;

. changes in recommendations by the investment contynomin their estimates of our net revenues agrafing result:
. speculation in the press or investment communitceming our business and results of operal

. strategic actions by our competitors, such as miaunouncements or acquisitic

. announcements of technological innovations or nesdyicts by us, our customers or competitors

. general economic market conditic

In addition, the stock market in general, and tharket for technology and medical device companieparticular, have experienc
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haveerofbeen unrelated to or disproportionate to theratipg performance of tho
companies. These broad market and industry faotagsseriously harm the market price of our comnionks regardless
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of our operating performance. Historically, clastian litigation is often brought against an isgugompany following periods of volatility
the market price of a company’s securities.

Future sales of significant amounts of our commotosk may depress our stock price.

A large percentage of our outstanding common stisckurrently owned by a small number of significatbckholders. The
stockholders have sold in the past, and may sdheénfuture, large amounts of common stock oveatingly short periods of time. Sales
substantial amounts of our common stock in the ipullarket by our existing stockholders may advegrsdfect the market price of ¢
common stock. Such sales could create public pgorepf difficulties or problems with our businessd may depress our stock price.

If our goodwill or long-lived assets become impairave may be required to record a significant chartp earnings.

Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles e tUnited States (“U.S. GAAP"Wwe review our goodwill and asset group
impairment when events or changes in circumstaimcksate the carrying value may not be recoveraidiglitionally, goodwill is required to |
tested for impairment at least annually. The gatiie and quantitative analysis used to test golbdné dependent upon various assump
and reflect managemeatbest estimates. Changes in certain assumptiohsling revenue growth rates, discount rates, eganmultiples ar
future cash flows may cause a change in circumstamaicating that the carrying value of goodwilltbe asset group may be impaired.
may be required to record a significant chargeaimiags in the financial statements during thegakem which any impairment of goodwiill
asset group are determined.

Changes in, or interpretations of, accounting rulesd regulations, could result in unfavorable accoting charges.

We prepare our consolidated financial statement®irformity with U.S. GAAP. These principles ardgt to interpretation by the Si
and various bodies formed to interpret and creppeapriate accounting policies. A change in thed&igs can have a significant effect on
reported results and may even retroactively afifieeviously reported transactions. Our accountiolicigs that recently have been or ma
affected by changes in the accounting rules afellasvs:

. revenue recognition; a
. leases

If we fail to manage our exposure to global finaradi and securities market risk successfully, our epeng results and financia
statements could be materially impacte

The primary objective of most of our investmentities is to preserve principal. To achieve thigestive, a majority of our marketal
investments are investment grade, liquid, fixecbme securities and money market instruments méraied in U.S. dollars. If the carryi
value of our investments exceeds the fair valud,tha decline in fair value is deemed to be othartemporary, we will be required to wr
down the value of our investments, which could mallg harm our results of operations and financiahdition. Moreover, the performance
certain securities in our investment portfolio etetes with the credit condition of the U.S. finimhcsector. In a current unstable cn
environment, we might incur significant realizedrealized or impairment losses associated withetigestments.

We have adopted a shareholders rightgdan to limit the possibility that we are acquiredyhich may mean that a transaction tr
shareholders are in favor of or are benefited by ynae preventec

Our Board of Directors has the authority to isspeta 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock and teraéte the rights, preferenc
privileges and restrictions of such shares withenut further vote or action by our shareholders. date, our Board has designated 200
shares as Series A participating preferred stoadomection with our shareholder rightdan. The issuance of preferred stock under ce
circumstances could have the effect of delayingreventing an acquisition of Align or otherwise adsely affecting the rights of the holder:
our stock. The shareholder righfgan may have the effect of rendering more diffi@rl discouraging an acquisition of our companychhk
deemed undesirable by our board of directors. Hageholder rightsplan may cause substantial dilution to a persogroup attempting 1
acquire us on terms or in a manner not approvedubyoard of directors, except pursuant to an afterditioned on the negation, purchas
redemption of the rights issued under the sharehaights’ plan.

Our effective tax rate may vary significantly froqeriod to period.

Various internal and external factors may have fable or unfavorable effects on our future effextiax rate. These factors include,
are not limited to, changes in tax laws, regulaiand/or rates, notieductible goodwill impairments, changing interptieins of existing te
laws or regulations, changes in the relative pripas of revenues and income before taxes in the
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various jurisdictions in which we operate that hal#ering statutory tax rates, the future levefstax benefits of stock option deductit
relating to incentive stock options and employeelspurchase plans, settlement of income tax gualitd changes in overall levels of pre
earnings.

In June 2009, the Costa Rica Ministry of Foreigadk, an agency of the Government of Costa Ricatepaa twelve year extension
various income tax incentives, which were previguglanted in 2002. The incentive tax rates will iexpn various years beginning in 20
Under these incentives, all of the income in Cdsitza during these twelve year incentive periodsubject to reduced rates of Costa |
income tax. In order to receive the benefit of thexentives, we must hire specified numbers ofleyges and maintain certain minim
levels of fixed asset investment in Costa Ricavdfdo not fulfill these conditions for any reasonr incentive could lapse, and our incom
Costa Rica would be subject to taxation at high&es, which could have a negative impact on ouratipey results. The Costa Rica corpo
income tax rate that would apply, absent the ineest is 30% for 2014. As a result of these ina&sj our income taxes were reduced by §
million and $27.7 million for the year ended Dec&mB1, 2014 and 2013, respectively, representingnefit to diluted net income per shar
$0.40 and $0.34 in 2014 and 2013, respectivelyoriretaxes were reduced by $9.7 million in bothttiiee months ended December 31, :
and 2013, representing a benefit to diluted netrime per share of $0.12 in each period. Our subgidalsrael is under audit by the local
authorities for calendar years 2006 through 2012.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We occupy several leased and owned facilities wathl office and manufacturing area of over 870,800are feet. ADecember 3:
2014 , the significant facilities were occupied@fws:

Expiration of

Location Lease/Own Primary Use Segment lease
San Jose, California Lease Office for corporaadyuarters, research & development an@lear Aligner and September 201
administrative personnel Scanner
San Jose, Costa Rica Lease Office for administrative personnel, manufacturpggsonnel, anc Clear Aligner and November 2017
customer care Scanner
Juarez, Mexico Own Manufacturing and office fiagifor manufacturing and Clear Aligner and N/A
administrative personnel Scanner
Or Yehuda, Israel Lease Manufacturing and office for manufacturing, admirasve Scanner October 2017
personnel, and research and development
Amsterdam, The Lease Office for international headquarters, safebsmarketing and Clear Aligner April 2017
Netherlands administrative personnel
Moscow, Russia Lease Office for research and development Clear Aligner and  April 2017
Scanner

In February 2015, we purchased another facilityuarez, Mexico in order to expand our manufactudagacity to support additior
growth. We believe that our facilities are adequateneet current requirements and that additionadutbstitute space will be available
needed to accommodate any expansion of operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Securities Class Action Lawsuit

On November 28, 2012, plaintiff City of Dearbornigtes Act 345 Police & Fire Retirement System fikethwsuit against Align, Thom
M. Prescott (“Mr. Prescott”), Align’s President ai@hief Executive Officer, and Kenneth B. Arola (“MArola”), Align's former Vict
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officeithim United States District Court for the NortheristBict of California on behalf of a purpori
class of purchasers of our common stock (the “SeéesirAction”). On July 11, 2013, an amended complaint was filddchvnamed the sar
defendants, on behalf of a purported class of @gets of our common stock between January 31, a0d2ctober 17, 2012. The amen
complaint alleged that Align, Mr. Prescott and Mirola violated Section 10(b) of the Securities Exahe Act of 1934 and Rule 1@b-
promulgated thereunder, and that Mr. Prescott andAvbla violated Section 20(a) of the Securitiescliange Act of 1934. Specifically, 1
amended complaint alleged that during
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the purported class period defendants failed te @k appropriate goodwill impairment charge relatedhe April 29, 2011 acquisition
Cadent Holdings, Inc. in the fourth quarter of 20flie first quarter of 2012 or the second quarfeR@l2, which rendered our financ
statements and projections of future earnings nadliefalse and misleading and in violation of USAAP. The amended complaint sot
monetary damages in an unspecified amount, costatiorneys’ fees. On December 9, 2013, the caaritgd defendantshotion to dismis
with leave for plaintiff to file a second amendeainplaint. Plaintiff filed a second amended compglaim January 8, 2014 on behalf of the s
purported class. The second amended complainsdtagesame claims as the amended complaint. OnsA@fy 2014, the court granted
motion to dismiss without leave to amend. On Sepwm22, 2014, Plaintiff filed a notice of appeattie Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. Ali
intends to vigorously defend itself against theldegations. Align is currently unable to predicetbutcome of this amended complaint
therefore cannot determine the likelihood of logs @stimate a range of possible loss, if any.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuit

On February 1, 2013, plaintiff Gary Udis filed aaskholder derivative lawsuit against several ofAl current and former officers &
directors in the Superior Court of California, Courof Santa Clara. The complaint alleges that @ported income and earnings w
materially overstated because of a failure to tynvelite down goodwill related to the April 29, 20&tquisition of Cadent Holdings, Inc.,
that defendants made allegedly false statementsecoing our forecasts. The complaint asserts vargtate law causes of action, incluc
claims of breach of fiduciary duty, unjust enrichtheand insider trading, among others. The compkaeks unspecified damages on beh:
Align, which is named solely as nominal defendagdiast whom no recovery is sought. The complaist aeeks an order directing Aligr
reform and improve its corporate governance aretiiad procedures, and seeks restitution in an wifggzk amount, costs, and attornejesés
On July 8, 2013, an Order was entered stayingdisvative lawsuit until an initial ruling on ourrgt motion to dismiss the Securities Acti
On January 15, 2014, an Order was entered stalgisglérivative lawsuit until an initial ruling oruosecond motion to dismiss the Secur
Action. On October 14, 2014, an Order was entetayirg) this derivative lawsuit until a ruling byeNinth Circuit in the Securities Acti
discussed above. Align is currently unable to prettie outcome of this complaint and therefore camtetermine the likelihood of loss |
estimate a range of possible losses.

In addition, in the course of Align's operationdigA is involved in a variety of claims, suits, gstigations, and proceedings, incluc
actions with respect to intellectual property clajmpatent infringement claims, government invesitgs, labor and employment claims, bre
of contract claims, tax, and other matters. Regaslbf the outcome, these proceedings can havdvansea impact on us because of def
costs, diversion of management resources, and fdlowrs. Although the results of complex legal qaedings are difficult to predict &
Align's view of these matters may change in tharkuis litigation and events related thereto unfaldyn currently does not believe that th
matters, individually or in the aggregate, will maally affect Align's financial position, result$ operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globak8&eMarket under the symbol “ALGNThe following table sets forth the rar
of high and low per share sales prices as repéotegbch period indicated:

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2014:

Fourth quarter $ 57.7. % 43.25
Third quarter $ 57.7¢ % 51.2¢
Second quarter $ 575 $ 47.2:
First quarter $ 65.1C $ 50.31
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Fourth quarter $ 60.0C $ 41.8:
Third quarter $ 49.0¢ % 36.9:
Second quarter $ 38.7¢ % 29.5:
First quarter $ 33.7C % 25.61

On February 20, 2015, the closing price of our camratock on the NASDAQ Global Market was $56.81 gieare. As of January .
2015 there were approximately 110 holders of reafrdur common stock. Because the majority of shares of outstanding common si
are held by brokers and other institutions on Hetfastockholders, we are unable to estimate tia fmumber of stockholders represente:
these record holders.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsuo common stock. We currently intend to retairy future earnings to fund 1
development and growth of our business and domatipate paying any cash dividends in the forebkefuture.

Performance Graph

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary iy ahour previous or future filings with the SE@e tfollowing information relating
the price performance of our common stock shallbmtleemed “filed” with the SEC or “Soliciting Maial” under the Securities Exchar
Act of 1934, as amended, or subject to Regulatith &r 14C, or to liabilities of Section 18 of thedhange Act except to the extent
specifically request that such information be teshias soliciting material or to the extent we sfiegily incorporate this information |
reference.

The graph below matches our cumulativgesr total shareholder return on common stock whh cumulative total returns of 1
NASDAQ Composite index, and the S&P 1500 Compadialth Care Equipment & Supplies index. The graplkis the performance o
$100 investment in our common stock, in the peeupr and the index (with the reinvestment of allidiinds) from December 31, 200¢
December 31, 2014 .
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Among Align Technology, Inc., the NASDAQ Composite Index,
and S&P 1500 Composite Health Care Equipment & Supplies
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*$100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Following is a summary of stock repurchases forttinee months ended December 31, 2014

Total Number of

Shares Repurchased Approximate Dollar

| Corshares | padper | SSpanolpubly e rohaser
Period Repurchased Share W Under the Program®
October 1, 2014 through October 31, 2014 280,01! $ 47.5¢ 280,01! $ 209,257,95
November 1, 2014 through November 30, 2014 85,58¢ $ 53.31 85,58¢ $ 204,695,59
December 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 51,90( $ 56.4( 51,90( $ 201,768,47

@ On April 23, 2014, we announced that our BoafDirectors had authorized a stock repurchaserprogpursuant to which we m
purchase up to $300.0 million of our common stoekrahe next three years, with $100.0 million cdttamount authorized to be purche
over the first twelve months. Any purchases undiés stock repurchase program may be made, from-trtiene, pursuant to open mar
purchases (including pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plgsjatelynegotiated transactions, accelerated stock repseshélock trades or derivat
contracts or otherwise in accordance with applieddtieral securities laws, including Rule 10b-18hef Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

In addition, in January 2015, our Board of Diresthas authorized the next $100 million under troegram to be repurchased which
anticipate completing within twelve months. We eote finance future stock repurchases with curoaish on hand.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth the selected comisiid financial data for each of the years in the-year period endeBecember 3:
2014. The selected consolidated financial data shbeldead in conjunction with the Consolidated FimanStatements and accompany
notes andManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdtion and Results of OperationsWe have derived the statemen
operations data for the year ended December 34 20013 and 2012 and the balance sheet data@socaimber 31, 2014 and 20&8m the
consolidated audited financial statements incluelsdwhere in this Annual Report on FormK.O-The statement of operations data for the
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the balaee¢ dhta as of December 31, 2012011 and 2010 were derived from the consolic
audited financial statements that are not includdtiis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues $ 76165 $ 66020t $ 560,04: $ 479,74. $ 387,12t
Gross profit 2 $ 57844 $ 498,10 $ 416,38 $ 361,28 $ 303,41
Income from operations’ 193,57¢ 94,21: 85,59: 90,36( 102,73
Other income (expense), net (3,207%) (1,079 (1,29¢) (419 (731)
Net income before provision for income taxgs 190,36¢ 93,13¢ 84,29¢ 89,94 102,00:
Provision for income taxes 44,53 28,84 25,60¢ 23,22¢ 27,75(
Net incomée® $ 14583 $ 64,29t $ 58,69: $ 66,71¢ $ 74,25
Net income per share
Basic $ 181 $ 08C $ 07: % 0.8¢ $ 0.9¢
Diluted $ 177 $ 0.7¢ $ 071 $ 0.8z % 0.9t
Shares used in computing net income per share:
Basic 80,75¢ 80,55 80,52¢ 77,98¢ 75,82t
Diluted 82,28: 82,58¢ 83,04( 80,29 78,08(
December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 45534¢ $ 369,33¢ $ 330,020 $ 236,69¢ $ 295,63
Total assets 987,99° 832,14 756,31 649,26 476,94:
Total long-term liabilities 33,41¢ 22,83¢ 19,22 10,36¢ 6,222
Stockholders’ equity $ 752,77 $ 633,97( $ 581,31 $ 490,78 $ 377,74

! Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 20dllidie eight months of revenues from our Scannats $ervices segment

approximately $28.0 million as a result of our asgion of Cadent Holdings, Inc. on April 29, 201Net revenues for the year en
December 31, 2010 include a $14.3 million reledg@eviously deferred revenue for Invisalign Teeplacement aligners.

Gross profit include

e $1.7 million out of period adjustment in 2013 (Se&t&\1 in the Financial Statemet

*  $0.2 million acquisition and integration related t50$0.9 million amortization of intangible assetsd $0.5 million of exit cos
in 2012
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4

$0.4 million acquisition and integration related t0s50.7 million amortization of intangible asseaad $0.8 million for ex
costs in 2011

$14.3 million release of previously deferred revefarelnvisalign Teen replacement aligners and $0ifion for amortizatiol
of prepaid royalties related to the litigation kattent with Ormco in 2010

Income from operations, net income before provis@mrincome taxes, and net income includes thefatg, net of taxe

$1.8 million out of period income tax adjustmen®dl4 (see Note 1 in the Financial Statem:

$40.7 million and $26.3 million of goodwill adong-ived asset impairment, respectively, in 2

$1.9 million, net of tax, out of period adjustmemt2013 (see Note 1 in the Financial Statem

$36.6 million of goodwill impairment, $1.3 millioncguisition and integration related costs, $4.5 ionllof amortization ¢
intangible assets, and $0.8 million of exit coat2012

$10.0 million acquisition and integration relatedstsy $3.2 million of amortization of intangible ets and exit costs of $:
million in 2011

$14.3 million release of previously deferred revefardnvisalign Teen replacement aligners in 2

$0.8 million of amortization of prepaid royaltiedated to the litigation settlement with Ormco inl2

$4.5 million related to the class action litigatisettlement with Leiszler in 20

$8.7 million benefit related to an insurance setdetrover a disputed coverage under our generalityabmbrella that was ni
previously reimbursed by our insurer related to@hthoClear litigation in 2010

Working capital is calculated as the differencensetn total current assets and total current |igdsl
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our finahaondition and results of operations should badr together with Selecte
Consolidated Financial Data” and our consolidatedrfcial statements and related notes includedvilse in this Annual Report on Form 10
K.

Overview

Align Technology, Inc. is a global medical deviaapany that advanced the invisible orthodonticsketawith the introduction of tt
Invisalign System in 1999. Today, we are focuseddenmigning, manufacturing and marketing innovateehnologyrich products to he
dental professionals achieve the clinical resuitsytexpect and deliver effective, convenient cgtidge dental treatment options to t
patients. Align Technology was founded in March 28&d is headquartered in San Jose, California efftbes worldwide. Our internatior
headquarters are located in Amsterdam, the NetiuglaVe have two operating segments: (1) Cleamaligknown as the Invisalign Syste
and (2) Scanner and Services ("Scanner"), knowthesTero intraeral scanners and OrthoCAD services (which we prely referred to
Scanner and CAD/CAM Services ("SCCS")).

We received FDA clearance in 1998 and began osir émmmercial sales of Invisalign to U.S. orthodkistin 1999 followed by U..
General Practitioner Dentists ("GPs") in 2002. Otlee next decade, we introduced Invisalign to theopean market and Japan, ac
distribution partners in Asia Pacific, Latin Ameaajcand Europe Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"), anttoduced a full range of treatm
options including Invisalign Express 10, Invisalifiaen, Invisalign Assist, and Vivera Retainers. 21, we launched significant new alig
and software features across all Invisalign prositicat make it easier for doctors to use Invisabignmore complex cases, and introdt
Invisalign to the People’Republic of China. In 2013, we launched Smartd;rétee next generation of Invisalign clear alignsaterial, whicl
became the new standard aligner material for Itigisgoroducts in North America, Europe and othdeiinational markets where we h
obtained regulatory approval. Over the last sevgears’we have continued to build upon our technology arpertise to deliver enhanc
clinical innovations aimed at helping our customieest some of the most challenging cases. Thes®vations, both launched in early 2C
include Invisalign G5, specifically designed foedtment of deep bite malocclusion, as well as Clet® Pro, the next generation Invisa
treatment software tool designed to help Invisapgoviders achieve their treatment goals. Mostmdgein November 2014, we announced
upcoming release of Invisalign G6 clinical innowais for first premolar extraction.

We also sell iTero intra-oral scanners and prowddmputer-aided design and compuaéted manufacturing ("CAD/CAM") servict
Intra-oral scanners provide a dental “chair-sigéitform for accessing valuable digital diagnosigl dreatment tools, with potential
enhancing accuracy of records, treatment efficieacyl the overall patient experience. We beliewgetare numerous benefits for custor
and the opportunity to accelerate the adoptiomeisklign through interoperability with our intaal scanners. The use of digital technolc
such as CAD/CAM for restorative dentistry or inioff restorations has been growing rapidly and {oted scanning is a critical part
enabling these new digital technologies and proedin dental practices. In late 2012, we commbyciaunched the Invisalign Outcot
Simulator, the first Invisalign chaside application powered by the iTero scanner.ifteactive application provides dentists and adthist:
an enhanced platform for patient education ance@ged to increase treatment acceptance by hefaitignts visualize the benefits poss
with Invisalign treatment. In January 2014, we amged that the 3M™ True Definition scanner was ifjedl for use with Invisalign ca:
submissions. This qualification enables Invisaligoviders with a True Definition scanner to submitdigital impression in place of
traditional PVS impression as part of the Invisalgase submission process. The 3M True Definit@anser is currently the only thirghrty
scanner that has been qualified for use with Iigisdreatment. We continue to believe in an opgsteams approach to digital impressions,
are committed to working with other intra-oral seang companies interested in developing interopgbtabor use with Invisalign treatment.

The Invisalign System is offered in more than 8Qntdes and has been used to treat more than 3i@rmpatients. Our iTero intrafal
scanner, which is primarily sold in North Amerigarovides dental professionals with an open choicesdnd digital impressions to ¢
laboratory-based CAD/CAM system or to any of theerthan 2,400 dental labs worldwide.

Our goal is to establish Invisalign clear alignassthe standard method for treating malocclusiah tanestablish the iTero intreral
scanner as the preferred scanning device for 3iatigrans, ultimately driving increased produabgitibn by dental professionals. We int
to achieve this by continued focus and executioouwfstrategic growth drivers set forth in fBesiness Strategsection in our Annual Rept
on Form 10-K.
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The successful execution of our business stratadyoar results in 2014 and beyond may be affecyea tumber of other factors, wh
are updated below:

. New Products, Feature Enhancements and Technotogyation. Product innovation drives greater treatment iptadility anc
clinical applicability, and ease of use for our tonsers, which supports adoption of Invisalign irithpractices. Increasi
applicability and treating more complex cases meguithat we move away from individual features torencomprehensi
solutions so that Invisalign providers can moradfm@ably treat the whole case, such as with InigsaG5 for deep bite treatme
Launched in February 2014, Invisalign G5 was ergie@ to help doctors achieve even better clinicdt@nes when treati
patients with deep bitesa- prevalent orthodontic problem. In North AmericafFebruary 2014, we also launched ClinCheck
the next generation Invisalign treatment softwama,tdesigned to provide more precise control diraal tooth position and
help Invisalign providers achieve their treatmemalg. We intend to launch ClinCheck Pro in our otteuntry markets in the fii
quarter of 2015. Most recently, in November 2014, amnounced the upcoming release of Invisalign kbécal innovations fa
first premolar extraction. Invisalign G6 is engireg to improve clinical outcomes for orthodontieatment of severe crowdi
and bimaxillary protrusion. Invisalign G6 clinicainovations will be available to Invisalignained providers beginning in the f
quarter of 2015 with limited commercialization, leabed by full commercialization in Asia Pacific, Eqpe, Middle East ar
Africa ("EMEA"), and Latin America geographies thghout 2015 and North America in early 2016. Weével that over tt
longterm, clinical solutions and treatment tools wiltiease adoption of Invisalign; however, it isidifft to predict the rate
adoption which may vary by region and channel.

. Invisalign Utilization rates. Our goal is to establish Invisalign as the treattmof choice for treating malocclusion ultima
driving increased product adoption and frequencysa by dental professionals, also known as "atitn rates.” Our quartel
utilization rates for the previous 9 quarters aréallows:

Invisalign Utiheation Rates®
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" Invisalign Utilization rates = # of cases shippéddid by # of doctors cases were shipped to

Total utilization in the fourth quarter of 2014 wésl cases per doctor which is flat when compaoethé third quarter of 201
however, in the fourth quarter of 2013, utilizatictes increased for our International doctors tvhi@s offset by a decrease
utilization by our North American orthodontic dodoThe decrease by our North American orthodattittors reflects a seaso
decline in the number of teerged cases shipped as summer is typically the siustason for orthodontists with practices
have a high percentage of adolescent and teendigatpaas many parents want to get their teenagarted in treatment befc
the start of the school year. On a year-oyemr basis, total utilization of 4.4 cases per doah the fourth quarter of 20
remained flat compared to the
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fourth quarter of 2013. We expect that over theyfarm our utilization rates will gradually improve a result of advancement:
product and technology, which continue to strengtbar doctors'clinical confidence in the use of Invisalign, alowih the
implementation of our Go-TMarket strategy (as discussed below). However, xyyee that our utilization rates may fluctt
from period to period.

Number of new Invisalign doctors traine We continue to expand our Invisalign customerebidsough the training of ne
doctors. In 2014, Invisalign growth was driven paitity by increased utilization by our North Amenicarthodontist doctors a
International doctors as well as by the continugpaasion of our customer base as we trained a ¢6t@|440 new Invisalig
doctors, of which 56% were trained internationa®Ps are one of the keys to driving growth in thalasegment, and, in 20:
we launched Invisalign Fundamentals, a new traigiogrse, designed to improve practice integratioh iacrease utilization fi
newly trained doctors. We have implemented this hmwisalign Fundamentals program across North Acaeand will look fo
opportunities to adjust our international trainprggrams as we work to help our GP practices wdddwnore successfully adt
Invisalign into their practices. We believe thaistnew training approach has the potential to iaseethe number of docti
submitting cases 90-days post-training, as wethasiumber of cases submitted per doctor.

International Clear Aligner.We will continue to focus our efforts towards inmseng adoption of our products by de
professionals in our direct international markétsernational volume increased 28.6% in 2014 frodd 2 driven primarily b
growth in Europe as well as by strong performanciné Asia Pacific region. In 2015, we are contiiguio expand in our existi
markets through targeted investments in sales ageeand professional marketing and education pnogjralong with consum
marketing in selected country markets. We expdetiimtional revenues to continue to grow at a faste than North America f
the foreseeable future due to our continued investrin international market expansion, the siz¢hef market opportunity, a
our relatively low market penetration in this ragio

Go-To-Market Evolutionln order to provide more comprehensive sales andcgecoverage, we are currently implementini
updated go-tonarket strategy with an expanded team and newtsteumn North America. In order to ensure our Nohimerice
sales and marketing team can increase timaffioe and help each practice become more sucdesgéuare in the process
adding approximately 50 sales team members in 2B#5majority of which are in place as of the dafte¢his Form 10K. We
believe that these investments in a refined gméoket strategy and the strategic deployment ofenpeople will improv
adoption and utilization of Invisalign by our custers.

Operating ExpensedVe expect operating expenses to increase in 20hpaeed to 2014 due in part

= the increase in North American sales force covethgeussed above, as well as additions to our $afes in EMEA an
Asia Pacific regions

= infrastructure investments, including a projectriplement a new enterprise resource planning systeioh we started
late 2014 with expected "go-live" for various maekind subsidiaries throughout 2016; and

= investments in new products and markets like oocemdy announced intention to develop new prodémtsientists wh
treat mild to moderate obstructive sleep apnea earighappliance therapy.

We believe that these investments will positioriamcrease our revenue and continue to grow oukehahare.

Increase in Invisalign Selling PricWe have historically invested in research and agraknt and continuous product innovat
In order to continue and even accelerate this mibidmovation cycle, we recently announced a piriceease of $50 per treatme
or approximately 3%, on Invisalign Full and Invigal Teen products, effective April 1, 2015 in NoAlmerica. The prices fi
Invisalign Assist, Invisalign Express 10 and Inlitga Express 5 products will remain unchanged.

Foreign exchange rates Although the U.S. dollar is our reporting curreney portion of our net revenues and income
generated in foreign currencies. Net revenues gewhie generated by subsidiaries operating outditteedJ.S. are translated it
U.S. dollars using exchange rates effective dutheg respective period and as a result are affdojedhanges in exchan
rates. We have generally accepted the exposuradoarge rate movements without using derivativarfaial instruments
manage this risk; therefore, both positive and tieganovements in currency exchange rates agadiastS. dollar will contint
to affect the reported amount of net revenues aoohie in our consolidated financial statementshénthird and fourth quarter
2014 combined, our net revenues were negativehaatga by $3.1 million, and we incurred foreign emcy translation net los:
of $4.1 million in Interest and Other Income (Expehnnet, primarily due to the weakening of the Eamd other foreign currenc
relative to the
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U.S. Dollar. If the U.S. Dollar continues to strémgn compared to other foreign currencies, inclgdime Euro, our report
amount of net revenues and income will be negativepacted compared to the same period last year.

. Medical Device Excise Te. During March 2014, Align had extensive discussiovith the IRS and they informed us that
aligners are not subject to the medical devicesextax ("MDET") which we had been paying and expenén general ar
administrative expenses in the consolidated statesva# operations since January 1, 2013; howevarscanners are still subj
to the MDET. As a result of these discussions, fr@gg in March 2014, we ceased expensing and papmd/IDET for aligner:
In June 2014, we received a $1.2 million refund FDET paid in 2014 related to our aligners whichiueed general al
administrative expenses for the three months eddeé 30, 2014. For the year ended December 31, 20DET expense wi
lower by approximately $6.8 million compared to fhréor year. Additionally, we are in process ofiglang a $6.8 million refun
of MDET paid in 2013 related to our aligners; hoeewbecause this claim is subject to review andagb by the IRS, we ha
not recorded a receivable as the outcome of thi mughcertain. Any future changes in the appliighbof the MDET as it applie
to us or refunds of amounts previously paid willrbeorded as an additional expense or a crediteaaonsolidated statemen
operations in the period in which it becomes pridalnd reasonably estimable.

. Stock Repurchase Authorizatiddn April 23, 2014, we announced that our Board wé€ors had authorized a stock repurc
program pursuant to which we may purchase up t®$3fillion of our common stock over the next thyesars, with $100
million of that amount authorized to be purchaseérdhe first twelve months. Any purchases undir dtock repurchase progr
may be made, from time-to-time, pursuant to openmkatapurchases (including pursuant to Rule 10bSdhng), privately-
negotiated transactions, accelerated stock repseshablock trades or derivative contracts or otlswn accordance wi
applicable federal securities laws, including RU0ib-18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The mogdoes not obliga
Align to acquire any particular amount of commoocktand depending on market conditions or othaonfadhese purchases n
be commenced or suspended at any time, or from-trtiene without prior notice. Thauthorization or continuance of ¢
repurchases under stock repurchase programs isigent on a variety of factors, including our ficéal condition, results
operations, business requirements, and our Boadre€tors' continuing determination that such kteepurchases are in the k
interests of our stockholders and in compliancé it laws and applicable agreements. Additiondtgre can be no assura
that our stock repurchase program will have a beiaéfimpact on our stock priceAs of December 31, 2014, there
approximately $201.8 million remaining under therih@014 stock repurchase program, of which $1.Bioni was repurchased
January 2015. In addition, in January 2015, ourr8@é Directors has authorized the next $100.0iomlunder the program to
repurchased which we anticipate completing witlwelve months. We expect to finance future stockureipases with curre
cash on hand.

Results of Operations

Net revenues by Reportable Segment Comparison feeirYEnded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

We group our operations into two reportable segmeiear Aligner segment and Scanner and Servagpaent.

. Our Clear Aligner segment consists of our Invisaligystem which includes Invisalign Full, Teen anskiat ("Full Products"
Express/Lite ("Express Products"),Vivera retainalsng with our training and ancillary products farating malocclusion.

. Our Scanner and Services segment consists r@f-anal scanning systems and additional servicedladble with the intrasral
scanners that provide digital alternatives to tlaglitional cast models. This segment includes ®era scanner and OrthoC/
services.

Net revenues for our Clear Aligner segment by negind product and our Scanner segment by regiotihéoyear ended December 31, 2014
2013 and 2012 is as follows (in millions):
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Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change

Clear Aligner
Region and Channel

North America $ 446.6  $ 408.2 $ 384 9.4% $ 408.2 $ 3611 $ 47.1 13.C%

International 219.7 161.7 $ 58.C 35.9% 161.% 124.¢ 36.¢ 29.€ %

Invisalign non-case net revenues 46.2 47 $ 1k 3.4% 447 30.7 14.C 45.€ %
Total Clear Aligner net revenués $ 7128 % 614.¢ $ 97.¢ 15% $ 614.¢ $ 516.¢ $ 98.C 19.C%
Product

Invisalign Full Products $ 585.7 $ 497t $ 88. 17.7% $ 4975 % 434 $ 63.1 14.5 %

Invisalign Express Products 80.€ 72.4 8.2 11.2% 72.4 51.t 20.¢ 40.€ %

Invisalign non-case net revenues 46.2 447 1kt 3.4% 447 30.7 14.C 45.€ %
Total Clear Aligner net revenues $ 7125 $ 614.€¢ $ 97.¢ 15% $ 614.¢ $ 516.t $ 98.C 19.C %
Scanner:
Region

North America $ 487 $ 452 $ 34 75% $ 452 $ 42z $ 31 7.2%

International 0.4 0.2 0.1 33.2% 0.2 1.z 0.9 (75.0%
Total Scanner net revenues $ 49.1 $ 456 $ 3E 77% $ 456 $ 434§ 2.2 5.1%
Total net revenues $ 7616 $ 660.2 $101. 15.4% $ 660.2 $ 560.C $100.z 17.€ %

Changes and percentages are based on actual valgetain tables may not sum or recalculate duectanding.

1 In the fourth quarter of 2012, we identified anoerthat the actual case refinement usage rate aveer lthan our estimate and, as a re
we recorded a net revenue release of $4.9 milliemipusly deferred for case refinement of which2$&illion was a correction of an er
of which $4.5 million related to the first threeagters for the fiscal year 2012 and $0.7 milliofated to the fiscal year 2011. 1
adjustment was not material to any quarter witlit2 The net amount of $4.9 million is not materiathe results of operations for twe
months ended December 31, 2012.

Clear Aligner Case Volume by Channel and Product

Case volume data which represents Invisalign chgen&nts by region and product, for the year erdedember 31, 2014 , 20Hhc¢
2012 as follows (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Region and Channel 2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
North American Invisalign 338.t 313.¢ 24.€ 7.8% 313.¢ 276.7 37.2 13.2%
International Invisalign 139t 108.t 31.C 28.6% 108.t 86.¢ 21.7 25.(%
Total Invisalign case volume 478.( 422.¢ 55.€ 13.2% 422.¢ 363.t 58.¢ 16.2%
Product
Invisalign Full Product Group 395.1 343.¢ 51.7 15.1% 343.¢ 304.¢ 38.€ 12.1%
Invisalign Express Product
Group 82.¢ 79.C 3.€ 4.%% 79.C 58.7 20.2 34.€%
Total Invisalign case volume 478.( 422.¢ 55.€ 13.2% 422.¢ 363.t 58.¢ 16.2%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valgetain tables may not sum or recalculate duectanding.
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Fiscal Yeai2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Total net revenues increased by $101.4 milliondh&as compared to 20p8marily as a result of Invisalign case volumewgtio acros
all regions and products as well as increased dtigis non-case revenue.

Clear Aligner

Clear Aligner North America net revenues increaseds38.4 million , or 9.4% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to Invtga
case volume growth of approximately $32.1 milliccrass all channels and products, and, to a lesgente higher average selling pri
("ASP") which contributed approximately $6.3 mitlido the increase in net revenues. The increagsh was primarily a result of increa:
mid-course correction revenue from higher usage asagedl product mix shift towards higher priced lalign products in 2014 comparec
2013. This increase was offset in part by highenmmtional discounts in 2014 as compared to 2013.

Clear Aligner international net revenues incredsg®&58.0 million , or 35.9%in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily driven by baligr
case volume growth of $46.2 million along with heglASP which contributed approximately $11.8 millim the increase in net revenues.
increase in ASP was primarily due to the impactnfracquiring our distributor in the Asia Pacific i@y on April 30, 2013 when we bec
recognizing direct sales of Invisalign productsisal that region at our full ASP rather than thecdunted ASP under the distributor agreen
as well as the price increases which were effeclisrg 2013 along with a favorable impact from fgreexchange rates. Foreign exchange
had a favorable impact to revenues in 2014 as cmdpa 2013, despite the weakening of the Eurtnéold.S. dollar in the last six months
2014.

Invisalign non-case net revenues, consisting dafitrg fees and ancillary product revenues, incrédse$1.5 millionin 2014 as compar:
to 2013 primarily due to the consolidation of ourv&fa product shipments in North America from fa@ltipments per year to one shipn
along with increased Vivera volume both in North éima and international.

Scanner and Services

Scanner and Services net revenues increased byn#Bidh , or 7.7%, in 2014 compared to 2013 due to an increase th bervice
revenue as well as scanner revenue.

The increase in services revenue was primarilytdugn increase in the volume of CAD/CAM servicesuitng from a larger install¢
base of scanners. The increase in scanner revesi@nimarily due to an increase in the number ahsers recognized offset in part by lo
scanner ASP as a result of promotional discountgedisas permanent price reductions. The increas® partially offset as 2013 had higher
revenues due to the release of $1.4 million of meeepreviously reserved for the iTero upgrade @mwgwhich was completed in the f
quarter of 2013.

Fiscal Yeai2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Total net revenues increased by $100.2 milliondh3as compared to 20p2imarily as a result of Invisalign case volumewgtio acros
all regions and products as well as increased dtigis non-case revenue.

Clear Aligner

Clear Aligner North America net revenues increalsgd47.1 million, or 13.0%, in 2013 compared to 2Qtimarily due to Invisalig
case volume growth of approximately $48.5 milliarass all channels and products, offset in partlomer average selling prices ("AS|
which decreased net revenues by approximately $llibn. The decrease in ASP was a result of produix shift towards lower price
Invisalign Express products combined with the remedeferral for free midourse correction as a result of our policy chaingéune 201:
Beginning June 15, 2013, we included up to three fid-course correction orders in our list pricednvisalign Full and Invisalign Teen.

Clear Aligner international net revenues incredsg®36.9 million, or 29.6%, in 2013 compared to 2@timarily driven by Invisalig
case volume growth of $31.1 million along with hegiASP, which resulted in approximately $5.8 milliacrease in net revenues. The incr
in ASP was primarily due to the impact from acqgriour distributor in the APAC region on April 32013, as well as a favorable impac
foreign exchange rates. By bringing the APAC reglorct, we began to recognize
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direct sales of Invisalign products sold in thagioe at our full ASP rather than the discounted ASmer the distributor agreement. -
increase in ASP was offset in part due to a prothitshift towards lower priced Invisalign Lite ghacts.

Invisalign nonease net revenues, consisting of training feesaacdlary product revenues, increased by $14.0anillor 45.6%, in 201
as compared to 2012 primarily due to the consabdabf our Vivera product shipments in North Ameritom four shipments per year to
shipment along with increased Vivera volume bothNorth America and international.

Scanner and Services

Scanner and Services net revenues increased byriich, or 5.1%, in 2013 compared to 2012 prirhadue to an increase in scan
revenues, partially offset by a decrease in CAD/CA#dvices net revenues as a result of the disamiton of the OrthoCAD iQ servic
during the fourth quarter of 2012. The increases¢anner revenues in 2013 was as a result of threase in number of scanners s
recognized in 2013 as compared to 2012 as weliasstease of $1.4 million of revenue previoushereed for the new iTero upgrade prog
which was completed in the first quarter of 2013.

Cost of net revenues and gross profit (in millions)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Clear Aligner
Cost of net revenues $ 149.7 % 129.6 $ 19¢ $ 129.¢ $ 1106 $ 19.2
% of net segment revenues 21.(% 21.1% 21.1% 21.%%
Gross profit $ 562.¢ % 484.¢ % 781 % 484.6 % 406.C % 78.¢
Gross margin % 79.(% 78.9% 78.% 78.€%
Scanner
Cost of net revenues $ 336 % 32 % 1.3 $ 32 % 33.C % (0.9)
% of net segment revenues 68.2% 70.% 70.9% 75.%
Gross profit $ 15 % 132 % 23 % 13.2 % 104 $ 2.8
Gross margin % 31.7% 29.1% 29.1% 24.1%
Total cost of net revenues $ 1832 % 162.1 $ 211 $ 162.1 % 143¢  $ 18.F
% of net revenues 24.1% 24.€% 24.€% 25.1%
Gross profit $ 578<  $ 498.1 $ 80.2 $ 498.1 $ 416.2 % 81.7
Gross margin % 75.% 75.4% 75.2% 74.2%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valggtain tables may not sum or recalculate duestanding.

Cost of net revenues for our Clear Aligner and 8earsegments includes salaries for staff involvethe production process, the cos
materials, packaging, shipping costs, depreciaiiooapital equipment used in the production proces®rtization of acquired intangible as
from Cadent, training costs and stock-based congiems

Fiscal Yeari2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Clear Aligner

The gross margin percentage improved slightly ibd22€ompared to 2013 due to higher ASP. The ASPamgment was mostly offset
increased manufacturing costs in 2014 when compar@13 which benefited from an out of period athjuent (see Note 1 in the Finan
Statements).

Scanner

The gross margin percentage increased in 2014 cehga 2013 due to increased absorption of manufiact spend from high
production volumes, lower product costs due to pebanix and lower inventory reserves. These wertégily offset by a lower ASP as a res

of price reductions.
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Fiscal Year2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012
Clear Aligner

The gross margin percentage improved slightly it®26ompared to 2012 primarily due to lower warracgts as a result of redu
warranty claims corresponding with the change inroigd-course correction policy in June 2013. In additigmss margins benefited to a le:
extent from an out of period adjustment (see Natethe Financial Statements) which was partiaffget by increased material costs, prime
related to our new SmartTrack material. In additiae incurred higher inventory reserves for oumprligner material which has be
substantially replaced by our new SmartTrack alignaterial.

Scanner
The gross margin percentage increased in 2013 aethga 2012 primarily as a result of the releaseesEnue for amounts previou
reserved in 2012 for the new 2.9 iTero scanneragmprogram which was completed in the first quarte2013. In addition, we had low

manufacturing costs as a result of the closureuofNew Jersey facility, which was completed by ®eto2012, and a reduction in train
costs; however, these savings were partially offgdtigher third party labor service costs and lomanufacturing cost absorption.

Sales and marketing (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Sales and marketing $ 217 % 180.C % 372 $ 180.C $ 152.C $ 28.C
% of net revenues 28.5% 27.2% 27.2% 27.1%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valggtain tables may not sum or recalculate duectanding.

Sales and marketing expense includes sales fotemamketing compensation (including travelated costs), media and advertis
clinical education, trade shows and industry eveptsduct marketing, stodkased compensation and allocations of corporatehese
expenses including facilities and IT.

Sales and marketing expense increased in 2014 cethpa 2013 primarilydue to higher compensation costs of $19.4 millioe ¢t
increased headcount, including the additional heawic from the acquisition of our APAC distributdn addition, we incurred high
advertising and marketing expenses as a resutianéased advertising production and marketing cagnpacombined with higher costs
trade shows and our Europe and APAC Summits.

Sales and marketing expense increased in 2013 cehpa 2012 due primarily to higher compensatioate®f $16.4 million large
related to increased headcount, including additiengloyees as a result of the acquisition of oBA& distributor, higher sales commissi
and stockbased compensation. In addition, we incurred higliertising and media costs primarily related ébwork and television mec
campaigns.

General and administrative (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
General and administrative $ 114¢ % 112.¢ % 2C % 112.¢ % 99.: % 13.t
% of net revenues 15.1% 17.1% 17.1% 17.7%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valggtain tables may not sum or recalculate duestanding.

General and administrative expense primarily inekiddministrative personnel compensation costsdiray stockbased compensati
outside consulting services, legal expenses, digi@t and amortization expense, the medical degiadse tax ("MDET") effective Janue
2013 and allocations of corporate overhead expéanskgling facilities and IT.

General and administrative expense for 2014 inecta®mpared to 2013 primarily due to higher stbaked compensation of $
million as well as increases in consulting expemsebscredit card processing fees; however, theseases were offset
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by lower MDET of $6.8 million as our aligners are longer subject to the excise tax in 2014 as waellower outside litigation costs.
previously noted, in March 2014, the IRS informedthiat our aligners are not subject to the MDETictvlwe had been paying and expen
in general and administrative expenses in the dimladed statements of operations since Januar@13;zhowever, our scanners are still sul
to the MDET but are not material. There is no exgeim the current year period for MDET related tw aligners. Additionally, we are
process of claiming a $6.8 million refund of MDE®@ig in 2013 related to our aligners; however, beeahis claim is subject to review
approval by the IRS, we have not recorded a reb&vas the outcome of the audit is uncertain. Artyre changes in the applicability of
MDET as it applies to us or refunds afmounts previously paid will be recorded as an tafdil expense or a credit to the consolid
statement of operations in the period in whicheésdmes probable and reasonably estimable.

General and administrative expense for 2013 inect@a®mpared to 2012 primarily due to higher comptos related costs of $:
million as a result of higher stodlased compensation expense and increased sakdidionally we incurred $7.1 million of medical dee
excise tax as a result of new tax regulations &ffedanuary 1, 2013. These costs were partiafsebby lower outside legal expenses.

Research and development (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Research and development $ 52.¢ % 441 % 87 $ 441 % 42¢ % 1.2
% of net revenues 6.€% 6.7% 6.7% 7.1%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valggtain tables may not sum or recalculate duestanding.

Research and development expense includes thenpetselated costs and outside consulting expensesiasstavith the research &
development of new products and enhancements &irexiproducts, corporate allocations, facility dadility related costs and stodlase:
compensation expense.

Research and development expense increased d@idgcdmpared to 2013 almost entirely due to higloenpensation costs as a re
of higher bonuses, stock-based compensation aadesaprimarily due to additional headcount.

Research and development expense increased slidjrityg 2013 compared to 2012 due to higher faedlitelated expenses prima
related to our Russia research and developmeiitysand compensation costs offset in part by lowlarical and product innovation resea
program costs.

Impairment of goodwill (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Impairment of goodwill $ — % 407 $ (40.7) $ 407 % 36.€ 9 4.1
% of net revenues —% 6.2% 6.2% 6.5%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valggtain tables may not sum or recalculate duestanding.

There was no impairment of goodwill charge recontetthe year ended December 31, 2014.

During the first quarter of 2013, we determinedtttiee goodwill for our Scanner and Services repgrtunit should be tested
impairment between annual tests due to changdweicdmpetitive environment for intaal scanners which included announcements of
low-priced scanners targeted at orthodontist and GEstiém North America. As a result, this causedtasower our expectations for grov
and profitability for our Scanner and Services répg unit that would more likely than not redud tfair value of our Scanner and Serv
reporting unit below its carrying amount. As a itestfi our analysis, we recorded a goodwill impaimneharge of $40.7 million in the fii
quarter of 2013, none of which was deductible #forpurposes. Refer to Note 5 for details of thedimpent analysis.

During the third quarter of 2012, we determinedt ttihee goodwill for our Scanner and Services repgrtunit should be tested
impairment between annual tests since an event@ttor circumstances changed that would moreylikedn not reduce the fair value of
Scanner and Services reporting unit below its dgagramount. As a result of our analysis, we recdrdepreliminary goodwill impairme
charge during the third quarter of 2012 of $24.Wliom and an additional $11.9 million during
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the fourth quarter of 2012, representing a changestimate upon finalizing our 2013 annual budgetess, for a total impairment charg:
$36.6 million. None of the goodwill impairment charge was dedletfor tax purposes, and there was no additiomghirment that result
from our annual goodwill impairment test during tbarth quarter of 2012. Refer to Note 5 for detaf the impairment analysis.

Impairment of long-lived assets (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Impairment of long-lived assets $ —  $ 26.5 % (26.9) $ 26.5 — 3 26.5
% of net revenues —% 4.C% 4.C% —%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valigetain tables may not sum or recalculate dueotanding.

There was no impairment of long-lived assets chezgerded in the year ended December 31, 2014.

The impairment of our long-lived assets in 2013 weesresult of changes in the competitive enviromirfer intra-oral scanners whi
included announcements of new I@reed scanners targeted at orthodontist and GRistieém North America that caused us to lower
expectations for growth and profitability for ouce®ner and Services reporting unit. As a resultdetermined that the carrying value of
longdived assets was not recoverable and thereforerdedoan impairment charge of $26.3 million. ReferNote 5 for details of tt
impairment analysis.

Interest and Other income (expense), net (in mitig):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Interest and other income (expense), |$ (3.2 % 1) $ 2.1 $ 2.1 $ 1.9 $ 0.2

Interest and other income (expense), net, inclddesign currency translation gains and losses résteincome earned on cash, (
equivalents and investment balances and other Haiseeus charges.

Interest and Other income (expense), net, in 2@tedised due to higher foreign exchange lossesaplyms a result of the weakening
the Euro to the U.S. dollar offset slightly by iaased interest income earned on higher balanasbf cash equivalents and investments.

Interest and Other income (expense), net, in 26tBased slightly due to increased interest incearaed on higher balances of ¢
cash equivalents and investments offset slightlhigher foreign exchange losses.

Provision for income taxes (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Change 2013 2012 Change
Provision for income taxes $ 445 3 28 % 157 $ 28 % 256 % 3.2
Effective tax rates 23.2% 31.(% 31.(% 30.4%

Changes and percentages are based on actual valggtain tables may not sum or recalculate duestanding.

Our provision for income taxes was $44.5 millioB88 million and $25.6 million for the year endeddember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2(
respectively. This represents effective tax rafez304%, 31.0% and 30.4%, respectively. Our effectax rates in these fiscal years differ f
the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% dueetdain foreign earnings, primarily from Costa &iavhich are subject to a lower tax r
partially offset by higher state income tax experbe tax impact of certain stotlased compensation charges and unrecognized tafitb:
Our provision for income taxes for the year endeddnber 31, 2014 also reflects a negative impaot &t $1.8 million adjustment relatec
prior years, which was recorded during the threathended June 30, 2014. The effective tax ratthéoyear ended December 31, 2013
2012 also reflects a non-deductible goodwill impeEnt charge of $40.7 million and $36.6 million,pestively.

As of December 31, 2014, approximately $260.9 orilliof undistributed earnings from nthS. operations held by our fore
subsidiaries are designated as indefinitely reitecbsutside the U.S. Accordingly, no additionaBlincome taxes or
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additional foreign withholding taxes have been med thereon. We have sufficient cash reservélser).S. and do not intend to repatriate
foreign earnings. We intend to use the undistrithet@rnings for local operating expansions and tetrioeal operating working capital need:
these earnings were distributed in the form ofdéwids or otherwise, or if the shares of the relef@eign subsidiaries were sold or othen
transferred, we would be subject to additional WnSome taxes subject to an adjustment for forédgncredits and foreign withholding tax
Determination of the amount of unrecognized detetas liability related to these earnings is na@gpicable.

We assess the likelihood that we will be able tdize our deferred tax assets quarterly. Shoulcetbe a change in our ability to rea
our deferred tax assets, our tax provision woutdgase in the period in which we determine thet mhore likely than not that we cannot ree
our deferred tax assets. We consider all availalsidence, both positive and negative, includingdnisal levels of income, expectations
risks associated with estimates of future taxabt®ine and ongoing prudent and feasible tax plansirggegies in assessing the need
valuation allowance. If it is more likely than rtbt we do not expect to realize our deferred &pets, we will increase our provision for te
by recording a valuation allowance against the miefetax assets that we estimate will not ultimated realizable. The available posit
evidence at December 31, 2014 included historipatating profits, a projection of future income ailler objectively verifiable evidence.
of December 31, 2014, we believed, except for tiwm$ noted in the subsequent paragraph, that isneas likely than not that the amoun
deferred tax assets recorded on the balance skiEbéewealized.

As of December 31, 2014, we had a valuation all@gaof $32.5 million against our deferred tax asadteh primarily relates to forei
net operating loss and capital loss carryforwalid®e valuation allowance decreased from December2313 by $2.6 million due to $I
million related to foreign net operating loss céoryards and $0.8 million related to the releaséhefvaluation allowance related to Japan
China deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2014, we have California net ojregdbss carryforwards of approximately $37.3 roifij which, if not used, will beg
to expire in 2015. These net operating loss carwdiods are subject to an annual limitation undériml Revenue Code 8382, but are expt
to be fully realized. At December 31, 2014, we I@adifornia research credit carryforwards of appnaiely $3.8 million that can be carr
forward indefinitely.

We account for uncertain tax positions pursuariLiihoritative guidance based on a tstep approach to recognize and measure unc
tax positions taken or expected to be taken inxareéturn. We first determine whether it is moreelik than not that a tax position will
sustained upon audit based on its technical méfitstax position meets the more-likely-thaat recognition threshold it is then measure
determine the amount of benefit to recognize infthancial statements. The tax position is measa®the largest amount of benefit th:
more than 50 percent likely to be realized uponmate settlement. We adjust our uncertain tax wostdue to changing facts ¢
circumstances, such as the closing of a tax aoditefinement of estimates due to new informatibo.the extent the final outcome of th
matters is different than the amounts recordedy siiiferences will impact our tax provision in o@pnsolidated Statements of Operatior
the period in which such determination is made.

During fiscal year 2014, the amount of gross unge&ed tax benefits increased by $6.4 million. To@l amount of unrecognized
benefits was $33.1 million as of December 31, 2CGdllof which would impact our effective tax raterecognized. We have electec
recognize interest and penalties related to unrdzed tax benefits as a component of income taxesg@. The penalties and interest accru
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are immaterial. Wead@xpect any significant changes to the amofiohrecognized tax benefits within -
next twelve months.

During the first quarter of 2014, we adopted ASU2Q1, "Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefienva Net Operating La
Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Creditr@forward Exists (a consensus of the FASB Emerdgsues Task Force)." The adop
of this standard had the effect of reducing ourwals for uncertain tax positions by $8.4 millievith an offsetting reduction in our long te
deferred tax assets, but had no effect on net ircom

We file U.S. federal, U.S. state, and AdrB. tax returns. Our major tax jurisdictions ar& federal and the State of California. For

federal and state tax returns, we are no longgesutn tax examinations for years before 2000.n\Vf&tv exceptions, we are no longer sut
to examination by foreign tax authorities for yelefore 2007.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We fund our operations from product sales and tbeqeds from the sale of our common stock. Aseddnber 31, 2014 and 20.1®€
had the following cash and cash equivalents, and-¢érm and long-term investments (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 199,87 $ 242 95!
Short-term investments 254,78 127,04(
Long-term investments 147,89. 101,97¢
Total $ 602,55( $ 471,97:

Cash flowqin thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net cash flow provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 226,89¢ $ 185,97t $ 133,77¢

Investing activities (201,62) (210,73) (78,300

Financing activities (66,42() (38,177 10,20¢

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and gashatents (1,939 (504) 28

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ (43,08) $ (63,43) $ 65,71:

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $602.6 milliorcash, cash equivalents, and short-term and teng-marketable securities. C
equivalents and marketable securities are compridechoney market funds and highly liquid debt instents which primarily incluc
commercial paper, corporate bonds, U.S. dollar demated foreign corporate bonds, U.S. governmeeneyg bonds, municipal bonds
asset-backed securities.

As of December 31, 2014 , approximately $338.2iamlbf cash, cash equivalents and short-term amgHierm marketable securities v
held by our foreign subsidiaries. Amounts heldfdmgign subsidiaries are generally subject to ihSome taxation on repatriation to the
The costs to repatriate our foreign earnings tdtf& would likely be material; however, our inténto permanently reinvest our earnings f
foreign operations, and our current plans do nquire us to repatriate them to fund our U.S. openatas we generate sufficient dome
operating cash flow and have access to externdirigrunder our current revolving line of credit.

On April 23, 2014, we announced that our Board ak&iors had authorized a stock repurchase prograrsuant to which we m
purchase up to $300.0 million of our common stoekrahe next three years, with $100.0 million ddittamount authorized to be purche
over the next twelve months. Any purchases underdtock repurchase program may be made, from tintiere, pursuant to open mar
purchases (including pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plgmsjatelynegotiated transactions, accelerated stock repseshalock trades or derivat
contracts or otherwise in accordance with appliedbtieral securities laws, including Rule 1bof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
part of this repurchase program, on April 28, 2044,entered into an accelerated share repurchaseragnt ("ASR") with Goldman, Sach:
Co. to repurchase $70.0 million of our common stddhder the terms of the ASR, we agreed to repseeha total $70.0 million of o
common stock and received an initial delivery opraximately 1.0 million shares based on the themetui market price, which were retir
The ASR was completed on July 29, 2014 with a faellvery of approximately 0.4 million shares. Wszeived a total of 1.4 million sha
under the ASR for an average purchase price pee sifé$51.46. The final number of shares repurdhasas based on our volumeeightec
average stock price during the term of the tramsactess an agreed upon discount. In additionindu2014, we repurchased on the c
market approximately 0.6 million shares of our canmnstock at an average price of $50.93 per shaeckjding commissions, for an aggre
purchase price of approximately $28.2 million. Adlpurchased shares were retired. As of DecembeR@14, we have $201.8 milli
remaining under the April 2014 stock repurchasgam, $1.8 million of which we expect to purchaserahe next three months. In additi
in January 2015, our Board of Directors has autledrithe next $100.0 million under the program tordygurchased which we anticip
completing within twelve months. We expect to finariuture stock repurchases with current cash ad.ha
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On March 22, 2013, we entered into a credit facilitth Wells Fargo Bank. The credit facility proes for a $50.0 million revolving line
credit, with a $10.0 million letter of credit suflit, and has a maturity date on March 22, 2016. drhdit facility also requires us to mainta
minimum unrestricted cash balance of $50.0 millaod comply with specific financial conditions andrfermance requirements. The |
bears interest, at our option, at a fluctuating r@r annum equal to the daily amenth adjusted LIBOR rate plus a spread of 1.75%r
adjusted LIBOR rate (based on one, three, six etvsmonth interest periods) plus a spread of 1.75%o0fABecember 31, 2014, we had
outstanding borrowings under this credit faciliydavere in compliance with the conditions and penfnce requirements.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsakemd marketable securities combined with ourtiwescash flows from operatio
will be sufficient to fund our operations and staelpurchases for at least the next 12 months. lameunable to generate adequate opel
cash flows, we may need to suspend our stock repsecprogram or seek additional sources of caphitaugh equity or debt financir
collaborative or other arrangements with other canigs, bank financing and other sources in ordegdtize our objectives and to continue
operations. There can be no assurance that wéavitlble to obtain additional debt or equity finagcon terms acceptable to us, or at a
adequate funds are not available, we may need ke imasiness decisions that could adversely aff@cbperating results such as modificati
to our pricing policy, business structure or operet. Accordingly, the failure to obtain sufficiefoinds on acceptable terms when needed |
have a material adverse effect on our businessitsed operations and financial condition.

Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , cash floom bperations of $226.9 millioresulted primarily from our net income
approximately $145.8 million as well as the followi
Significant non-cash activities
»  Stock-based compensation was $39.8 miltelated to our equity incentive compensation grdtbeemployees and directc
» Deferred taxes of $25.5 milligerimarily due to the utilization of deferred taxsats
» Excess tax benefits from our share-based conagiensarrangements of $21.4 million

» Depreciation and amortization of $17.9 millieated to our fixed assets and acquired intangibéet:

Significant changes in working capital
* anincrease of $27.2 millian accounts receivable which is a result of thegase in net revenu

* an increase of $22.7 million in accrued and otbagterm liabilities primarily due to an increase ircame tax payable along w
other accruals due to timing of payment, and

* anincrease of $15.8 millidn deferred revenues corresponding to the increéasevenue:

For the year ended December 31, 2013, cash floms foperations of $186.0 millionesulted primarily from our net income
approximately $64.3 million as well as the follogin

Significant non-cash activities
» Impairment of goodwill related to our Scanned &ervices reporting unit was $40.7 million
« Impairment of long-lived assets related to ocarsher and Services reporting unit was $26.3 millio
» Excess tax benefits from our share-based conagiensarrangements of $27.1 million
»  Stock-based compensation was $26.4 miltelated to our equity incentive compensation grdbeemployees and directc
» Depreciation and amortization of $16.8 millicated to our fixed assets and acquired intangibéet:

» Deferred taxes of $21.2 milligerimarily due to the utilization of deferred taxsats

Significant changes in working capital

e anincrease of $12.0 millian accounts receivable due to the increase inaw@nue:
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» anincrease of $9.7 million in accrued and otbegterm liabilities due to compensation and bonusesuats along with higher sa
rebates, and

» an increase of $14.9 millian deferred revenue primarily due to higher prodiales along with additional deferrals as a resfudtu
mid-course correction policy change in June 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, cash floms foperations of $133.8 millionesulted primarily from our net income
approximately $58.7 million and the following reaso
Significant non-cash activities
» Impairment of goodwill related to our Scanner aetdviees reporting unit was $36.6 milli
» Stockbased compensation was $21.5 million related teequity incentive compensation granted to employeesdirector:
» Depreciation and amortization of $17.8 million tethto our fixed assets and acquired intangibleta
» Deferred taxes of $17.8 million primarily due tethtilization of deferred tax asst

e Excess tax benefits from our shévased payments were $17.2 milli

Significant changes in working capital

» anincrease of $11.7 million in accounts receivalle to the increase in revenues during z

* an increase of $5.7 million in inventories prithadue to increased production volumes for outramral scanner products
anticipation of the move to our new facility indst as well as procuring the new SmartTrack mdtkmiaour clear aligners,

» an increase of $3.9 million in prepaid expenses @thdr assets primarily due to the timing of sofevhicense and insurance pol
renewals,

» anincrease of $2.9 million in accrued and otbeg-term liabilities primarily due to higher deferreaktliabilities, an

» anincrease of $12.4 million in deferred revenumarily due to higher sales with deferred revenomgonents in 201

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $201.Biani for the year ended December 31, 2Q1grimarily consisted of purchases
marketable securities of $437.2 million and propepiant and equipment purchases of $24.1 millicthese uses were partially offset
$259.8 million of maturities and sales of our méakée securities.

For 2015, we expect to invest $70.0 million to $8fillion on capital expenditures primarily for atiohal manufacturing capacity a
infrastructure including a project to implement@nenterprise resource planning system which wetestan late 2014 with expected ¢joe
for various modules and subsidiaries throughout62@lthough we believe our current investment pmiof has little risk of impairment, v
cannot predict future market conditions or marlaaitlity and can provide no assurance that ourstment portfolio will remain unimpaired.

Net cash used in investing activities was $210.lfianifor the year ended December 31, 201@imarily consisted of our purchase
marketable securities of $303.9 million and properid equipment purchases of $19.4 millaong with $7.7 million for the acquisition of ¢
Asia Pacific distributor in April 2013. These usesre partially offset by $122.7 million of matuesi and sales of our marketable securities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $78.3ianilfor the year ended December 31, 20X ®#imarily consisted of our purchase
marketable securities of $67.5 million and propentyl equipment purchases of $38.3 million. Thestscoere partially offset by maturit
and sales of marketable securities of $25.2 milhod the release of $2.5 million of funds relatedibclaimed merger consideration for
acquisition of Cadent on April 29, 2011 includeddther Investing Activities.

Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities was $66.4ionilfor the year ended December 31, 20d4ulting from repurchases of our comr
stock of $98.2 million and $7.6 million of payrdééixes paid for our employees' vesting of restristedk units
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through share withholdings, partially off-set byopeeds from issuance of common stock of $18.0anilind $21.4 milliorfrom excess te
benefit from our share-based compensation arranggsme

Net cash used by financing activities was $38.2ianilfor the year ended December 31, 2@48ulting from repurchases of our comr
stock of $95.1 million and $4.4 millioaf payroll taxes paid for our employees' vestingesftricted stock units through share withholdi
partially off-set by proceeds from issuance of cammstock of $34.2 million and $27.1 million fromaess tax benefit from our shavase:
compensation arrangements.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1fillion for the year ended December 31, 20&&ulting from approximately $4:
million in proceeds from the issuance of our comnstock and approximately $17.2 million from excéss benefit from our sharease:
compensation arrangements. These proceeds weialpaffset by approximately $47.2 million commatock repurchases and $2.1 mil
of payroll taxes paid for our employees’ vestingestricted stock units through share withholdings.

Net proceeds from the issuance of our common gieleked to the exercise of employee stock optiawe tistorically been a significs
component of our liquidity; however, in 2006, wegha granting restricted stock units (“RSUs/ich, unlike stock options, do not gene
cash from exercises. As a result, we will contitmgenerate less cash from the proceeds of teeo$alur common stock in future periods.
addition, because restricted stock units are taxabthe individuals when they vest, the numbeshafres we issue to each of our employee:
be net of applicable withholding taxes which wié paid by us on their behalf. During 2014 , 20h8 2012 , we paid $7.6 millior§4.4
million and $2.1 million, respectively, for taxedated to restricted stock units that vested duttiegperiods.

Stock Repurchase

On October 27, 2011, we announced that our Boar®iddctors approved a stock repurchase programupantsto which we mg
repurchase up to $150.0 milli@f common stock. Purchases under the stock repsechrogram may be made from time to time in ther
market.

During 2012, we repurchased approximately 1.7 amlishares of common stock at an average price a28per share for an aggreg
purchase price of approximately $47.2 million, udihg commissions. The common stock repurchashsceel additional paidth capital b
approximately $15.4 million and increased accunedateficit by $31.8 million . During 2013, we repoased approximately 2million
shares of our common stock at an average pricd4P$per share, including commissions, for an aggrepatehase price of approximat
$95.1 million . The common stock repurchases rediwiitional paid-in capital by approximately $24nilion and increased accumula
deficit by $70.6 million . All repurchased shavesre retired. The October 2011 program was com@letof December 31, 2013.

On April 23, 2014, we announced that our Board @ke€ors had authorized a stock repurchase prograrsuant to which we m
purchase up to $300.0 million of our common stoekrahe next three years, with $100.0 million ddittamount authorized to be purche
over the first twelve months. Any purchases untié stock repurchase program may be made, from-tirtiene, pursuant to open mar
purchases (including pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plgmsjatelynegotiated transactions, accelerated stock repseshalock trades or derivat
contracts or otherwise in accordance with applied®tieral securities laws, including Rule 10b-18hef Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

As part of our $300.0 million stock repurchase pang, we entered into an accelerated share rep@emasement ("ASR") with Goldm:
Sachs & Co. on April 28, 2014 to repurchase $70il0om of our common stock. We paid $70.0 milliom épril 29, 2014 and received
initial delivery of approximately 1.0 million shareThe ASR was completed on July 29, 2014 withnal filelivery of approximately 0.4 millic
shares. We received a total of approximately 1.Hianishares under the ASR for an average purclpsase per share of $51.46, which
shares were retired. The final number of sharearobjased was based on our voluweighted average stock price during the term o
transaction, less an agreed upon discount.

During 2014, we repurchased on the open markeoappately 0.6 million shares of our common stoclaataverage price of $50.93
share, including commissions, for an aggregate hase price of approximately $28.2 million. All repbased shares were retired. A
December 31, 2014, we have $201.8 million remaininder the April 2014 stock repurchase progranwluth $1.8 million was repurchas
in January 2015. In addition, in January 2015, Board of Directors has authorized the next $100iliom under the program to
repurchased which we anticipate completing withialte months. We expect to finance future stockirelpases with current cash on hand.
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Contractual Obligations/Off Balance Sheet Arrangems

The impact that our contractual obligations as e€&nber 31, 2014 are expected to have on our iiguidd cash flows in future periods
is as follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Operating lease obligations $ 24,04¢ $ 9,13 $ 12,95: 1,75¢ 21C
Unconditional purchase obligations 49,80: 49,80: — — —
Total contractual cash obligations $ 73,84¢ $ 58,93: $ 12,95 $ 1,75¢ % 21C

Our contractual obligations table above excludgg@pmately $33.1 million of nomurrent uncertain tax benefits which are includa
other long-term obligations and deferred tax assetsur balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 have not included this amount bec
we cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate dagpathe timing of settlements with taxing authiest if any.

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defirRelgulation S-K Item 303(a) (4) as of DecembkrZ014 .

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsaland marketable debt securities combined with pmsitive cash flows fro
operations will be sufficient to fund our operasidior at least the next 12 months. If we are umadlgenerate adequate operating cash f
we may need to seek additional sources of capitaligh equity or debt financing, collaborative ¢iner arrangements with other compar
bank financing and other sources in order to reatiar objectives and to continue our operationtserd can be no assurance that we wi
able to obtain additional debt or equity financongterms acceptable to us, or at all. If adeqfiatds are not available, we may need to r
business decisions that could adversely affect aperating results such as modifications to ouripgicpolicy, business structure
operations. Accordingly, the failure to obtainfaiént funds on acceptable terms when needed chal@ a material adverse effect on
business, results of operations and financial ¢adi

Indemnification Provisions

In the normal course of business to facilitate sesnions in our services and products, we indenmitomers, vendors, lessors, and ¢
parties with respect to certain matters, includimg, not limited to, services to be provided byamsl intellectual property infringement clai
made by third parties. In addition, we have entéméalindemnification agreements with our directarsl certain of our officers that will requ
us, among other things, to indemnify them agaiestain liabilities that may arise by reason of theatus or service as directors or offic
Several of these agreements limit the time withiviclv an indemnification claim can be made and theunt of the claim.

It is not possible to make a reasonable estimatdhefmaximum potential amount under these indegatifin agreements due to
unique facts and circumstances involved in eacliqodarr agreement. Additionally, we have a limitedtory of prior indemnification clain
and the payments we have made under such agreehmrgsnot had a material adverse effect on ourtsesti operations, cash flows,
financial position. However, to the extent thatidahdemnification claims arise in the future, fteypayments by us could be significant
could have a material adverse effect on our resdiltgperations or cash flows in a particular peridd of December 31, 2014ve did not hav
any material indemnification claims that were pitaleaor reasonably possible.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managemens discussion and analysis of our financial conditend results of operations is based upon our didased financie
statements, which have been prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles generally accepted ie thnited States of America. 1
preparation of financial statements requires mamage to make estimates and judgments that affectréported amounts of assets
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosatahe date of the financial statements. We etaloar estimates on an guing basis
including those related to revenue recognitionclstmased compensation, goodwill and firliteed assets and related impairment, and inc
taxes. We use authoritative pronouncements, islaexperience and other assumptions as the fmasisaking estimates. Actual results cc
differ from those estimates.
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We believe the following critical accounting poéisi and estimates affect our more significant judgmesed in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We measure and allocate revenue according to tbeuating guidance for multipldeliverable revenue arrangements in Accoul
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-1Bultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangemeatssonsensus of the Financial Accounting Standardrd
(“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force

Multiple-Element Arrangements (“MEAs”Arrangements with customers may include multiplévdeables, including any combinati
of products/equipment and services. The delivesabicluded in the MEAs are separated into mora tdree unit of accounting when (i)
delivered product/equipment has value to the custan a stan@lone basis, and (ii) delivery of the undeliveredvice element(s) is proba
and substantially in our control. Arrangement é¢dasation is then allocated to each unit, delivesedindelivered, based on the relative se
price (“RSP”) of each unit of accounting basedtfors vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE"jtiexists, second on thindarty evidenc
(“TPE") if it exists, and on best estimated sellprice (“BESP”) if neither VSOE or TPE exist.

* VSOE - In most instances, products are soldragglg in stancklone arrangements. Services are also sold sepattatough renewa
of contracts with varying periods. We determineOESbased on pricing and discounting practicesHergpecific product or servi
when sold separately, considering geographicatpmesr, and other economic or marketing variablesyell as renewal rates or stand
alone prices for the service element(s).

» TPE - If we cannot establish VSOE of sellingcerior a specific product or service included mualtiple-element arrangement, we
third-party evidence of selling price. We determine TREda on sales of comparable amount of similar mtsdar service offered |
multiple third parties considering the degree aftomization and similarity of product or servicédso

* BESP - The best estimated selling price reptsgsbe price at which we would sell a product aviee if it were sold on a staralone
basis. When VSOE or TPE do not exist for all eleteewe determine BESP for the arrangement elefn@sed on sales, cost i
margin analysis, as well as other inputs baseduoipiacing practices. Adjustments for other marketl Companypecific factors al
made as deemed necessary in determining BESP.

Provisions for discounts and rebates to customerpravided for in the same period that the relaediuct sales are recorded based
historical discounts and rebates.

Clear Aligner

We enter into arrangements (“treatment plartegt involve multiple future product deliverablésvisalign Full, Invisalign Teen, al
Invisalign Assist products include up to three opél case refinements. Case refinement is a fimjstool used to adjust a patient's teeth t
desired final position. Case refinement may beteteby the dental professional at any time duriegttent however it is generally ordere
the last stages of orthodontic treatment. Begindimge 15, 2013, Invisalign Full and Invisalign Teeaducts also include up to three optic
mid-course corrections. Mideurse correction is a treatment adjustment duaciive treatment if the case is not tracking to dhiginal
treatment plan or goals. Migcburse correction gives doctors the ability to Uaticourse" based on the needs of the individu#ma Invisaligr
Teen also includes up to six optional replacembgners in the price of the product and may be mdeany time throughout treatment.

We determined that our treatment plans, excepsétign Assist with progress tracking, comprise fihllowing deliverables which al:
represent separate units of accounting: singledbdt@ligners, case refinement noiodrse correction and replacement aligners. Wecath
revenue for each treatment plan based on eacls veltive selling price based on BESP and recegthie revenue upon the delivery of €
unit in the treatment plan. We regularly review estimates of selling price and maintain interraitools over the establishment and upda
these estimates.

For Invisalign Assist with the progress trackingttee, aligners and services are provided to tméatlprofessional every nine stages (“
batch”). Beginning January 1, 2011, we were able to reli@symate the number of batches which are expdoté# shipped for each ci
based upon our historical experience. The amoulesaged to this deliverable are recognized onaagied basis as each batch is shipped.

Prior to 2013, the Vivera Retainer included fouipairents per year, and revenue was recognized yaéaldach shipment occurred. In
first quarter of 2013, we consolidated Vivera Rataiproduct shipments down to one shipment per. year
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Scanners and Services

We recognize revenues from the sales of iTero-otah scanners and CAD/CAM services. CAD/CAM seggiinclude scanning servic
extended warranty for the intaaal scanners, a range of iTero restorative sesyaed OrthoCAD services such as OrthoCAD iRecot sel
intra-oral scanners and services through both bactdsales force and distribution partners. Titeaioral scanner sales price includes one
of warranty, and for additional fees, the customay select an unlimited scanning service agreemestt a fixed period of time or extenc
warranty periods. Revenue is recognized when psigel evidence of the arrangement exists, the [mifieed or determinable, collectability
reasonably assured, title and risk of loss hasepltsscustomers based on the shipping terms, mifisant obligations remain, and allowan
for discounts, returns, and customer incentivestmmneliably estimated. When intosal scanners are sold with either an unlimitechsoa
service agreement and/or extended warranty, wea#aevenue based on each element's relativagselice. We estimate the selling pric
each element, as if it is sold on a stahohe basis, taking into consideration historicatgs as well as our discounting strategies. Se
revenue, net of related discounts and allowanseszdognized when products or equipment have beippesd, installed and osite training
completed. For certain distributors who providetaiiation and training to the customer, we recogrézanner revenue when the intrat
scanner is shipped to the distributor assumingfahe other revenue recognition criteria have baen

Discounts are deducted from revenue at the timsalef or when the discount is offered, whichevdater and free cases or trainin
included as a deliverable in the multiglement arrangement assessment. Returns of psodewtiuding warranty related returns,
infrequent and insignificant.

Service revenue, including iTero restorative andathoCAD services are recognized upon deliveryatably over the contract term
the specified services are performed. If a custesebacts a pay per use basis for scanning serés the revenue is recognized as the s¢
is provided.

We offer customers an option to purchase extendmuanties on certain products. We recognize negem these extended warre
contracts ratably over the life of the contracheTosts associated with these extended warrantyaots are recognized when incurred.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

We recognize stock-based compensation cost for thiolye shares ultimately expected to vest on &hbtrine basis over the requis
service period of the award. We use the Bl8ckoles option pricing model to determine the ¥ailue of stock options and employee s
purchase plan shares. We estimate the fair valosofetperformance based restricted stock units using atdI8arlo simulation model whi
requires the input of assumptions, including expeterm, stock price volatility and the rifilee rate of return. In addition, judgment is regc
in estimating the number of stotlased awards that are expected to be forfeitedeiftoes are estimated based on historical expegiat th
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsetyeriods if actual forfeitures differ from thosstimates. The assumptions use
calculating the fair value of share-based paymemards represent managemsntiest estimates, but these estimates involve énl
uncertainties and the application of managementgent. As a result, if factors change and wediferent assumptions, our stobase:
compensation expense could be materially diffeiretite future.

Gooduwill and finite-lived acquired intangible asset

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase jpaid over the fair value of tangible and ideabife intangible net assets acquire
business combinations and is allocated to the tieygounits based on relative synergies generated.

Our intangible assets primarily consist of intaimgifissets acquired as part of acquisitions andraetized using the straightie methos
over their estimated useful lives, reflecting tleeipd in which the economic benefits of the asaetsexpected to be realized.

Impairment of goodwill, finite-lived acquired intagible assets and long-lived assets
Goodwill

We evaluate goodwill for impairment at least aniyuah November 30th or more frequently if indicat@re present, an event occur
circumstances changes that suggest an impairmgnéxist and that it would more likely than not reduhe fair
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value of a reporting unit below its carrying amautihe allocation of goodwill to the respective agmg unit is based on relative syner
generated as a result of an acquisition.

We perform an initial assessment of qualitativetdex to determine whether the existence of events @rcumstances leads t
determination that it is more likely than not tiiaé fair value of a reporting unit is less thanciésrying amount. In performing the qualita
assessment, we identify and consider the signifieari relevant key factors, events, and circum&siticat affect the fair value of our repor
units. These factors include external factors sagimacroeconomic, industry, and market conditiagsyell as entityspecific factors, such
our actual and planned financial performance. Vge give consideration to the difference betweenrépearting unit fair value and carryi
value as of the most recent date a fair value nmeasent was performed. If, after assessing theitptaf relevant events and circumstances
determine that it is more likely than not that fiafr value of the reporting unit exceeds its cargyivalue and there is no indication
impairment, no further testing is performed; howeviewe conclude otherwise, the first step of the-step impairment test is performed
estimating the fair value of the reporting unit aaparing it with its carrying value, includingagpwill.

Step one of the goodwill impairment test considtea a@omparison of the fair value of a reportingtuajainst its carrying amou
including the goodwill allocated to each reportingit. We determine the fair value of our reportingits based on the present valu
estimated future cash flows under the income amproéthe reporting units as well as various pdcenarket multiples applied to the repor
unit's operating results along with the appropr@istrol premium under the marketing approach, loétivhich are classified as level 3 wit
the fair value hierarchy (as described in Note @iuinconsolidated financial statements). If theydag amount of the reporting unit is in exc
of its fair value, step two requires the comparisbithe implied fair value of the reporting usitoodwill against the carrying amount of
reporting unit's goodwill. Any excess of the camgy value of the reporting unit’s goodwill over timaplied fair value of the reporting urst’
goodwill is recorded as an impairment loss.

During March 2013, changes in the competitive eminent for intraeral scanners, including announcements from ourpetitors o
new lowypriced scanners targeted at orthodontists and gepsactitioner dentists in North America, causadt@ lower our expectations
growth and profitability for our Scanner and Seegiceporting unit. The impairment analysis perfatrfer goodwill requires several estime
in computing the estimated fair value of a repgrtimit. We use a discounted cash flow (“DCEpproach to estimate the fair value
reporting unit, utilizing harvest model, which welieve is the most reliable indicator of fair valothis business, and is most consistent
the approach a market place participant would Asea result, we determined that goodwill relatetyda our Scanner and Services repotr
unit should be tested for impairment as of MarchZ113 due to these facts and circumstances whichdamore likely than not reduce the
value of our Scanner and Services reporting uridvbeéts carrying amount. Based on our analysisreah&as no implied goodwill for tl
Scanner and Services reporting unit; thereforeregerded a goodwill impairment charge of $40.7 iomillin the three months ended March
2013, which represented the entire goodwill balaincthe Scanner and Services reporting unit. Threae no triggering event related to
Clear Aligner goodwill. Refer to Note 5 for detadiEthe impairment analysis.

The remaining goodwill is entirely attributabledar Clear Aligner reporting unit. During the fournarter of fiscal 2014, we performn
the annual goodwill impairment testing using thaldative approach discussed above and found nainmgnt as the fair value of our Cl
Aligner reporting unit was significantly in excesfsthe carrying value.

Finite-lived intangible assets and long-lived asset

We evaluate long-lived assets (including firliteed intangible assets) for impairment wheneveergs or changes in circumstar
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset groap not be recoverable. An asset or asset groopnisidered impaired if its carrying ama
exceeds the future undiscounted net cash flowssket or asset group is expected to generate.dbset or asset group is considered 1
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is calimd as the amount by which the carrying amoutih@fasset or asset group exceeds it
market value. Our estimates of future cash flovisbattable to our londived assets require significant judgment base@wanhistorical an
anticipated results and are subject to many fackastors we consider important which could triggerimpairment review include significi
negative industry or economic trends, significaygsl of customers and changes in the competitivid@ment. In 2013, we used a D
approach to estimate the fair value of a reportini, utilizing harvest model, which we believetli® most reliable indicator of fair value ¢
business, and is most consistent with the approhahmarketplace participant would use. The estonatf fair value utilizing a DCF approa
includes numerous uncertainties which require @niicant judgment when making assumptions of expe growth rates and the selectio
discount rates, as well as assumptions regardimgrge economic and business conditions, and thetate that would yield the high
economic value, among other factors. Key assumptiged in measuring the fair values of ScannerSerdices reporting unit included
discount rate (based on the weighte@drage cost of capital) and revenue growth. Thevidue of Scanner and Services trademark
determined using a risk-adjusted DCF model underelief-fromroyalty method. The royalty rate used was based consideration of mark
rates. The fair value of Scanner and Servicesfiined customer
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relationships was determined using a DCF model utidemulti-period excess earnings method. We demba londived asset impairment
the quarter ended March 31, 2013 due to changé®inompetitive environment for our intodal scanners, including announcements fron
competitors of new lovpriced scanners targeted at orthodontists and gepseactitioner dentists in North America. Thereswe triggerin
event related to the Clear Aligner asset groupeRief Note 5 for details of the impairment analysis

Accounting for Income Taxes

We make certain estimates and judgments in detarquimcome tax expense for financial statement psgg. These estimates
judgments occur in the calculation of certain tageds and liabilities, which arise from differenggeshe timing of recognition of revenue ¢
expense for tax and financial statement purposes.

As part of the process of preparing our Consoldlamancial Statements, we are required to estimatencome taxes in each of
jurisdictions in which we operate. This processolaes us estimating our current tax exposure utigierapplicable tax laws and asses
temporary differences resulting from differing tireant of items for tax and accounting purposesseéldifferences result in deferred tax as
and liabilities, which are included in our Consalield Balance Sheet.

We account for uncertainty in income taxes pursuarguthoritative guidance based on a st®p approach to recognize and mee
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to bertak a tax return. The first step is to deternifrtbe weight of available evidence indice
that it is more likely than not that the tax pasitiwill be sustained on audit based on its tecthmrits, including resolution of any rela
appeals or litigation processes. The second stapnseasure the tax benefit as the largest ambantis more than 50% likely to be reali
upon ultimate settlement. We adjust reserves fouogertain tax positions due to changing facts@raimstances, such as the closing of |
audit, or refinement of estimates due to new inftiom. To the extent that the final outcome of éhesatters is different than the amol
recorded, such differences will impact our tax [smn in our Consolidated Statements of Operatiorthe period in which such determinai
is made.

We assess the likelihood that we will be able talize our deferred tax assets. Should there beaagehin our ability to realize ¢
deferred tax assets, our tax provision would ingeda the period in which we determine that it mrenlikely than not that we cannot realize
deferred tax assets. We consider all availableegnid, both positive and negative, including hisadrlevels of income, expectations and t
associated with estimates of future taxable incameongoing prudent and feasible tax planningesgias in assessing the need for a valu
allowance. If it is more likely than not that wellwot realize our deferred tax assets, we willlgase our provision for taxes by recordit
valuation allowance against the deferred tax astiets we estimate will not ultimately be realizethe available positive evidence
December 31, 201#hcluded historical operating profits and a prdjetof future income sufficient to realize mostafr remaining deferre
tax assets. As of December 31, 2014was considered more likely than not that oefledred tax assets would be realized with the ei@eof
certain foreign loss carryovers as we are unablerexast sufficient future profits to realize tieferred tax assets.

Accounting guidance for stodkased compensation prohibits recognition of a defeincome tax asset for excess tax benefits datotd
option exercises that have not yet been realizeatih a reduction in income taxes payable. Suckaagnized deferred tax benefits toti
$1.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and will becamted for as a credit to additional paidzapital, if and when realized through a redw
in income taxes payable. We follow the tax law ot method to determine when excess tax benedits bheen realized and consider only
direct impacts of awards when calculating the amhofivindfalls or shortfalls.

As of December 31, 2014U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxesoaiated with the repatriation of undistributeche@as o
foreign subsidiaries were not provided for on a dlative total of $260.9 million We intend to reinvest these earnings indefinitalyui
foreign subsidiaries. If these earnings were diatgd in the form of dividends or otherwise, othié shares of the relevant foreign subsidi
were sold or otherwise transferred, we would bgeslio additional U.S. income taxes subject toadjustment for foreign tax credits, ¢
foreign withholding taxes. Determination of the ambof unrecognized deferred income tax liabilijated to these earnings is not practice

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
SeeNote 1* Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in tietes to our Consolidated Financial Statemémtsem 8for a full

description of recent accounting pronouncementsuding the expected dates of adoption and estuineffects on results of operations and
financial condition, which is incorporated herein.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we are exposéareéign currency exchange rate and interest iaks that could impact our financ
position and results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates could impact our antiegpanterest income on our cash equivalents aneésinvents in marketal
securities. Our cash equivalents and investmemtdiged-rate short-term and long-term securitieseé~ate securities may have their
market value adversely impacted due to a risetarést rates, and as a result, our future investineame may fall short of expectations du
changes in interest rates or we may suffer logsgsincipal if forced to sell securities which hadeclined in market value due to change
interest rates. As of December 31, 2014 , we hauroapmately $402.7 million invested in available-&ale marketable securities.
immediate 10% change in interest rates would ne¢ lzamaterial adverse impact on our future opegatsults and cash flows.

We do not have interest bearing liabilities as etc@mber 31, 2014and, therefore, we are not subject to risks fionmediate intere
rate increases.

Currency Rate Risk

We operate in North America, Europe, Asia Pacffiosta Rica and Israel. As a result of our inteomai business activities, our financ
results could be affected by factors such as clwimgéoreign currency exchange rates or econommditions in foreign markets, and ther
no assurance that exchange rate fluctuations willharm our business in the future. We sell owdpcts in the local currency for 1
respective countries. This provides some naturdgjimg because most of the subsidiariggérating expenses are denominated in their
currencies as discussed further below. Regardlefssonatural hedging, our results of operatiorsyrhe adversely impacted by the exchi
rate fluctuation. Although we will continue to mian our exposure to currency fluctuations, and, neteppropriate, may use financial heds
techniques in the future to minimize the effecthodse fluctuations, we are not currently engagedniy financial hedging transactions.
impact of an aggregate change of 10% in foreigmetuoy exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollaownresults of operations and finan
position could be material.

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL EMENTARY DATA
Quarterly Results of Operations

Three Months Ended

2014 2013

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013

(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited )

Net revenues $  19860( $ 189,87 $ 19253 $ 18064 $ 17829, $ 164,500 $ 163,82 $ 153,58
Gross profit 150,66 14505 14547t 137,25 136,47 125000  123,69: 112,84¢
Income from operation: 51,49 51,547 48,73: 41,80 52,92 41,46 37,90 (38,079
Net income' 22 39,54: 38,24; 35,60( 32,44 42,42 34,53; 29,32( (41,989
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.4¢ 3 047 $ 04/ $ 04C $ 05: $ 04: $ 03¢ $  (0.59
Diluted $ 0.4¢ 3 047 $ 045 $ 03¢ $ 051 $ 04: $ 036 $ (059

Shares used in
computing net income

per share:
Basic 80,26¢ 80,62¢ 81,02° 81,12( 80,43: 79,96 80,57¢ 81,24¢
Diluted 81,69: 82,01« 82,34: 82,81: 82,43¢ 81,84¢ 82,14¢ 81,24¢

! Income from operations included $40.7 million ar6$8 million of goodwill and londived asset impairment, respectively, in the t
months ended March 31, 2013. Net income includedalsame items, net of tax.

2 In the three months ended December 31, 2013, weded an out of period correction that resultedenreases in cost of net revenue
approximately $1.3 million and operating expens8Xb million offset in part by an increase in ghrevision
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for income taxes of $0.6 million. The overall inase of $2.2 million in net income related to thé @uperiod correction was not mate
to the consolidated financial statements for argrgun within 2013.

31n the three months ended June 30, 2014, we red@a®ut of period correction that resulted inraaréase in the provision for income te

of $2.1 million, which $1.8 million related to prigears and $0.3 million related to the three merghded March 31, 2014. The ou
period correction was not material to the constdiddinancial statements for any quarter within201
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Management of Align is responsible for establishamgl maintaining adequate internal control ovearial reporting as defined in Ru
13a-15(f) and 15d5(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934ur @ternal control over financial reporting is dpgeed by, or und:
supervision of, our CEO and CFO, and effected leylibard of directors, management and other persoarn@ovide reasonable assura
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cithe preparation of financial statements for exdkpurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. Internal contka@r financial reporting includes those policied @nocedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaealsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thengactions and dispositions of
assets of Align;

e provide reasonable assurance that transactionseeapeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, #mat receipts and expenditures of Align are beiragenonly in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of Alagm

e provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of Align's asst
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or déteisstatements. In additi
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate because of chan
conditions or that the degree of compliance withpblicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our ahteontrol over financial reporting as of DecemBgr 2014. In making thi
assessment, management used the criteria setifiohthernal Control-Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on its assessment, management has conchatecs of December 31, 2014ur internal control over financial reporting \
effective based on criteria Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issuby the COSO

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioal reporting as of December 31, 20ias been audited by PricewaterhouseCor
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report which is includedeier

/s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT
Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2015

/SI DAVID L. WHITE

David L. White
Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Aliggchnology, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaelisted in the index appearing under Item 15fa)(tesent fairly, in all materi
respects, the financial position of Align Technglpinc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 20idtRecember 31, 2013and the results
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefthree years in the period ended December 34, iBGdbnformity with accounting principl
generally accepted in the United States of Amerita.addition, in our opinion, the financial statent schedule listed in the index appee
under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all materiespects, the information set forth therein wiread in conjunction with the relal
consolidated financial statements. Also in oummm, the Company maintained, in all material exdp, effective internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 , basedriteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framework (2018&sued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®ommission (COSO). The Compasiyhanagement is responsible for these fina
statements and financial statement schedule, fantaiaing effective internal control over financieporting and for its assessment of
effectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting, included in the accompanying Report of Eigement on Internal Control o
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to eas opinions on these financial statements, orfitlaacial statement schedule, and or
Companys internal control over financial reporting basedour integrated audits. We conducted our auditeccordance with the stande
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boaraifedd States). Those standards require that we @hd perform the audits to obt
reasonable assurance about whether the finaneitdnseénts are free of material misstatement and hehetffective internal control ov
financial reporting was maintained in all materedpects. Our audits of the financial statemerisided examining, on a test basis, evid
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Gisdstatements, assessing the accounting prirscided and significant estimates mad
management, and evaluating the overall financialestent presentation. Our audit of internal adntiver financial reporting includ
obtaining an understanding of internal control ofieancial reporting, assessing the risk that aemalt weakness exists, and testing
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéssternal control based on the assessed riskr aQdits also included performing such o
procedures as we considered necessary in the ctanoes. We believe that our audits provide sorgble basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is agess designed to provide reasonable assurancaliregéhe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahcitatements for external purposes in accordandb geénerally accepted account
principles. A company internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately famtly reflect the transactions and dispositionstioé assets of the company; (ii) pro
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdedcessary to permit preparation of financialeshents in accordance with genel
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of the company are being made ianhccordance with authorizations
management and directors of the company; andp(iyide reasonable assurance regarding preventidimely detection of unauthoriz
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iiz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projection:
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 26, 2015
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net revenues $ 761,65. $ 660,20¢ $ 560,04
Cost of net revenues 183,21( 162,10( 143,65:
Gross profit 578,44 498,10¢ 416,38t
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 217,26: 180,04¢ 152,04:
General and administrative 114,80¢ 112,75: 99,29
Research and development 52,79¢ 44,08: 42,86¢
Impairment of goodwiill — 40,69: 36,59
Impairment of long lived assets — 26,32( —
Total operating expenses 384,86° 403,89 330,79¢
Income from operations 193,57¢ 94,21: 85,59
Interest and other income (expense), net (3,209 (1,079 (1,296
Net income before provision for income taxes 190,36 93,13¢ 84,29¢
Provision for income taxes 44,537 28,84« 25,60
Net income $ 145,83 $ 64,298 $ 58,69:
Net income per share:
Basic $ 181 ¢ 0.8C $ 0.7:
Diluted $ 177 ¢ 0.7¢ $ 0.71
Shares used in computing net income per share:
Basic 80,75¢ 80,55! 80,52¢
Diluted 82,28: 82,58¢ 83,04(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 14583: $ 64,29 $ 58,69:
Net change in cumulative translation adjustment (196) 62 12¢
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on availablsdte securities,
net of tax (23¢) 29 28
Other comprehensive income (loss) (4349 91 157
Comprehensive income $ 145,39¢ $ 64,38t $ 58,84¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 199,87 $ 242,95:
Marketable securities, short-term 254,78" 127,041
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#ittounts and returns of $1,563 and $1,
respectively 129,75: 113,25(
Inventories 15,92¢ 13,96¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19,77( 18,82¢
Deferred tax assets 37,05: 28,63t
Total current assets 657,16( 544,67t
Marketable securities, long-term 147,89. 101,97t
Property, plant and equipment, net 90,12¢ 75,74
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 82,05¢ 85,36:
Deferred tax assets 3,09¢ 15,76¢
Other assets 7,66¢ 8,627
Total assets $ 987,99 $ 832,14
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 23,247 $ 17,71¢
Accrued liabilities 87,88( 80,34!
Deferred revenues 90,68 77,27"
Total current liabilities 201,81: 175,33t
Income tax payable 30,48: 18,32¢
Other long-term liabilities 2,932 4,51z
Total liabilities 235,22t 198,17
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6 and 8)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value (5,000 sharé®ared; none issued) — —
Common stock, $0.0001 par value (200,000 sharémared; 80,205 and 80,583 issued and
outstanding at 2014 and 2013, respectively) 8 8
Additional paid-in capital 783,41( 729,57!
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net (140 294
Accumulated deficit (30,507 (95,910
Total stockholders’ equity 752,77: 633,97(
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 987,99° $ 832,14

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(in thousands)

Accumulated

Balances at December 31, 2011
Net income

Net change in unrealized gain from available-fde sa
securities

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

Issuance of common stock relating to employee gq
compensation plans

Tax withholdings related to net share settlement of
restricted stock units

Common stock repurchased and retired

Excess tax provision from share based payment
arrangements

Stock based compensation

Balances at December 31, 2012
Net income

Net change in unrealized gain from available-fde sa
securities

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

Issuance of common stock relating to employee gquit

compensation plans

Tax withholdings related to net share settlemefits o
restricted stock units

Common stock repurchased and retired

Excess tax benefit from share based payment
arrangements

Stock based compensation

Balances at December 31, 2013
Net income

Net change in unrealized gain from available-fde sa
securities

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

Issuance of common stock relating to employee gq
compensation plans

Tax withholdings related to net share settlemefits o
restricted stock units

Common stock repurchased and retired

Excess tax benefit from share based payment
arrangements

Stock based compensation

Balances at December 31, 2014

Common Stock Additional Other
Paid in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
78,77¢ 3 8 $ 607,24( $ 46 $ (116,51 $ 490,78:
— — — — 58,69 58,69
— — — 28 — 28
— — — 12¢ — 12¢
3,56¢ — 42,32% — — 42,32}
— — (2,106) — — (2,106)
(1,730) - (15,399 - (31,809 (47,209
— — 17,18 — — 17,18:
— — 21,48: — — 21,48
80,61: 8 670,73. 20< (89,62¢) 581,31
— — — — 64,29: 64,29:
— — — 29 — 29
— — — 62 — 62
2,69/ — 34,19¢ — — 34,19¢
— — (4,369 — — (4,367)
(2,727) — (24,529 — (70,579 (95,107
— — 27,10:¢ — — 27,10
— — 26,43¢ — — 26,43¢
80,58: 8 729,57¢ 294 (95,910 633,97(
— — — — 145,83. 145,83.
_ _ — (23¢) — (239)
— — — (196€) — (19€)
1,53¢ — 18,02¢ — — 18,02¢
— — (7,606) — — (7,60€)
(1,919 - (17,804 - (80,429 (98,237
— — 21,39: — — 21,39:
— — 39,82¢ — — 39,82
80,20 $ 8 $ 78341 $ (140 $ (30,507 $ 752,77

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 14583 $ 64,29t $ 58,69
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Deferred taxes 25,48: 21,20« 17,78t
Depreciation and amortization 17,85¢ 16,82¢ 17,81:
Stock-based compensation 39,82 26,43¢ 21,48:
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment amaens (21,399 (27,109 (17,187
Impairment of goodwiill — 40,69: 36,59:
Impairment of long-lived assets — 26,32( —
Other non-cash operating activities 10,10¢ 4,14: 4,517
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding tifecef of business combinations:
Accounts receivable (27,229 (11,98) (11,66¢)
Inventories (1,999 1,15¢ (5,719
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,929 (392 (3,859
Accounts payable 2,88 (18€) (6)
Accrued and other long-term liabilities 22,69: 9,66: 2,94:
Deferred revenues 15,761 14,90 12,38¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 226,89¢ 185,97t 133,77t
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition, net of cash acquired — (7,652 —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (24,097 (19,417 (38,337
Purchase of marketable securities (437,15 (303,91) (67,517
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities 176,81( 90,91% 24,90:
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 82,99( 31,74 297
Other investing activities (183) (2,417 2,34¢
Net cash used in investing activities (201,62) (210,739 (78,300
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 18,02¢ 34,19¢ 42,32%
Common stock repurchase (98,237 (95,107 (47,207
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment amaens 21,39: 27,10 17,181
Employees’ taxes paid upon the vesting of restlisteck units (7,60¢) (4,369 (2,10¢)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (66,420) (38,17 10,20¢
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on caslcasid equivalents (1,939 (509 28
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equisalent (43,087) (63,439 65,71:
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 242,95; 306,38t 240,67!
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 19987 $ 242950 $ 306,38t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business Description

Align Technology, Inc. (“We”, “Our”, or “Align”)was incorporated in April 1997 in Delaware and &esion designing, manufactut
and marketing innovative, technologgh products to help dental professionals achiteeclinical results they expect and deliver effeg
convenient cuttingedge dental treatment options to their patients.aféeheadquartered in San Jose, California wititexfworldwide. Ot
international headquarters are located in Amsterdéum Netherlands. We have tvaperating segments, (1) Clear Aligner, known as
Invisalign System, and (2) Scanners and Servicgsafiner"), known as the iTero intra-oral scanndr@rnhoCAD services.

Basis of presentation and preparation

The consolidated financial statements include ttewants of Align and our whollpwned subsidiaries after elimination of intercomy
transactions and balances. Certain amounts irr pedods have been reclassified to conform with ¢lurrent period presentation. Th
reclassifications had no impact on previously regggbgross profit or financial position.

In connection with the preparation of the consdidafinancial statements, we evaluated events guies¢ to the balance sheet «
through the financial statement issuance date atetmined that all material transactions have lbeeorded and disclosed properly.

Out of period adjustment

In 2013, we recorded an out of period correcticat tiesulted in decreases in cost of net revenuepfoximately $1.7 millioranc
operating expense of $0.7 million offset in partdmyincrease in the provision for income taxes@®@b$nillion. We do not believe the increi
of $1.9 millionto net income related to the out of period adjusinigee material to the consolidated financial stagata for the fiscal year enc
December 31, 2013 or to any prior years' consatifihancial statements.

In 2014, we recorded an out of period correctiat tesulted in an increase in the provision fobime taxes of $1.8 millionWe do nc
believe the decrease to net income related tohefgeriod adjustment is material to the consaibd financial statements for the fiscal »
ended December 31, 2014 or to any prior years'dliolated financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith accounting principles generally acceptedthie United States of Ameri
(“U.S.”) requires our management to make estimates and pSsamthat affect the amounts reported in the clithsted financial statemel
and accompanying notes. Actual results could diffaterially from those estimates. On an ongoingsh&ge evaluate our estimates, incluc
those related to the fair values of financial instents, intangible assets and goodwill, usefulslieé intangible assets and property
equipment, stockased compensation, revenue recognition, incomestand contingent liabilities, among others. Vdsebour estimates
historical experience and on various other assumstthat are believed to be reasonable, the restifighich form the basis for maki
judgments about the carrying values of assetsiahilities.

Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of our cash, accounts reckiyabcounts payable and other current liabilisipproximate their fair value.
We measure our cash equivalents, marketable sesyi@ind our Israeli severance fund at fair valeeir value is the price that would
received from selling an asset or paid to tranaféability in an orderly transaction between margarticipants at the measurement date.

value is estimated by applying the following hietay, which prioritizes the inputs used to measaie falue into three levels and bases
categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowesel of input that is available and significaotthe fair value measurement:

Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2— Observable inputs other than quoted prices includddcevel 1, such as quoted prices for similar tssee liabilities in activ
markets; quoted prices for identical or similareassor liabilities in markets that are not actiee;other inputs that are observable or ca
corroborated by observable market data for subiathnthe full term of the asset or liability.
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Level 3— Inputs that are generally unobservable and tllgiceflect managemerg’ estimate of assumptions that market partici
would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

We consider currency on hand, demand deposits,depesits, and all highly liquid investments with@iginal maturity othree month
or less at the date of purchase to be cash andecpstalents. Cash and cash equivalents are heldrious financial institutions in the U
and internationally.

Restricted cash

Our restricted cash balance as of December 31, 2@%4$3.8 million , of which $3.6 million was cl#sd as a long term asset afid.z
million as a current asset. Our restricted cashrza as of December 31, 2013 was $4.0 milliod was classified as a long term asset.
restricted cash primarily consisted of funds resérfor legal requirements.

Marketable securities

We invest primarily in money market funds, commalrgiaper, corporate bonds, U.S. government ageongsh assdbacked securitie
municipal bonds, U.S. dollar dominated foreign cogte bonds, U.S. government treasury bonds atificaes of deposits.

Marketable securities are classified as availabieshle and are carried at fair value. Marketableisges classified as current as:
have maturities of less than one year. Unrealgaids or losses on such securities are includetéamulated other comprehensive incc
net in stockholderséquity. Realized gains and losses from maturibieall such securities are reported in earnings emputed using tl
specific identification cost method. Realized gaom losses and charges for other-than-temporarynds in value, if any, on available-feade
securities are reported in Interest and other ircdaxpense), net as incurred. We periodically uatal these investments for other-thar
temporary impairment.

Foreign currency

For our international subsidiaries where the U.8lad is the functional currency, we analyze onamual basis or more ofter
necessary, if a significant change in facts anduaistances indicate that the primary economic oayréhas changed. Adjustments fi
translating certain European and Asia Pacific sliages’ financial statements from the local currency to th&. dollar are recorded a
separate component of accumulated other compreteimgiome (loss), net in the stockholdeegjuity section of the Consolidated Bals
Sheet. This foreign currency translation adjustmefiects the translation of the balance shegtesiod end exchange rates, and the inc
statement at an average exchange rate in effegtgdtive period. As of December 31, 2014 and 201ff8ere were no material amount:
accumulated other comprehensive income, net retatéte translation of our foreign subsidiariesidincial statements.

Our other international entities operate in a W@&llar functional currency environment, and therefahe foreign currency assets
liabilities are remeasured into the U.S. dollacatrent exchange rates except for mooretary assets and liabilities which are remedsa
historical exchange rates. Revenues and expensegaerally remeasured at an average exchangmretect during each period. Gains
losses from foreign currency remeasurement areded in Interest and other income (expense), mettite year ended December 31, 2014
we had foreign currency net losses of $3.8 milliéior year ended December 31, 2013, foreign cuyrgams and losses were not significant.

Certain risks and uncertainties

Our operating results depend to a significant exb@nour ability to market and develop our producEge life cycles of our products .
difficult to estimate due, in part, to the effeétfature product enhancements and competition. i@ability to successfully develop and mau
our products as a result of competition or othetdiss would have a material adverse effect on asiress, financial condition and result
operations.

Our cash and investments are held primarily by fimancial institutions. Financial instruments whiglotentially expose us
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily cdish equivalents, marketable securities and acsa@teivable. We invest excess
primarily in money market funds of major financiastitutions, U.S. government agencies, U.S. daamninated foreign corporate bonds
domestic corporate bonds. If the carrying valuewfinvestments exceeds the fair value, and the
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decline in fair value is deemed to be other-ttemporary, we will be required to write down theuweaof our investments, which coi
materially harm our results of operations and faiahcondition. Moreover, the performance of certsecurities in our investment portfc
correlates with the credit condition of the U.Somamy. We provide credit to customers in the ndrovarse of business. Collateral is
required for accounts receivable, but ongoing eatadns of customersiredit worthiness are performed. We maintain resserfor potenti
credit losses and such losses have been within geaments expectations. No individual customer accountedl0% or more of our accou
receivable at December 31, 2014 or 2013, or vetmeges for the year ended December 31, 2014 , 26123012 .

In the U.S., the Food and Drug Administration (“FDAegulates the design, manufacture, distributioreclinical and clinical stud'
clearance and approval of medical devices. Predieteloped by us may require approvals or cleasafrom the FDA or other internatio
regulatory agencies prior to commercialized salEsere can be no assurance that our products edg#live any of the required approval:
clearances. If we were denied approval or clearansuch approval was delayed, it may have a mhsatverse impact on us.

We have manufacturing operations located outsigeUts. We currently rely on our manufacturing ligciin Costa Rica to prepa
digital treatment plans using a sophisticated,riveiy developed computenodeling program. In addition, we manufacture cear aligner
and distribute our intraral scanners at our facility in Juarez, Mexicod are produce our handheld scanner wand in Or Yehsdzel. Ou
reliance on international operations exposes ultded risks and uncertainties, including diffies in staffing and managing internatic
operations such as hiring and retaining qualifiedspnnel; controlling production volume and qualifymanufacture; political, social a
economic instability, particularly as a result otieased levels of violence in Juarez, Mexico ardel; interruptions and limitations
telecommunication services; product and matergaigportation delays or disruption; trade restnttiand changes in tariffs; import and ex
license requirements and restrictions; fluctuation®reign currency exchange rates; and poteatizlerse tax consequences. If any of t
risks materialize, our international manufacturaggerations, as well as our operating results, neglydsmed.

We purchase certain inventory from sole suppligkdditionally, we rely on a limited number of hardwe manufacturers. The inability
any supplier or manufacturer to fulfill our suppgguirements could materially and adversely impactfuture operating results.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost computed using either standard omhtoh approximates actual cost)
average and actual cost on a first-in-fiost-basis. Excess and obsolete inventories asgrdeted primarily based on future demand forec
and write-downs of excess and obsolete inventariesecorded as a component of cost of revenues.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histbcost less accumulated depreciation and amtiatizaDepreciation and amortizat
are computed using the straight-line method overestimated useful lives of the assets, generatletto teryears. We amortize leaseh
improvements over the shorter of the remainingdeasm or the estimated useful lives of the as¥éesdepreciate buildings over periods u
20years. Land is not depreciated. Construction igmes ("CIP") is related to the construction orelepment of property (including land) &
equipment that have not yet been placed in seffeicgheir intended use. Upon sale or retiremems, asses cost and related accumule
depreciation are removed from the general ledgdraamy related gains or losses are reflected inatipgr expenses. Maintenance and re
are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill and finite-lived acquired intangible asset

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase jpaid over the fair value of tangible and ideabife intangible net assets acquire
business combinations and is allocated to the otispereporting units based on relative synergisegated.

Our intangible assets primarily consist of intafgiassets acquired as part of the Cadent acquisifibese assets are amortized usin

straight-line method over their estimated useftgdi ranging from one to fiftegrears, reflecting the period in which the econobgaefits o
the assets are expected to be realized.

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets
Goodwill
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We evaluate goodwill for impairment at least aniyuah November 30th or more frequently if indicat@re present, an event occur
circumstances changes that suggest an impairmentexist and that it would more likely than not reduhe fair value of a reporting u
below its carrying amount. The allocation of godtite the respective reporting unit is based olatiee synergies generated as a result «
acquisition.

We perform an initial assessment of qualitativetdex to determine whether the existence of events @rcumstances leads t
determination that it is more likely than not tifa¢ fair value of a reporting unit is less thanci#ésrying amount. In performing the qualita
assessment, we identify and consider the signifieari relevant key factors, events, and circum&siticat affect the fair value of our repor
units. These factors include external factors sagimacroeconomic, industry, and market conditiagsyell as entityspecific factors, such
our actual and planned financial performance. Vge give consideration to the difference betweenréparting unit fair value and carryi
value as of the most recent date a fair value nmeasent was performed. If, after assessing theitptaf relevant events and circumstances
determine that it is more likely than not that fiafr value of the reporting unit exceeds its cargyivalue and there is no indication
impairment, no further testing is performed; howeviewe conclude otherwise, the first step of the-step impairment test is performed
estimating the fair value of the reporting unit aaparing it with its carrying value, includingagpwill.

Step one of the goodwill impairment test considtea a@omparison of the fair value of a reportingtuajainst its carrying amou
including the goodwill allocated to each reportingit. We determine the fair value of our reportingits based on the present valu
estimated future cash flows under the income amproéthe reporting units as well as various pdcenarket multiples applied to the repor
unit's operating results along with the appropr@dstrol premium under the marketing approach, lodtivhich are classified as level 3 wit
the fair value hierarchy (as described in Note @unconsolidated financial statements). If theydéag amount of the reporting unit is in exc
of its fair value, step two requires the compariséithe implied fair value of the reporting usitjoodwill against the carrying amount of
reporting unit's goodwill. Any excess of the camng value of the reporting unit’'s goodwill over timaplied fair value of the reporting urst’
goodwill is recorded as an impairment loss.

During March 2013, changes in the competitive eannnent for intraeral scanners, including announcements from ourpetitors o
new lowypriced scanners targeted at orthodontists and gemeactitioner dentists ("GPs") in North Americeaused us to lower ¢
expectations for growth and profitability for oucéner reporting unit. As a result, we determirteat goodwill related only to our Scan
reporting unit should be tested for impairment &8arch 31, 2013 due to these facts and circumstmehich would more likely than r
reduce the fair value of our Scanner reporting tielow its carrying amount. There was no triggerevgnt related to the Clear Aligi
goodwill. Refer to Note 5 for details of the impagnt analysis.

The remaining goodwill is entirely attributabledar Clear Aligner reporting unit. During the fourgliarter of fiscal 2014, we perforr
the annual goodwill impairment testing using theldative approach discussed above and found naimmgnt as the fair value of our Cl
Aligner reporting unit was significantly in excesfsthe carrying value.

Finite-lived intangible assets and long-lived asset

We evaluate long-lived assets (including firliteed intangible assets) for impairment wheneveergs or changes in circumstar
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset groap not be recoverable. An asset or asset geoaprisidered impaired if its carrying amc
exceeds the future undiscounted net cash flowsgket or asset group is expected to generaten dbset or asset group is considered
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is calimd as the amount by which the carrying amoutih@fasset or asset group exceeds it
market value. Our estimates of future cash flottsbatable to our londived assets require significant judgment base@duwnhistorical an
anticipated results and are subject to many fackastors we consider important which could triggerimpairment review include significi
negative industry or economic trends, significaygsl of customers and changes in the competitivid@@ment. In 2013, we used a D
approach, utilizing harvest model, to estimatefétievalue of a reporting unit, which we believetli@ most reliable indicator of fair value ¢
business, and is most consistent with the approhahmarketplace participant would use. The estonatf fair value utilizing a DCF approa
includes numerous uncertainties which require @niicant judgment when making assumptions of expe growth rates and the selectio
discount rates, as well as assumptions regardimgrge economic and business conditions, and thetate that would yield the high
economic value, among other factors. Key assumpti@ed in measuring the fair values of Scannerrtiegounit included the discount ri
(based on the weighted-average cost of capitalyewehue growth. The fair value of Scanner’s traaldtmvas determined using a riakljuste:
DCF model under the relief-from-royalty method. Thgalty
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rate used was based on a consideration of martest. rahe fair value of Scanner’s finliged customer relationships was determined us
DCF model under the multi-period excess earning$hatk We recorded a loriyed asset impairment in the quarter ended Mafci2813 du
to changes in the competitive environment for auraioral scanners, including announcements from cmmpetitors of new lowpricec
scanners targeted at orthodontists and generditfyaer dentists in North America. There was rigdering event related to the Clear Alig
asset group. Refer to Note 5 for details of thedimpent analysis.

There were no further triggering events in 2014 ¥hauld cause further impairments of our long-liassets.
Development costs for internal use software

Internally developed software includes enterpléses| business software that we are customizingiéet our specific operational nee
Such capitalized costs include external directastized in developing or obtaining the applioag and payroll and payraklated costs fi
employees, who are directly associated with theeldgyment of the applications. In 2014, we starteceaterprise resource planning ("ER
project which we have capitalized $2.6 milliohcosts as of December 31, 2014 which is incluidecbnstruction in progress ("CIP"). Wt
the ERP is placed into production, these costs wéllamortized over 1@ears. Internal development costs for internal scféware for 201
were not material.

The costs to develop software that is marketedealiy have not been capitalized as we believecourent software development proc
is essentially completed concurrent with the esghbient of technological feasibility. As such, edlated software development costs
expensed as incurred and included in research erelapment expense in our consolidated statemespiexfations.

Product Warranty
Clear Aligner

We warrant our Invisalign products against matedifiects until the Invisalign case is complete. &¢erue for warranty costs in cos
net revenues upon shipment of products. The amolatcrued estimated warranty costs is primarilgeloiaon historical experience a:
product failures as well as current information @placement costs. Actual warranty costs couldedimaterially from the estimat
amounts. We regularly review the accrued balanodsipdate these balances based on historical vipigast trends.

Scanners and Services

We warrant our intra-oral scanners for a periodrmgyear, which include materials and labor. We acdoud¢hese warranty costs ba
on average historical repair costs. An extendedlanty may be purchased for additional fees.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Returns

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts, fastomers that are not able to make payments, anshfes returns. We periodice
review these allowances, including an analysisgefdustomers’ payment history and information rdgay the customersreditworthiness, i
well as historical sales returns as a percentagevehue. Actual write-offs have not materiallffelied from the estimated allowance.

Revenue Recognition

We measure and allocate revenue according to tbeuating guidance for multipldeliverable revenue arrangements in Accoul
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-1Bjultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangemeats:onsensus of the Financial Accounting Standaredrd
(“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force

Multiple-Element Arrangements (“MEAs”Arrangements with customers may include multiplevdeables, including any combinati
of products/equipment and services. The delivesabicluded in the MEAs are separated into mora tree unit of accounting when (i)
delivered product/equipment has value to the custan a stan@lone basis, and (ii) delivery of the undeliveredvice element(s) is proba
and substantially in our control. Arrangement édeation is then allocated to each unit, delivesedndelivered, based on the relative se
price (“RSP”) of each unit of accounting basedtfors vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE"jtiexists, second on thindarty evidenc
(“TPE") if it exists, and on best estimated sellprice (“BESP”) if neither VSOE or TPE exist.
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* VSOE - In most instances, products are soldragglg in standalone arrangements. Services are also sold selyattatough renewa
of contracts with varying periods. We determineOESbased on its pricing and discounting practicestte specific product
service when sold separately, considering geogecaphtustomer, and other economic or marketingatédes, as well as rene\
rates or stand-alone prices for the service elefsent

» TPE - If we cannot establish VSOE of sellingprior a specific product or service included mualtiple-element arrangement, we
third-party evidence of selling price. We determine TREdd on sales of comparable amount of similar mtsder service offere
by multiple third parties considering the degreewstomization and similarity of product or servimd.

* BESP - The best estimated selling price repredkatprice at which we would sell a product or ses\f it were sold on a staralene
basis. When VSOE or TPE do not exist for all eleteewe determine BESP for the arrangement eleivesed on sales, cost i
margin analysis, as well as other inputs basedsopricing practices. Adjustments for other mared Companygpecific factor
are made as deemed necessary in determining BESP

Provisions for discounts and rebates to customerpravided for in the same period that the relaediuct sales are recorded based
historical discounts and rebates.

Clear Aligner

We enter into arrangements (“treatment plartbdt involve multiple future product deliverabldswisalign Full, Invisalign Teen, a
Invisalign Assist include up to three optional casfnements. Case refinement is a finishing ta®@dito adjust a patient's teeth to the de
final position. Case refinement may be electedhieydental professional at any time during treatrhemever it is generally ordered in the
stages of orthodontic treatment. Beginning June20A43, Invisalign Full and Invisalign Teen alselide up to three optional mimburst
corrections. Mideourse correction is a treatment adjustment duaittye treatment if the case is not tracking todhginal treatment plan
goals. Mideourse correction gives doctors the ability to Uatljcourse' based on the needs of the individutérga Invisalign Teen al
includes up to six optional replacement alignertheprice of the product and may be ordered ang throughout treatment.

We determined that our treatment plans, excepsélign Assist with progress tracking, comprise fihllowing deliverables which al:
represent separate units of accounting: singlehkdtaligners, case refinement, neimldrse correction and replacement aligners. Woeail
revenue for each treatment plan based on eacls veltive selling price based on BESP and recegthie revenue upon the delivery of €
unit in the treatment plan. We regularly review estimates of selling price and maintain interradtmls over the establishment and upda
these estimates.

For Invisalign Assist with the progress trackingttee, aligners and services are provided to tdatiprofessional every nine stages (*
batch”). We estimate the number of batches which are expéotbe shipped for each case based upon our ibatexperience. The amou
allocated to this deliverable are recognized oroagped basis as each batch is shipped.

Prior to 2013, the Vivera Retainer included fouipsirents per year, and revenue was recognized yaéaldach shipment occurred. In
first quarter of 2013, we consolidated Vivera Rataiproduct shipments down to one shipment per. year

Scanners and Services

We recognize revenues from the sales of iTero -Hoteh scanners and CAD/CAM services. CAD/CAM sersidaclude scannir
services, extended warranty for the intral scanners, a range of iTero restorative sesyieed OrthoCAD services such as Ortho(
iRecord. We sell intra-oral scanners and servioesugh both our direct sales force and distribupaniners. The intraral scanner sales pr
includes one year of warranty, and for additiorelsf, the customer may select an unlimited scarsgngce agreement over a fixed perio
time or extended warranty periods. Revenue is geiced when persuasive evidence of the arrangererists, the price is fixed
determinable, collectability is reasonably assutélt and risk of loss has passed to customersdas the shipping terms, no signific
obligations remain, and allowances for discourdyms, and customer incentives can be reliabiynastd. When intraral scanners are si
with either an unlimited scanning service agreenatt/or extended warranty, we allocate revenuecbaseeach element's relative sel
price. We estimate the selling price of each elgmas if it is sold on a staralene basis, taking into consideration historicadgs as well ¢
our discounting strategies. Scanner revenue, netlafed discounts and allowances, is recognizednwiroducts or equipment have t
shipped, installed and on-site training completéebr certain distributors who provide installatieand training to the
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customer, we recognize scanner revenue when treedrdl scanner is shipped to the distributor assuraihgf the other revenue recognit
criteria have been met.

Discounts are deducted from revenue at the timsatef or when the discount is offered, whichevdatier, and free cases or trainin
included as a deliverable in the multiglement arrangement assessment. Returns of prodwctading warranty related returns, are infreq
and insignificant.

Service revenue, including iTero restorative andathoCAD services are recognized upon deliveryatably over the contract term
the specified services are performed. If a custesebacts a pay per use basis for scanning semés the revenue is recognized as the s¢
is provided.

We offer customers an option to purchase extendaulawties on certain products. We recognize revemuéhese extended warra
contracts ratably over the life of the contracte Tosts associated with these extended warrantyaot® are recognized when incurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling charges to customers areided in net revenues, and the associated costsrédcare recorded in cost
revenues.

Legal Proceedings and Litigations

We are involved in legal proceedings on an ongdiagis. If we believe that a loss arising from suwditers is probable and can
reasonably estimated, we accrue the estimatedityaini our financial statements. If only a rangkestimated losses can be determinec
accrue an amount within the range that, in our joelgt, reflect the most likely outcome; if none loé testimates within that range is a b
estimate than any other amount, we accrue the talwoéthe range.

Research and development

Research and development expense is expensedusiethand includes the costs associated with theareh and development of r
products and enhancements to existing productsseTtloests primarily include compensation costs,utlioly stockbased compensati
expense, outside consulting expenses, costs assbaiath conducting clinical and pammercialization trial and testing, allocation:
corporate overhead expenses including facilitieslarcosts, equipment costs and depreciation aratt@ation.

Advertising costs

The cost of advertising and media is expensed agred. For the year ended December 31, 2014 , 20@32012advertising cos
totaled $26.9 million , $26.0 million and $23.6 lwih , respectively.

Common stock repurchase

We repurchase our own common stock from time t@ timthe open market when our Board of Directongrage a stock repurche
program. We account for these repurchases undeadt@unting guidance for equity where we allochte tbtal repurchase value that ar
excess over par between additional paid in cagitdlretained earnings. All shares repurchasecetired.

Operating leases

We currently lease office spaces, automobiles guipenent under operating leases with original lgzesgods of up to $ears. Certa
of these leases have free or escalating rent paypnewisions and lease incentives provided by émllord. We recognize rent expense u
such leases on a straight-line basis over the ¢étime lease as certain leases have adjustmentsdiidet provisions.

70




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Income taxes

We make certain estimates and judgments in det@rgiimcome tax expense for financial statement psep. These estimates
judgments occur in the calculation of certain tageds and liabilities, which arise from differen@geshe timing of recognition of revenue ¢
expense for tax and financial statement purposes.

As part of the process of preparing our Consoldid&mancial Statements, we are required to estimateéncome taxes in each of
jurisdictions in which we operate. This processolaes us estimating our current tax exposure utigerapplicable tax laws and asses
temporary differences resulting from differing treant of items for tax and accounting purposesseldifferences result in deferred tax as
and liabilities, which are included in our Consalied Balance Sheets.

We account for uncertainty in income taxes pursuardguthoritative guidance based on a step approach to recognize and mes
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to bertak a tax return. The first step is to deternifrtee weight of available evidence indice
that it is more likely than not that the tax pasitiwill be sustained on audit based on its techmiggits, including resolution of any rela
appeals or litigation processes. The second stapriseasure the tax benefit as the largest ambantis more than 50% likely to be reali
upon ultimate settlement. We adjust reserves fouoaertain tax positions due to changing facts@raimstances, such as the closing of
audit, or refinement of estimates due to new infion. To the extent that the final outcome of éhesatters is different than the amol
recorded, such differences will impact our tax [smn in our Consolidated Statements of Operatiorthe period in which such determinai
is made.

We assess the likelihood that we will be able @lize our deferred tax assets. Should there beaagehin our ability to realize ¢
deferred tax assets, our tax provision would ingeaa the period in which we determine that it mrenlikely than not that we cannot realize
deferred tax assets. We consider all availableeend, both positive and negative, including histdrievels of income, expectations and t
associated with estimates of future taxable incanmongoing prudent and feasible tax planningesgias in assessing the need for a valu
allowance. If it is more likely than not that wellwiot realize our deferred tax assets, we willlgase our provision for taxes by recordit
valuation allowance against the deferred tax astets we estimate will not ultimately be realizablehe available positive evidence
December 31, 201#cluded historical operating profits and a prajattof future income sufficient to realize mostafr remaining deferre
tax assets. As of December 31, 2014was considered more likely than not that oefledred tax assets would be realized with the diaeof
certain foreign loss carryovers as we are unablertizast sufficient future profits to realize theferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2014U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxssoaiated with the repatriation of undistributechams o
foreign subsidiaries were not provided for on a ulative total of $260.9 million We intend to reinvest these earnings indefinitalyui
foreign subsidiaries. If these earnings were digted in the form of dividends or otherwise, othié shares of the relevant foreign subsidi
were sold or otherwise transferred, we would bgesmtitio additional U.S. income taxes subject toadjustment for foreign tax credit, ¢
foreign withholding taxes. Determination of the ambof unrecognized deferred income tax liabil#jated to these earnings is not practice

Accounting guidance for stodkased compensation prohibits recognition of a defemcome tax asset for excess tax benefits d
stock option exercises that have not yet beenzeshlihrough a reduction in income taxes payablefaNew the tax law ordering method
determine when excess tax benefits have beenedadiad consider only the direct impacts of awarllencalculating the amount of windf:
or shortfalls.

Stock-based compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation cost for thiolge shares ultimately expected to vest on @gbtriine basis over the requis
service period of the award. We use the Bl&ckoles option pricing model to determine the Yailue of stock options and employee s
purchase plan shares. We estimate the fair valueaofetperformance based restricted stock units using até1Garlo simulation model whi
requires the input of assumptions, including expederm, stock price volatility and the rifilee rate of return. In addition, judgment is .
required in estimating the number of stdised awards that are expected to be forfeitedeiRoes are estimated based on histo
experience at the time of grant and revised, ieBsary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitdifer from those estimates. The assumpi
used in calculating the fair value of share-basaghpent awards represent managensebhgést estimates, but these estimates involveénl
uncertainties and the application of managementgent. As a result, if factors change and wedifferent assumptions, our stoblase!
compensation expense could be materially diffeiretite future.
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Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

For an entity in which we have variable interesis, focus on identifying which entity has the powerdirect the activities that mc
significantly impact the variable interest ent#ty¢conomic performance and which enterprise hasliligation to absorb losses or the rigt
receive benefits from the variable interest enfityve are the primary beneficiary of a variabléeiest entity, the assets, liabilities, and re
of operations of the variable interest entity vl included in our Consolidated Financial Statemdror fiscal year 2014, 2013 and 2012
did not have any material variable interest ergtittexd did not consolidate any variable interesttiest because we are not a prin
beneficiary.

Medical Device Excise Taxes

In accordance with the Patient Protection and Afiidnle Care Act, effective January 1, 2013, we bégancur an excise tax on sale:
medical devices in the U.S. In March 2014, we wiefermed by IRS that our aligners are not subjecthite medical device excise
("MDET") which we had been paying and expensingémeral and administrative expenses in the coraelidstatements of operations s
January 1, 2013; however, our scanners are shijestito the MDET. Beginning in March 2014, we @shexpensing and paying the MDET
aligners. We are currently in process of claimin§éa8 millionrefund of MDET paid in 2013 related to our alignemewever, because tl
claim is subject to review and approval by the IR®, have not recorded a receivable as the outcdntleecaudit is uncertain. Any futt
changes in the applicability of the MDET as it applto us or refunds of amounts previously paid mélrecorded as an additional expense
credit to the consolidated statement of operatinrie period in which is becomes probable andaealsly estimable.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in eqdityng a period from noowner sources. Comprehensive income, inclu
unrealized gains and losses on availablesfide securities and foreign currency translatiojusachents, are reported net of their relatec
effect.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards@da-ASB") issued Accounting Standards Update (UA52014-09, ‘Revenue fror
Contracts with Customerstequiring an entity to recognize the amount of rexeto which it expects to be entitled for the $fan of promise
goods or services to customers. The updated stndhireplace most existing revenue recognitiondgace in U.S. GAAP when it becon
effective and permits the use of either the regotipe or cumulative effect transition method. Eatloption is not permitted. The updz
standard becomes effective for us in the first tpraof fiscal 2017. We have not yet selected asiteom method and we are currently evalue
the effect that the updated standard will have umconsolidated financial statements and relatsdasures.

Note 2. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measwgments

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the estimatedditue of our short-term and lorigkm investments, classified as available for
are as follows (in thousands):

Short-term
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December 31, 2014

Commercial paper

Corporate bonds

U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds
Municipal securities

U.S. government agency bonds

U.S. government treasury bonds

Certificates of Deposit

Total Marketable Securities, Short-Term

Long-term

December 31, 2014

U.S. government agency bonds

Corporate bonds

U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds
U.S. government treasury bonds

Municipal securities

Asset-backed securities

Total Marketable Securities, Long-Term

Short-term

December 31, 2013

Commercial paper

Corporate bonds

U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds
Municipal securities

U.S. government agency bonds

Asset-backed securities

Total Marketable Securities, Short-Term

Long-term

December 31, 2013

U.S. government agency bonds

Corporate bonds

U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds
U.S. government treasury bonds

Municipal securities

Asset-backed securities

Total Marketable Securities, Long-Term

ed)
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
33,99¢ = = 33,99¢
152,05! 27 (11€) 151,96¢
901 = = 901
9,147 13 — 9,16(
41,57« 14 (D) 41,58’
15,77( 7 — 15,77"
1,39¢ — — 1,39¢
254,84: 61 (117) 254,78
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
48,23: 12 (28) 48,21"
57,19¢ 6 (112 57,08¢
527 — 2 521
20,81« 5 (6) 20,81
9,557 5 (6) 9,551
11,71 — 12 11,70:
148,03( 28 (16€) 147,89:
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
54,31¢ 10 = 54,32¢
29,07¢ 10 4 29,08t
13,95¢ 12 — 13,97
7,00¢ 11 3 7,01«
16,69 10 — 16,70
5,931 2 — 5,93¢
126,99: 55 @) 127,04(
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
38,13¢ 1 (22) 38,11¢
23,30¢ 14 (9) 23,31
19,48t 27 a7 19,49
6,91¢ 3 — 6,91¢
8,32¢ 13 (8) 8,331
5,80( 4 2 5,80z
101,97: 62 (57) 101,97¢
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For the year ended December 31, 2014 and 20#&alized losses were immaterial. Cash and caslvagnts were not included in 1
table above as the gross unrealized gains andslegse not material. We have no material short-tertongterm investments that have b
in continuous unrealized loss positions for gredtem twelve months as of December 31, 201mounts reclassified to earnings fr
unrealized gain or losses were immaterial in 201212013 .

Our fixedincome securities investment portfolio consiste@fporate bonds, U.S. dollar dominated foreign cmafe bonds, commerc
paper, municipal securities, U.S. government agdrmyds and asset-backed securities that have anmaximaturity of twoyears. Th
securities that we invest in are generally deensebet low risk based on their credit ratings frore thajor rating agencies. The longer
duration of these securities, the more susceptitdg are to changes in market interest rates and p@lds. As interest rates increase, tl
securities purchased at a lower yield show a maurkdrket unrealized loss. The unrealized losseswedmarily to changes in credit spre
and interest rates. We expect to realize the allie of all these investments upon maturity or.sdlee weighted average remaining duratic
these securities was approximately 10 months anddriths as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respéctiv

As the carrying value approximates the fair valoedur short-term and longrm marketable securities shown in the tables et
following table summarizes the fair value of ouokterm and long-term marketable securities cfeesbby maturity as oDecember 31, 20:
and 2013 (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
One year or less $ 254,78 $ 127,04(
Due in greater than one year 147,89:. 101,97¢
Total available for short-term and long-term maaké¢ securities $ 402,67¢ $ 229,01

Fair Value Measurements

We measure the fair value of our cash equivalendsraarketable securities as the price that wouldebeived from selling an asse
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transant between market participants at the measuremiatet We use the U.S. GAAP fair ve
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuattenhniques used to measure fair value. This hibyarequires an entity tmaximize the use
observable inputs and minimize the use of unob&éevanputs when measuring fair value. The threelke of inputs that may be usec
measure fair value:

Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets consist of money market fundbk @S government treasury bonds. We did not hold lagvel 1 liabilities as ¢
December 31, 2014 or 2013.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices includdcevel 1, such as quoted prices for similar &sse liabilities in activ
markets; quoted prices for identical or similareassor liabilities in markets that are not actiee;other inputs that are observable or ca
corroborated by observable market data for subiathnthe full term of the asset or liability.

Our Level 2 assets consist of commercial papeparate bonds, U.S. dollar denominated foreign c@fgobonds, municipal securiti
U.S. government agency bonds, certificate of déposissebacked securities, and our Israeli funds that asiniy invested in insuran
policies. We obtain these fair values for leveln2estments from our asset manager for each of orifopios. Our custody bank and as
managers independently use professional pricingicess to gather pricing data which may include gdotmarket prices for identical
comparable financial instruments, or inputs othemt quoted prices that are observable either directindirectly, and we are ultimate
responsible for these underlying estimates.

We did not hold any Level 2 liabilities as of Dedsn 31, 2014 or 2013 .

Level 3—Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology ére supported by little or no market activitgldhat are significant to t
measurement of the fair value of the assets oilitieb. Level 3 assets and liabilities includeoske whose fair value measurements
determined using pricing models, discounted caskv f("DCF") methodologies or similar valuation te@ues, as well as significe
management judgment or estimation.

We did not hold any Level 3 assets or liabilitissoh December 31, 2014 or 2013 .
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Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

During 2013, we recorded an impairment charge tolang-lived assets and goodwill of $26.3 milliand $40.7 million respectively
related to our Scanner and Services ("Scanner9rtiag unit as a triggering event occurred anduwitstances changed that led us to per
an impairment analysis prior to our annual testclwhiequired us to determine the fair value of tharBer reporting unit (Refer to Note
These fair value measurements were calculated wsinfservable inputs, using the income approackhwili classified as Level 3 within 1
fair value hierarchy. Inputs for the income appfoarludes the amount and timing of future caskvfidoased on our most recent operati
budgets, strategic plans, terminal growth ratesrapions and other estimates.

The following tables summarizes our financial assetasured at fair value on a recurring basis &eoémber 31, 2014 and 2013 (in

thousands):
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable Inputs

Description December 31, 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 80,78¢ $ 80,78¢ $ —

Commercial paper 21,997 — 21,99;

Corporate bonds 1,74¢ — 1,74¢
Short-term investments:

Commercial paper 33,99¢ — 33,99¢

Corporate bonds 151,96t — 151,96t

U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 901 — 901

Municipal securities 9,16( — 9,16(

U.S. government agency bonds 41,58’ — 41,58’

U.S. government treasury bonds 15,771 15,771 —

Certificate of Deposits 1,39¢ — 1,39¢
Long-term investments:

Corporate bonds 57,08¢ — 57,08¢

U.S. government agency bonds 48,21° — 48,21°

U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 521 — 521

U.S. government treasury bonds 20,81 20,81 —

Municipal securities 9,551 — 9,551

Asset-backed securities 11,70: — 11,70:
Long-term other assets:

Israeli funds 2,307 — 2,30

$ 509,51 $ 117,37¢  $ 392,13t

75




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable Inputs

Description December 31, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 143,54 $ 143,54 $ —

Commercial paper 15,39¢ — 15,39¢
Short-term investments:

Commercial paper 54,32¢ — 54,32¢

Corporate bonds 29,08t — 29,08t

U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 13,97: — 13,97:

Municipal securities 7,01« — 7,01«

U.S. government agency bonds 16,70: — 16,70:

Asset-backed securities 5,93¢ — 5,93¢
Long-term investments:

Corporate bonds 23,31 — 23,31

U.S. government agency bonds 38,11¢ — 38,11¢

U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 19,49t — 19,49t

U.S. government treasury bonds 6,91¢ 6,91¢ —

Municipal securities 8,331 — 8,331

Asset-backed securities 5,80z — 5,80z
Long-term other assets:

Israeli funds 2,19: — 2,19:

$ 390,14¢ $ 150,45¢ $ 239,69(

Note 3. Balance Sheet Components
Inventories

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands)

December 31,

2014 2013
Raw materials $ 8,14: $ 5,172
Work in process 2,97( 4,241
Finished goods 4,81°¢ 4,55k
Total Inventories $ 15,92¢ % 13,96¢

Work in process includes costs to produce our aéigner and intra-oral scanner products. Finispeods primarily represent our intra-
oral scanners and ancillary products that suppertiear aligner products.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilt@a(in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013

Clinical and manufacturing equipment $ 107,700 $ 104,37:
Computer hardware 24,09: 24,85
Computer software 22,044 21,28t
Furniture and fixtures 7,38¢ 7,27¢
Leasehold improvements 15,35¢ 14,99¢
Building 1,86¢ 1,86¢
Land 1,162 1,162
CIP 18,31( 5,43¢
Total 197,92 181,24¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortizationianhirment charge's (107,807 (105,50¢)
Total Property, plant and equipment, net $ 90,12 $ 75,74

1 We recorded an impairment of our long-lived asget®013 which was a result of changes in the coitipetenvironment for intrasral

scanners which included announcements of newpdeed scanners targeted at orthodontists and GRelith America that caused u
lower our expectations for growth and profitabilitr our Scanner reporting unit. As a result, weetdwmined that the carrying value of
long-lived assets was not recoverable and therefrerded an impairment charge of $26.3 milliorf which $7.0 millionrelated t
property and equipment. Refer to Note 5 for det@#ilthe impairment analysis.

As of December 31, 2014CIP consists primarily of costs for capital equgnt to be placed in service in the next year; h@wnen late
2014 we started an ERP project and have capita$2e@ millionas of December 31, 2014, which we anticipate vellglaced in service
2016. Depreciation and amortization was $14.8 arillj $13.9 million , and $13.4 million , for theareended December 31, 2012013 an
2012, respectively.

Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (indhsands):

December 31,

2014 2013
Accrued payroll and benefits $ 44,61( % 43,02¢
Accrued sales rebate 11,11C 10,10(
Accrued sales and marketing expenses 5,97¢ 3,89:
Accrued accounts payable 5,73¢ 4,05:
Accrued sales tax and value added tax 5,45¢€ 6,21¢
Accrued warranty 3,14¢ 3,10¢
Accrued professional fees 2,49¢ 1,892
Accrued income taxes 2,02 1,20¢
Other accrued liabilities 7,32( 6,85¢
Total Accrued Liabilities $ 87,880 $ 80,34t

Warranty

We regularly review the accrued balances and uptiatee balances based on historical warranty treAdtual warranty costs incurr
have not materially differed from those accruecwdver, future actual warranty costs could diffenf the estimated amounts.
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Clear Aligner

We warrant our Invisalign products against mategtigfects until the Invisalign case is complete. &¢erue for warranty costs in cos
net revenues upon shipment of products. The amoluatcrued estimated warranty costs is primarilgeldaon historical experience a:
product failures as well as current informationreplacement costs.

Scanners

We warrant our scanners for a period of gear from the date of training and installation. terue for these warranty costs wl
includes materials and labor based on estimatedriuial repair costs. Extended service packageshegyurchased for additional fees.

Warranty accrual as of December 31, 2014 and 26a8ists of the following activity (in thousands):

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2012 $ 4,05(
Charged to cost of revenues 2,85(
Actual warranty expenditures (3,79¢)

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2013 3,10¢
Charged to cost of revenues 1,99(
Actual warranty expenditures (1,946

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2014 $ 3,14¢

Note 4. Business Combinations
Cadent

On April 29, 2011, we completed the acquisitiorCaident, a 3D digital scanning solution for orthaittsnand dentistry, for an aggrec
cash purchase price of approximately $187.6 milligvie recorded goodwill of $135.3 millias a result of the acquisition, which represerd
excess of the purchase price over the fair valuthefunderlying net tangible and identifiable irgdnbe assets, and represents the exp
synergies of the transaction and the knowledgeeapérience of the workforce in place. None of thedyvill is deductible for tax purposes
connection with the acquisition, we allocated agpmately $77.3 millionof the goodwill from the Cadent acquisition to ddcanner ar
Services ("Scanner") reporting unit and approxinye$88.0 millionto our Clear Aligner reporting unit based on thpested relative synergi
generated by the acquisition. During the third tpraof 2012, we determined that goodwill for ouaBger reporting unit should be testec
impairment between annual impairment tests sincevant occurred or circumstances changed that woole likely than not reduce the 1
value of our Scanner reporting unit below its camgyamount. We recorded a total impairment chafgk36.6 millionfor the Scanner for 20.
after finalizing step two of our analysis. Furthéaring March 2013, changes in the competitiveiremwnent for intraeral scanners, includil
announcements from our competitors of new fmiged scanners targeted at orthodontists and gkepeactitioner dentists in North Ameri
caused us to lower our expectations for growth @naditability for our Scanner reporting unit. Agesult, we determined that goodwill rele
only to our Scanner reporting unit should be te$tedmpairment as of March 2013 due to these factd circumstances which would m
likely than not reduce the fair value of our Scanreporting unit below its carrying amount. Based aur analysis, there was no impl
goodwill for the Scanner reporting unit; therefone, recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $4dilfion in the three months ended Ma
31, 2013, which represents the remaining goodwillhibce in the Scanner reporting unit. All remaingogdwill from the Cadent acquisition
of December 31, 2014 is attributable to the Clelgner segment. See Note 5 for discussion of owdgall impairment.

ICA Holdings Pty Limited

On April 30, 2013, we completed the acquisitio©A Holdings Pty Limited ("ICA") upon the expiratioof the distribution agreeme
between certain subsidiaries of ICA and Align Tealbgy B.V., for a total cash consideration of apgmuately $8.6 million , of whicH57.4
million was attributed to assets acquired, $2.4iomlin liabilities assumed and $3.6 millido goodwill. Goodwill as a result of this acquisi
represents the excess of the purchase price owdaithvalue of the underlying net assets acquaredi represents the knowledge and exper
of the workforce in place. None of this goodwilllMie deductible for tax
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purposes. Under the applicable accounting guidagaedwill will not be amortized but will be testéar impairment on an annual basis or n
frequently if certain indicators are present.

Pro forma results of operations for this acquisititave not been presented as it is not materiautoresults of operations, eitl
individually or in aggregate, for the year ended 20

Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The change in the carrying value of goodwill foe trear ended December 31, 2014 by our reportablaesats, which are also our
reporting units, are as follows (in thousands):

Scanners and

Clear Aligner Services Total
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 58,54: $ 40,69: $ 99,23¢
Goodwill from ICA acquisition 3,55¢ — 3,55¢
Impairment of goodwiill — (40,697 (40,697
Adjustments (47¢) — (47¢)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 61,62 — 61,62
Goodwill from ICA acquisition — — —
Adjustments (254) — (254)
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 61,36¢ $ — ¢ 61,36¢

! The adjustments to goodwill were a result of fonedurrency translatio

Impairment of Goodwill

We evaluate goodwill for impairment at least aniyuah November 30th or more frequently if indicat@re present, an event occur
circumstances changes that suggest an impairmentexist and that it would more likely than not reduhe fair value of a reporting u
below its carrying amount. The allocation of godtite the respective reporting unit is based olatiee synergies generated as a result (
acquisition.

2012 Impairment

During the third quarter of 2012, we determined tha goodwill for our Scanner reporting unit shibbk tested for impairment betw:
annual impairment tests since an event occurredftistances changed that would more likely thanredtce the fair value of our Scan
reporting unit below its carrying amount. Theseigatbrs included the termination of an exclusivetribution arrangement with Straumann
iTero intra-oral scanners in Europe, as well astémmination of their non-exclusive distributiorramgement for iTero intraral scanners
North America, together with market conditions dnginess trends within the Scanner reporting While we continued to expect revel
growth in our Scanner business, our expectationfutore growth and profitability rates projectemt the Scanner reporting unit were lo
than our previous estimates primarily driven byralldower than expected financial results.

As a result, we performed step one analysis forSmamner reporting unit, which consists of a consparof the fair value of the Scan
reporting unit against its carrying amount, inchglithe goodwill allocated to it. In deriving therfaalue of the Scanner reporting unit,
utilized a combination of both the income and madggproach, which are classified as level 3 witthia fair value hierarchy. The inco
approach provides an estimate of fair value basediscounted expected future cash flows. The mafptoach provides an estimate of
value using various prices or market multiples eggpto the reporting unit's operating results drehtapplies an appropriate control premiu
order to reconcile to our market capitalization.aAesult of our step one analysis, we concludatittte fair value of the Scanner reporting
was less than its carrying value, therefore, wegeded to perform step two of the goodwill impaintrenalysis.
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Step two of the goodwill impairment analysis measuthe impairment charge by allocating the repgrtinit's fair value to all of tt
assets and liabilities of the reporting unit inypdthetical analysis that calculates the impligdalue of goodwill in the same manner as it
reporting unit was being acquired in a businesshioation. This allocation process was performed/dat the purposes of measuring
goodwill impairment, and not to adjust the carryirajues of the recognized tangible assets anditiabi Any excess of the carrying value
the reporting unit's goodwill over the implied famlue of the reporting unit's goodwill is recordesian impairment loss. Based on our ana
the implied fair value of goodwill was substantdibwer than the carrying value of the goodwill tbe Scanner reporting unit. We record
preliminary goodwill impairment charge during therd quarter of 2012 of $24.7 million and an aduial $11.9 millionduring the fourt
quarter of 2012, representing a change in estimpt® finalizing our 2013 annual budget process,afdotal impairment charge &36.¢
million . None of the goodwill impairment charge ssédeductible for tax purposes.

2013 Impairment

During March 2013, changes in the competitive eminent for intraeral scanners, including announcements from ourpetitors o
new lowypriced scanners targeted at orthodontists and gepsactitioner dentists in North America, causadt@ lower our expectations
growth and profitability for our Scanner reportingit. As a result, we determined that goodwill tetaonly to our Scanner reporting t
should be tested for impairment as of March 2018 tduhese facts and circumstances which would tilaely than not reduce the fair value
our Scanner reporting unit below its carrying antolihere was no triggering event related to theaCAigner goodwill.

We performed a step one analysis for our Scanmpartiag unit which consists of a comparison of thie value of the Scanner report
unit against its carrying amount, including the dwdl allocated to it. In deriving the fair valud the Scanner reporting unit, we utilized
income approach which is classified as Level 3 wittihe fair value hierarchy. This approach provides estimated fair value based
discounted expected future cash flows, which asethan management's estimates of revenue groveth aat operating margins, taking
consideration industry and market conditions. Tisealint rate used is based on a weighted averagetoapital adjusted for the relevant
associated with the characteristics of the busiaadshe projected cash flows.

As a result of our step one analysis, we conclutied the fair value of the Scanner reporting ungiswess than its carrying val
therefore, we proceeded to step two of the goodmiflairment analysis. Step two of the goodwill inmpeent analysis measures the impairn
charge by allocating the reporting unit's fair vato all of the assets and liabilities of the ré&pgrunit in a hypothetical analysis that calcus
the implied fair value of goodwill in the same manms if the reporting unit was being acquired ibuginess combination. This allocat
process was performed only for the purposes of umgasthe goodwill impairment and not to adjust ttearying values of the recogni:
tangible assets and liabilities. Any excess ofdaeying value of the reporting unit's goodwill oube implied fair value of the reporting ur
goodwill is recorded as an impairment loss. We aisiiscounted cash flow (“DCF3gpproach to estimate the fair value of a reporting,
utilizing the harvest model, which we believe is thost reliable indicator of fair value of this mess, and is most consistent with the appr
a market place participant would use. Based onamadysis, there was no implied goodwill for the f8tr reporting unit; therefore, °
recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $40.7lianil in the three months ended March 31, 2013, whiphesents the remaining good\
balance in the Scanner reporting unit. None ofgihedwill impairment charge was deductible for taxgmses.

Annual Impairment Test

The remaining goodwill is entirely attributabledar Clear Aligner reporting unit. During the fourqliarter of fiscal 2014, we perforr
the annual goodwill impairment testing and foundmepairment events as the fair value of our Clebgrer reporting unit was significantly
excess of the carrying value.

Acquired Intangible Assets

We amortize our intangible assets over their edéthaiseful lives. We evaluate lofiged assets, which includes property, plant
equipment and intangible assets, for impairmentnglier events or changes in circumstances indibatedrrying value of an asset may nc
recoverable. The carrying value is not recover#hiteexceeds the undiscounted cash flows resultingh the use of the asset and its evel
disposition. Our estimates of future cash flowsitaitable to our londived assets require significant judgment basedwwnhistorical an
anticipated results and are subject to many fackastors we consider important which could triggerimpairment review include significi
negative industry or economic trends, significargsl of customers and changes in the competitivireemaent of our intrasral scannin
business.
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During March 2013, changes in the competitive emvinent for intrasral scanners, including announcements from ourpetitors o
new lowypriced scanners targeted at orthodontists and gepectitioner dentists in North America, that sadi us to lower our expectations
growth and profitability for our Scanner reportingit. As a result, we determined that the carryiatuie of the Scanner lorliyed assets wi
not recoverable as compared to the value of thésaodnted cash flows of our revised projectionstfier asset group. In order to determine
impairment amount of our long-lived assets, we ¥alued each key component of our Idivgd assets within the asset group, which inva
the use of significant estimates and assumptiotlading replacement costs, revenue growth ratessatipg margins, and plant and equipr
cost trends. We use a DCF approach, utilizing #iedst model, to estimate the fair value of a répgrunit, which we believe is the m
reliable indicator of fair value of a business, @dhost consistent with the approach of a marketparticipant would use. The estimatio
fair value utilizing a DCF approach includes numeraincertainties which require our significant jomt when making assumptions
expected growth rates and the selection of discmtes, as well as assumptions regarding genesaloetic and business conditions, anc
structure that would yield the highest economicugalamong other factors. Key assumptions used @suorang the fair values of Scan
reporting unit included the discount rate (basedttun weighted-average cost of capital) and revegrosvth. The fair value of Scanner’
trademark was determined using a risk-adjusted B@froach under the relief-froroyalty method. The royalty rate used was basea
consideration of market rates. The fair value ddrBer’s finiteived customer relationships was determined usiC& approach under t
multi-period excess earnings method. We determmedong-lived asset group within the Scanner répgrunit to be primarily finitdived
intangible assets, plant and equipment. Upon caioplef this analysis, we recorded a total impaintneharge of $26.3 millionof which
$19.3 million represented the impairment relatedup Scanner intangible assets and $7.0 mill@ated to plant and equipment. There we
triggering event related to the Clear Aligner aggeup.

There were no triggering events in 2014 that waaldse further impairments of our long-lived assets.

Intangible assets arising either as a direct rdsuth the Cadent acquisition or individually acerare being amortized as follows
thousands):

Weighted
Average
Amortization Gross Carrying Amount Net Carrying
Period (in as of Accumulated Impairment Value as of
years) December 31, 2014 Amortization Charge December 31, 2014
Trademarks 15 $ 7,10C $ (1,359 $ (4,179 $ 1,567
Existing technology 13 12,60( (3,019 (4,329 5,251
Customer relationships 11 33,50( (9,09 (10,757 13,65
Other 8 28t (76) — 20¢
Total Intangible Assets $ 53,48: $ (13540 $ (19,259 $ 20,68
Weighted
Average
Amortization Gross Carrying Net Carrying
Period (in Amount as of Accumulated Impairment Value as of
years) December 31, 2013 Amortization Charge December 31, 2013
Trademarks 15 $ 7,10C $ (1,100 $ (4,179 $ 1,821
Existing technology 13 12,60( (2,236 (4,329 6,03¢
Customer relationships 11 33,50( (7,117 (10,75)) 15,63°
Other 8 28t (40 — 24¢
Total Intangible Assets $ 53,48: $ (10,489 $ (19,259 $ 23,73¢
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The total estimated annual future amortization egpefor these acquired intangible assets as of bleee31, 2014s as follows (il
thousands):

Fiscal Year

2015 $ 2,60(
2016 2,60(
2017 2,60(
2018 2,60(
2019 2,60(
Thereafter 7,681
Total $ 20,68’

Note 6. Legal Proceedings
Securities Class Action Lawsuit

On November 28, 2012, plaintiff City of Dearbornigtes Act 345 Police & Fire Retirement System filethwsuit against Align, Thom
M. Prescott (“Mr. Prescott”), Align's President ai@hief Executive Officer, and Kenneth B. Arola (“MArola”), Align's former Vict
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officeithie United States District Court for the Northerigtilct of California on behalf of a purport
class of purchasers of our common stock (the “SgesirAction”). On July 11, 2013, an amended complaint was filddchvnamed the sar
defendants, on behalf of a purported class of @sets of our common stock between January 31, 20d2ctober 17, 2012. The amen
complaint alleged that Align, Mr. Prescott and Mirola violated Section 10(b) of the Securities Exohe Act of 1934 and Rule 1@b-
promulgated thereunder, and that Mr. Prescott andAyvbla violated Section 20(a) of the Securitiecliange Act of 1934. Specifically, 1
amended complaint alleged that during the purpastass period defendants failed to take an apmtsgoodwill impairment charge relate:
the April 29, 2011 acquisition of Cadent Holdings;. in the fourth quarter of 2011, the first gearbf 2012 or the second quarter of 2
which rendered our financial statements and prigjestof future earnings materially false and midieg and in violation of U.S. GAAP. T
amended complaint sought monetary damages in goeaified amount, costs and attornefe#s. On December 9, 2013, the court gre
defendantsimotion to dismiss with leave for plaintiff to fieesecond amended complaint. Plaintiff filed a sdcamended complaint on Jant
8, 2014 on behalf of the same purported class.séeend amended complaint states the same claithe asnended complaint. On August
2014, the court granted our motion to dismiss witleave to amend. On September 22, 2014, Plaifiiéff a notice of appeal to the Nil
Circuit Court of Appeals. Align intends to vigordyslefend itself against these allegations. Aligrturrently unable to predict the outcom
this amended complaint and therefore cannot deterhie likelihood of loss nor estimate a rangeasisible loss, if any.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuit

On February 1, 2013, plaintiff Gary Udis filed aaskholder derivative lawsuit against several ofAl current and former officers &
directors in the Superior Court of California, Courof Santa Clara. The complaint alleges that @ported income and earnings w
materially overstated because of a failure to tynvelite down goodwill related to the April 29, 20&tquisition of Cadent Holdings, Inc.,
that defendants made allegedly false statementsecoing our forecasts. The complaint asserts vargtate law causes of action, incluc
claims of breach of fiduciary duty, unjust enrichtheand insider trading, among others. The compkaeks unspecified damages on beh:
Align, which is named solely as nominal defendagdiast whom no recovery is sought. The complaist aleeks an order directing Aligr
reform and improve its corporate governance aretiiad procedures, and seeks restitution in an wifggmk amount, costs, and attornejesés
On July 8, 2013, an Order was entered stayingdiszative lawsuit until an initial ruling on ouirgt motion to dismiss the Securities Acti
On January 15, 2014, an Order was entered staljisglérivative lawsuit until an initial ruling orunsecond motion to dismiss the Secur
Action. On October 14, 2014, an Order was entetagirgy this derivative lawsuit until a ruling byetiNinth Circuit in the Securities Acti
discussed above. Align is currently unable to mietlie outcome of this complaint and therefore camtetermine the likelihood of loss |
estimate a range of possible losses.

In addition, in the course of Align's operationsigA is involved in a variety of claims, suits, #stigations, and proceedings, incluc
actions with respect to intellectual property clajmpatent infringement claims, government invesitga, labor and employment claims, bre
of contract claims, tax, and other matters. Regaslbf the outcome, these proceedings can have an
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adverse impact on us because of defense costssidiveof management resources, and other factdtsodgh the results of complex le
proceedings are difficult to predict and Align'ewi of these matters may change in the future @mfibn and events related thereto uni
Align currently does not believe that these mattargividually or in the aggregate, will materialaffect Align's financial position, results
operations or cash flows.

Note 7. Credit Facilities

On March 22, 2013, we entered into a credit facikith Wells Fargo Bank. The credit facility proesl for a $50.0 milliomevolving line
of credit, with a $10.0 milliotetter of credit sublimit, and has a maturity dateMarch 22, 2016. The credit facility also regsite to mainta
a minimum unrestricted cash balance of $50.0 miliad comply with specific financial conditions anerffermance requirements. The lo
bear interest, at our option, at a fluctuating na¢e annum equal to the daily one-month adjust&®lOR rate plus a spread of 1.7586 ar
adjusted LIBOR rate (based on one, three, six eivievmonth interest periods) plus a spread of 1.73% of December 31, 2014, we had
outstanding borrowings under this credit faciliydavere in compliance with the conditions and penfnce requirements.

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases

We lease our facilities and certain equipment amndraobiles under nonancelable operating lease arrangements that eapirariou
dates through 2022 and provide for pregotiated fixed rental rates during the termsheflease. The terms of some of our leases prowi
rental payments on a graduated scale. We recogaizeexpense on a straidiite basis over the lease period and accrue forrantyexpens
incurred but not paid. Total rent expense was #7lBon , $7.3 million and $6.9 million , for theear ended December 31, 2014 , 2@H8
2012 , respectively.

Minimum future lease payments for non-cancelakdsds as of December 31, 2014 , are as follow$¢insgnds):

Fiscal Year Operating leases

2015 $ 9,13(
2016 8,297
2017 4,65¢
2018 1,54
2019 20¢
Thereafter 21C
Total minimum lease payments $ 24,04¢

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014 , we had nolmdlance sheet arrangements that have, or are eddgdikely to have, a current or future mate
effect on our consolidated financial condition,ules of operations, liquidity, capital expenditugscapital resources.

Indemnification Provisions

In the normal course of business to facilitate seantions in our services and products, we indentefyain parties: customers, vend
lessors, and other parties with respect to certaitters, including, but not limited to, servicesb® provided by us and intellectual prop
infringement claims made by third parties. In aiddit we have entered into indemnification agreemavith our directors and certain of
officers that will require us, among other thinggsindemnify them against certain liabilities timady arise by reason of their status or servi
directors or officers. Several of these agreemiénisthe time within which an indemnification ctaican be made and the amount of the clain

It is not possible to make a reasonable estimatdhefmaximum potential amount under these indegatifin agreements due to
unique facts and circumstances involved in eacliqodarr agreement. Additionally, we have a limiteidtory of prior indemnification clain
and the payments we have made under such agreehmrgsnot had a material adverse effect on ourtsesti operations, cash flows,
financial position. However, to the extent thatidahdemnification claims arise in the future, fteypayments by us could be significant
could have a material adverse effect on our resdiltgperations or cash flows in a particular peridd of December 31, 2014wve did not hav
any material indemnification claims that were pitaleaor reasonably possible.
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Note 9. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement

The Preferred Stock Rights Agreement (the “Rightsegment”)is intended to protect stockholders from unfaircoercive takeov
practices. In accordance with the Rights Agreemtiret Board of Directors declared a dividend disttion of onepreferred stock purche
right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of aommon stock to stockholders of record on Noven22er2005. Each Right entitle
stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a sHasardSeries A Participating Preferred Stock, palue $0.000Der share, at an exercise p
of $37.00, subject to adjustment. Rights will become exalalis upon the occurrence of certain events, inotydi person or group acquiring
the announcing the intention to acquire beneficimhership of 15%r more of the then outstanding common stock witlloe approval of tf
Board of Directors. Each holder of a Right will leathe right to receive, upon exercise, shares ofneon stock having a value equaltieo
times the purchase price. The Rights will expirdNmvember 22, 2015 or upon the exercise of the ®Rjgthichever occurs earlier.

Common Stock

The holders of common stock are entitled to recdivielends whenever funds are legally available whdn and if declared by the Bo
of Directors. We have never declared or paid divileon our common stock.

Stock-based Compensation Plans

Our 2005 Incentive Plan, as amended, provideshfrgranting of incentive stock options, nstatutory stock options, restricted st
units, market stock units, stock appreciation sghgerformance units and performance shares toogmegd, noremployee directors, a
consultants. Shares granted on or after May 163 2@81an award of restricted stock, restricted stwék market stock units, performance sl
or performance unit ("full value awards") are cathtigainst the authorized share reserve as oneiaexdenths (19/10) shares for every o
(1) share subject to the award, and any sharesleghthat were counted as one and nine-teaglaist the plan reserve will be returned a
same ratio. Full value awards granted prior to Nl&ly2013 were counted against the authorized skasgve as one and one halfi(d) shar
for every one (1) share subject to the award, anydshares canceled that were counted as one antatinegainst the plan reserve will
returned at this same ratio.

As of December 31, 2014, the 2005 Incentive Plarafaended) has a total reserve of 23,283,379 sfaressuance of which,325,13!
shares are available for issuance, plus up to greggte of 5,000,00¢hares that would have been returned to our 208dk $centive Plan i
a result of termination of options on or after Ma&8, 2005. No shares were added to the plan id.2Vk issue new shares from our poc
authorized but unissued shares to satisfy the eecand vesting obligations of our stock-based aaation plans.

Stock-based Compensation

Stockbased compensation is based on the estimateddfiaie wf awards, net of estimated forfeitures, aswbgnized over the requis
service period. Estimated forfeitures are basedhistorical experience at the time of grant and rbayrevised, if necessary, in subseq
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseipsites. The stock-based compensation related tf aur stockbased awards and emplo
stock purchases for the year ended December 34,,22013 and 2012 is as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Cost of net revenues $ 3,61 % 2,565 % 1,84:
Sales and marketing 11,64¢ 7,09z 5,581
General and administrative 17,97¢ 13,26 10,36:
Research and development 6,582 3,51¢ 3,69¢
Total stock-based compensation $ 39,827 $ 26,43t % 21,48:

Stock Options
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Options are granted for terms not to exceed seeansyand generally vest over four years with 25%iing oneyear from the date
grant and 1/48th each month thereafter. Activiy the year ended December 31, 2Q1l4nder the stock option plans are set forth b
(in thousands, except years and per share amounts):

Stock Options
Number of Weighted Weighted Average
Shares Average Remaining Aggregate
Underlying Exercise Contractual Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share (inyears) Value
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 1,321 16.0¢
Granted — —
Exercised (64¢) 16.5¢
Cancelled or expired (5) 18.3:
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 66 $ 15.57 292 % 26,93:
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 66 $ 15.57 292 % 26,93(
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 65 % 15.4: 292 % 26,50¢

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeesents the total ptex intrinsic value (the difference between oursalg stock pric
on the last trading day in 2014 and the exercigm pmultiplied by the number of in-theeney options) that would have been received b
option holders had all option holders exercisedr thetions on December 31, 2014 . Thimount will fluctuate based on the fair market e
of our stock. The total intrinsic value of stogtions exercised for the year ended December 314 2@013 and 2012 was $ 24.5 millipn
$46.7 million and $50.9 million , respectively. etotal fair value of the options vested during year ended December 31, 2012013 an
2012 was $0.7 million , $3.7 million , $5.0 milligmespectively. There were no stock options g 2014, 2013 and 2012.

As of December 31, 2014the total unamortized compensation costs relédedtock options was not material. For the yearee
December 31, 2014 , the total recognized tax effeat exercised options was $1.9 million .

Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of nonvested restricted stock u@ii®SUs”) is based on our closing stock price on the datgrafit. A summary for tt
year endedDecember 31, 2014 , is as follows (in thousandsgpixyears and per share amounts):

Weighted
Remaining Aggregate
Shares Weighted Average Grant Vesting Period Intrinsic
Underlying RSUs Date Fair Value (in years) Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2013 2,042 $ 31.8¢
Granted 981 53.72
Vested and released (72¢) 30.22
Forfeited (173 37.5¢
Nonvested as of December 31, 2014 2,12¢ $ 42.0¢ 133 % 118,72

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table aboyeesents the total ptex intrinsic value (calculated by multiplying oolosing stoc
price on the last trading day of 204 the number of nonvested RSUSs) that would haes beceived by the unit holders had all RSUs
vested and released on December 31, 2014 . Thisir@nwall fluctuate based on the fair market valueoar stock. During 2014 of the
727,679 shares vested and released, 114/d6d shares were withheld for employee minimustugiry tax obligations, resulting in a
issuance of 613,211 shares.

The total intrinsic value of RSUs vested and reddaduring 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $38.9 milli$2Q.3 million and $12.5 million
respectively. The total fair value RSUs vested mythe year ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , abd @@s $22.0 million , $13.2 million
$7.8 million , respectively. As of December 31, 201there was $32.1 millioof total unamortized compensation costs, net ofnagec
forfeitures, related to RSUs, and these costsxgreated to be recognized over a weighted averagedpef 2.2 years.
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On an annual basis, we grant market-performancedbeestricted stock units (“MSUstd our executive officers. Each MSU repres
the right to one share of Aliga'common stock and will be issued through our areér&D05 Incentive Plan. The actual number of MSUih
will be eligible to vest will be based on the penfiance of Aligns stock price relative to the performance of theSAQ Composite Inde
over the vesting period, generally two to threergeaip to 150% of the MSUs initially granted.

The following table summarizes the MSU performaasef December 31, 2014 :

Weighted Average

Number of Shares Remaining Aggregate
Underlying MSUs Weighted Average Grant Vesting Period Intrinsic Value
(in thousands) Date Fair Value (in years) (in thousands)
Nonvested as of December 31, 2013 307 31.9¢
Granted 244 50.4¢
Vested and released (53 22.41
Nonvested as of December 31, 2014 49¢€ 42.0( 138 $ 27,81

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total ptex intrinsic value (calculated by multiplying otlosing stock pric
on the last trading day of 2014 by the number af-wested MSUs) that would have been received by tiiteholders had all MSUs been ves
and released on December 31, 2014 . This amouhflwgtuate based on the fair market value of docls. During 2014 , of the 52,5&hare
vested and released 25,214 shares were withhetdXgrayments, resulting in a net issuance of 27sdfares.

The total intrinsic value of MSUs vested and retebduring 2014 was $2.9 millianThe total fair value MSUs vested during the
ended December 31, 2014 was $1.2 million . As afdbgber 31, 2014 , we expect to recognize $6.2anitif total unamortized compensat
cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to M®Wer a weighted average period of 1.4 years.

The fair value of the MSUs is estimated at the gdate using a Monte Carlo simulation that inclutbegors for market conditions. T
following weighted-average assumptions used irMbate Carlo simulation were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Expected term (in years) 3 3 3
Expected volatility 46.(% 47.(% 54.(%
Risk-free interest rate 0.7% 0.4% 0.4%
Expected dividends — — —
Weighted average fair value per share at grant date $ 50.4¢ $ 35.4¢ % 29.4¢

Total payments to tax authorities for payroll tarelsted to RSUs, including MSUSs, that vested duthe period, were $7.6 millior4.4
million and $2.1 million in 2014 , 2013 and 2012spectively, reflected as a financing activitghie Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2010, our shareholders approved the 2010 I&mp Stock Purchase Plan (the “2010 Purchase Rleggilacing our 20C
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which consists ofexmirtive overlapping twenty-four month offering ipds with four sixmonth purchas
periods in each offering period. Employees purclshsees at 85%f the fair market value of the common stock ategitthe beginning of tl
offering period or the end of the purchase penwdichever is lower. The 2010 Purchase Plan willticmre until terminated by either the Bo
or its administrator. The maximum number of shareailable for issuance under the 2010 Purchasei®13,400,00&hares. During the ye
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we isli&843 , 288,675 , and 336,382 shares, respBctateaverage prices of $29.2821.9¢
and $17.98 , respectively. As of December 31, 201,363,827 shares remain available for futureassa.
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The fair value of the option component of the PasehPlan shares was estimated at the grant datethsi Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumpio

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Employee Stock Purchase Plan:
Expected term (in years) 1.2 1.2 1.2
Expected volatility 38.8% 44.9% 49.7%
Risk-free interest rate 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Expected dividends — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant date $ 1718 $ 11.6¢ % 11.1¢

We recognized stock-based compensation expensg.efrillion , $3.4 million , $2.0 milliorrelated to our employee stock purct
plans for the year ended December 31, 2014 , 2032812, respectively. As of December 31, 2014erehwas $0.8 milliorof total
unamortized compensation costs related to emplsigerk purchases. These costs are expected to egnieed over a weighted average pe
of 0.3 years.

Note 10. Common Stock Repurchase Program

On October 27, 2011, we announced that our Boar®iddctors approved a stock repurchase programupantsto which we mg
repurchase up to $150.0 milliaf common stock. Purchases under the stock repsecprogram were made from time to time in the
market.

During 2012, we repurchased approximately 1.7 amlkhares of common stock at an average price @28per share for an aggreg
purchase price of approximately $47.2 million ,liing commissions. The common stock repurchasdsced additional paiih capital b
approximately $15.4 million and increased accunedadeficit by $31.8 million . During 2013, we replased approximatel®.7 million
shares of our common stock at an average pric84P$per share, including commissions, for an aggregatehase price of approximat
$95.1 million . The common stock retirements reduadditional paid-in capital by approximately $24nflion and increased accumula
deficit by $70.6 million. All repurchased shares were retired. No furthehorization for repurchases remains outstanasnge completed t
repurchases under this program as of December03B, 2

On April 23, 2014, we announced that our Board ak&ors had authorized a stock repurchase prograrsuant to which we m
purchase up to $300.0 million of our common stoekrahe next three years, with $100.0 milliohthat amount authorized to be purch:
over the first twelve months. Any purchases undiés stock repurchase program may be made, from-trtiene, pursuant to open mar
purchases (including pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plgrsjatelynegotiated transactions, accelerated stock repseshélock trades or derivat
contracts or otherwise in accordance with applieddtieral securities laws, including Rule 10b-18hef Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

As part of our $300.0 million stock repurchase pang, weentered into an accelerated share repurchase agmed\SR") with
Goldman, Sachs & Co. on April 28, 2014 to repureh®g0.0 million of our common stock. We paid $7tlion on April 29, 2014 an
received an initial delivery of approximately 1.@limn shares. The ASR was completed on July 29, 2014 anithal delivery of approximate
0.4 million shares. We received a total of appratly 1.4 million shares under the ASR for an agerpurchase price per share of $51,.4€
which all shares were retired. The final numbestudres repurchased was based on our volueighted average stock price during the ter
the transaction, less an agreed upon discount.

During 2014, we repurchased on the open markebappately 0.6 million shares of our common stoclkataverage price of $50.p&!
share, including commissions, for an aggregate hase price of approximately $28.2 milliorAll repurchased shares were retired. A
December 31, 2014, we have $201.8 million remaininder the April 2014 stock repurchase progranwtoth $1.8 millionwas repurchasi
in January 2015. In addition, in January 2015, Board of Directors has authorized the next $100iliom under the program to
repurchased which we anticipate completing withialve months. We expect to finance future stockirelpases with current cash on hand.

Note 11. Employee Benefit Plans
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401(k) Plan

In January 1999, we adopted a defined contributetitement plan under Section 401(k) of the IntefRavenue Code for our U
employees. This plan covers substantially all @i8ployees who meet minimum age and service reqeinesvand allows participants to def
portion of their annual compensation on a pre-tagi$ In 2009, our Board of Directors authorizedaumatch 50% of our employesesalar
deferral contributions up to a 6% of the employesigible compensation effective 2010. We contraliapproximately $2.2 million $2.1
million and $1.9 million to the 401(k) plan duri2§14 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Israeli Funds

Under the Israeli severance fund law, we are reduio make payments to dismissed employees andgegd leaving employment
certain circumstances. The funding is calculatexetiaon the salary of the employee multiplied byrthmber of years of employment as of
applicable balance sheet date. Our Israeli empkoyee entitled to one month’s salary for each yeaemployment, or a proata portiol
thereof. We fund the liability through monthly aesits into funds, and the values of these contidbstare recorded in other lotgrm currer
assets.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the accruedsfiiability was approximately $2.5 million and $2wllion , respectively.

88




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Note 12. Income Taxes
Income before provision for income taxes consistetthe following (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Domestic $ 94,78: % 31,99¢ $ 32,34:
Foreign 95,58¢ 61,14¢ 51,95¢
Total Income before provision for income taxes $ 190,36¢ $ 93,13¢ $ 84,29¢

The provision for income taxes consisted of thiofeing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal
Current $ 156¢ $ 26 3 —
Deferred 37,57( 24,26: 22,38:
39,13¢ 24,28¢ 22,38

State

Current 2,162 1,23t 43¢
Deferred 971 1,15¢ 1,48¢
3,13: 2,39: 1,92¢

Foreign
Current 1,59¢ 3,11% 1,17:
Deferred 66¢ (950 12¢€
2,26¢ 2,16: 1,29¢
Provision for income taxes $ 44537 $ 28,84+ $ 25,60¢

The differences between income taxes using thedédtutory income tax rate of 35% and our effectax rate were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1.€ 2.5 2.4
Impact of differences in foreign tax rates (16.9) (20.9) (20.0
Goodwill Impairment — 15.c 15.2
Stock-based compensation 1.C 0.5 (1.2
Other items not individually material 2.2 (2.9 (1.0

23.4% 31.C% 30.£%

Other items not individually material for the yearded December 31, 2014 includes an out of penoection that resulted in an incre
in the provision for income taxes of $1.8 milliowWe do not believe the out of period adjustmentmaterial to the consolidated finan:
statements for the fiscal year ended December@4 @r to any prior years' consolidated financiatesnents.

As of December 31, 2014U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxesoaiated with the repatriation of undistributeche@as o
foreign subsidiaries were not provided for on a alative total of $260.9 million We intend to reinvest these earnings indefinitalyui
foreign subsidiaries. If these earnings were diated in the form of dividends or otherwise, othié shares of the relevant foreign subsidi
were sold or otherwise transferred, we would bgesiiio additional U.S. income taxes and foreigthivdlding taxes, net of related foreign
credits. Determination of the amount of unrecogmideferred income tax liability related to theseneays is not practicable.
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In June 2009, the Costa Rica Ministry of Foreigade, an agency of the Government of Costa Ricatepaa twelveyear extension
certain tax incentives, which were previously geahin 2002. The incentive tax rates will expirevarious years beginning in 201TUnde
these incentives, all of the income in Costa Rigang) these twelve year incentive periods is sulffeceduced rates of Costa Rica income
In order to receive the benefit of the incentivee, must hire specified numbers of employees andtiaiai minimum levels of fixed as:
investment in Costa Rica. If we do not fulfill tleesonditions for any reason, our incentive coufgbéaand our income in Costa Rica woul
subject to taxation at higher rates, which couldeha negative impact on our operating results. Cbsta Rica corporate income tax rate
would apply, absent the incentives, is 30% for 202 a result of these incentives, income taxeeeweduced by $32.5 million $27.%
million , and $21.8 million in 2014 , 2013 , and120, respectively. The benefit of the tax holidaydiluted net income per share was $0.4C
$0.34 , and $0.26 in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , reiedet

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the significaniponents of our deferred tax assets and liaslitiere (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards $ 33,20 % 39,97¢
Credit carryforwards 1,44¢ 9,36:
Reserves and accruals 32,88¢ 26,72¢
Translation gains 637 48
Stock-based compensation 11,96¢ 9,10(
80,131 85,21°

Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expenses 70¢ 557
Depreciation and amortization 6,87¢ 5,32(
7,58 5,87
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 72,55( 79,34(
Valuation allowance (32,499 (35,109
Net deferred tax assets $ 40,05: % 44,23

We assess the likelihood that we will be able tize our deferred tax assets quarterly. We consii@vailable evidence, both posit
and negative, including historical levels of incqnegpectations and risks associated with estimatdsiture taxable income and ongo
prudent and feasible tax planning strategies iessisg the need for a valuation allowance. If in@re likely than not that we do not expec
realize our deferred tax assets, we will increasepoovision for income taxes by recording a valragllowance against the deferred tax a:
that we estimate will not ultimately be realizalbfs. of December 31, 2014, we believed, exceptteritems noted in the subsequent parag
that it was more likely than not that the amoundeferred tax assets recorded on the balance wiikle realized.

The $32.5 million total valuation allowance prowidagainst our deferred tax assets at Decembei034,, 2elates primarily to foreign r
operating loss and capital loss carryforwards. &t@&@nber 31, 2014, the valuation allowance decrebge net $2.6 million , due to$i.¢
million decrease related to foreign net operatimgs|carryforwards, and a decrease of $0.8 millioe to the release of valuation allowe
related to Japan and China deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2014 we had fully utilized net operating loss carryfards for federal purposes and have net operatisg
carryforwards of $37.3 milliofior California state tax purposes. If not utilizédese carryforwards will begin to expire in 2008 €alifornie
purposes. In addition, we had foreign net opegatoss carryforwards of approximately $125.5 millipwhich, if not utilized will expir
beginning in 2017.

Our net operating loss carryforwards associatel thié exercise of employee stock options totaledigthillion as olDecember 31, 20:
for California state tax purposes, which was notuded in our deferred tax assets. The reductiomaime taxes payable by the tax ben
associated with the exercise of employee stoclooptduring the fiscal year, and utilization of pperating loss carryover applicable to s
options were approximately $21.4 million , $27.1liom , and $17.2 million in

90




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The benefidieable to stock options were credited directlystockholdersequity when realized. V
follow the tax law ordering method to determine whexcess tax benefits have been realized and @neidy the direct impacts of awa
when calculating the amount of windfalls or shdlsfa

At December 31, 2014, we have California researellit carryforwards of approximately $3.8 milliavhich can be carried forwe
indefinitely.

In the event of a change in ownership, as defimettufederal and state tax laws, our net operdtisg)and tax credit carryforwards n
be subject to annual limitations. The annual litittas may result in the expiration of the net ofiatploss and tax credit carryforwards be
utilization.

The changes in the balance of gross unrecognizdoktaefits, which exclude interest and penaltiesfifcal year ended December 31,
2014, 2013, and 2012, is as follows (in thous&nd

Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2011 $ 15,47
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 5,081
Tax positions related to prior year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 8C
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2012 20,63¢
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 6,11(
Tax positions related to prior year:
Decreases for uncertain tax positions (82)
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2013 26,66¢
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 6,65¢
Tax positions related to prior year:
Decreases for uncertain tax positions (260)
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2014 $ 33,06°

We account for uncertain tax positions pursuantuthoritative guidance based on a tstep approach to recognize and me:
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to bertak a tax return. We first determine whethes itriore likely than not that a tax position
be sustained upon audit based on its technicatsnéra tax position meets the more-likely-thaot-recognition threshold it is then measure
determine the amount of benefit to recognize infthancial statements. The tax position is measa®the largest amount of benefit th:
more than 50 percent likely to be realized uponmate settlement. We adjust our uncertain tax wostdue to changing facts ¢
circumstances, such as the closing of a tax aoditefinement of estimates due to new informatibo.the extent the final outcome of th
matters is different than the amounts recordedy sliiferences will impact our tax provision in o@pnsolidated Statements of Operatior
the period in which such determination is made.

During fiscal year 2014 , the amount of gross uogedzed tax benefits increased by $6.4 milliofhe total amount of unrecognized
benefits was $33.1 million as of December 31, 20B of which would impact our effective tax raferecognized. We have electec
recognize interest and penalties related to unrdzed tax benefits as a component of income taxesg@. The penalties and interest accru
of December 31, 2014 and 204& immaterial. We do not expect any significarangdes to the amount of unrecognized tax benefitsmwihe
next twelve months.

We file U.S. federal, U.S. state, and ndrs. tax returns. Our major tax jurisdictions ar& Ufederal and the State of California. For
federal and state tax returns, we are no longgesuto tax examinations for years before 2000.hVi&w exceptions, we are no longer sut
to examination by foreign tax authorities for yelaesore 2007.

Note 13. Net Income per Share
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Basic net income per share is computed using thightesl average number of shares of common stocktamding during tf
period. Diluted net income per share is computéoguthe weighted average number of shares of constaunk, adjusted for any dilutive effi
of potential common stock. Potential common stadknputed using the treasury stock method, inclstiesk options, RSUs, MSUs and
ESPP.

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted net income per share attributebtsmmon stock (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Numerator:
Net income $ 145,83. $ 64,29t $ 58,69:
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 80,75¢ 80,55! 80,52¢
Dilutive effect of potential common stock 1,52¢ 2,03¢ 2,511
Total shares, diluted 82,28: 82,58¢ 83,04(
Net income per share, basic $ 1.81 % 0.8C $ 0.7¢
Net income per share, diluted $ 177 ¢ 0.7¢ % 0.71

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 andl 2B antidilutive effect on net income per share from stopkions, RSUs, MSL
and our employee stock purchase plan were not iakter

Note 14. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The supplemental cash flow information consisttheffollowing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Taxes paid $ 5,666 $ 412 $ 2,82t
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Fixed assets acquired with accounts payable ouaddiabilities $ 4,89¢ $ 2,30¢ $ 94(
Unclaimed merger consideration liability $ —  $ —  $ 1,57¢

Note 15. Segments and Geographical Information
Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components ehtmprise for which separate financial informatieravailable that is evalual
regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker YOM”), or decisionmaking group, in deciding how to allocate resouraed in assessil
performance. Our CODM is our Chief Executive OfficeWe report segment information based on the g@mant approach. T
management approach designates the internal negansed by CODM for decision making and performaassessment as the basis
determining our reportable segments. The performameasures of our reportable segments includesmehues and gross profit.

We have grouped our operations into treportable segments which are also our reportirits:.uGlear Aligner segment and Scar
segment.

. Our Clear Aligner segment consists of our Invisaligystem which includes Invisalign Full, Exprest&LiTeen, Assist, Vive
Retainers, along with our training and ancillarggucts for treating malocclusion.
. Our Scanner segment consists of intra-oral sognsystems and additional services available \whith intraeral scanners th

provide digital alternatives to the traditional tamdels. This segment includes our iTero scaandrOrthoCAD services.
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These reportable operating segments are basedvwlroCODM views and evaluates our operations dbageallocation of resource

The following information relates to these segmémshousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

Net Revenues 2014 2013 2012
Clear Aligner
Invisalign Full Products $ 585,72. $ 497,500 $ 434,43.
Invisalign Express Products 80,59¢ 72,41¢ 51,48t¢
Invisalign non-case revenues 46,23( 44,72« 30,66:
Scanner
Scanners and Services 49,10« 45,557 43,46(
Total net revenues $ 761,65. $ 660,20t $ 560,04:
Gross Profit
Clear Aligner $ 562,88¢ $ 484,83" $ 405,97(
Scanners and Services 15,55¢ 13,27: 10,41¢
Total gross profit $ 578,44. $ 498,10t $ 416,38t
Geographical Information
Net revenues and tangible long-lived assets asepted below by geographic area (in thousands):
For the Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Net revenues®:
United States $ 532,56¢ $ 491,41 % 427,92
the Netherlands 156,81 122,49 105,94.
Other international 72,26 46,30: 26,17(
Total net revenues $ 761,65. $ 660,20t $ 560,04:
1 Net revenues are attributed to countries basedeatibn of where revenue is recogni:
As of December 31,
2014 2013
Long-lived assets$:
United States $ 76,51 $ 61,43¢
Mexico 6,22¢ 6,291
the Netherlands 874 1,63(
Other international 6,511 6,38:
Total long-lived assets $ 90,12t % 75,74

2 Longdived assets are attributed to countries basechtity ¢hat owns the asse
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participationoof management, including our Chief Executive €&ffiand our Chief Financ
Officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness ofddsign and operation of our disclosure controts@mocedures (as defined in Rules 13ge
and 15d15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon thaluetian, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chi€inancial Officer hav
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiare effective as of December 31, 26d4rovide reasonable assurance that inform
required to be disclosed by us in the reports thatfile or submit under the Exchange Act is accuatad and communicated to
management, including our Chief Executive Officed @ur Chief Financial Officer, as appropriateaiow timely decisions regarding requi
disclosure, and that such information is recorgedcessed, summarized and reported within the ger@®ds specified in the Securities
Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Management's annual report on internal control ovéinancial reporting.
See “Report of Management on Internal Control dvieancial Reporting” of this Annual Report on Fot®+K.

Changes in internal control over financial reportin

There have been no changes in our internal cowel financial reporting during the quarter endegc@®nber 31, 201#hat haw
materially affected or are reasonably likely to em&ily affect, our internal control over financiaporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

Certain information required by Part Il is omitté@m this Form 1K because we intend to file a definitive Proxy &taént for oL
2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxyt&taent”)not later than 120 days after the end of the figear covered by this Annt
Report on Form 10-K, and certain information tarbeuded therein is incorporated herein by refeeenc

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 401 of Regulati®# concerning our directors is incorporated by refee to the Proxy Statem
under the section captioned “Election of Directbie information required by Item 401 of Regulati®K concerning our executive office
is set forth inltem 1—"Business” of this Annual Report on FormKO- The information required by Item 405 of ReguatSK is
incorporated by reference to the section entiti&kction 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Commpdie” contained in the Pro;
Statement. The information required by Item 40F)df Regulation S is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statdroeder the sectic
entitled “Corporate Governance—Board of Director€&8mmittee Meetings—Audit Committee”.

Code of Ethics
We have a code of ethics that applies to all of @uployees, including our principal executive ddficprincipal financial officer ar

principal accounting officer. This code of ethisposted on our Internet website. The Interneress for our website isww.aligntech.com
and the code of ethics may be found on the “CotpdBovernance” section of our “Investor Relationgbpage.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementenritem 5.05 of Form & regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a {@on of
this code of ethics by posting such informationcom website, at the address and location specifteale, or as otherwise required by
NASDAQ Global Market

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 402 of Regulat®HK is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statgno@der the section captior
“Executive CompensationThe information required by Items 407(e)(4) andHk)s incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statet unde
the section captioned “Corporate Governance—CongtiemsCommittee Interlocks” and “Compensation Cotteni Report,” respectively.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 403 of Regulat®HK is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statgno@der the section captior
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerslddanagement.”

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Dedmer 31, 2014bout our common stock that may be issued uporexkeecise ¢
options and rights granted to employees, consusltantmembers of our Board of Directors under albting equity compensation pla
including the 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, the Enygl® Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"), the 2001 Stamntive Plan and the 2005 Incen
Plan, each as amended, and certain individual geraents. Please sé&wte 10 “Stockholders’ Equity'in the Notes to our Consolidal
Financial Statemenifor description of equity compensation plans.
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Number of securities

Number of securities
remaining available for

to be issued upon exercise Weighted average future issuance under
of outstanding options exercise price of equity compensation plans
and restricted stock outstanding (excluding securities

Plan Category units(a) options(b) reflected in column(a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 3,28851 ' % 15.4¢ 8,688,95 23
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders — — —
Total 3,288,51. $ 15.4: 8,688,95

! Includes 2,123,351 restricted stock units, inclgd#®7,500 markeperformance based restricted stock units at tavgeith have a

exercise price of zero.

2 Includes 1,363,827 shares available for issuanderunur ESPP. We are unable to ascertain with figigcthe number of securities
be issued upon exercise of outstanding rightsenthighted average exercise price of outstandgiggiunder the ESPP.

3 Excludes 418,187 of potentially issuable MSUs iffpenance targets are achieved at maximum pz

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 404 and Item 407Regulation K is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statgnumder th
sections captioned “Certain Relationships and Rdl&arty Transactions” and “Corporate Governanceredidr Independence,” respectively.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9(e) of ScheduWé lof the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, t®iiporated by reference to
Proxy Statement under the section captioned “Ratifin of Appointment of Independent Registeredliukccountants.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statemer
1. Consolidated Financial Stateme

The following documents are filed as part of thisal Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

Consolidated Statement of Operations for the yedeé December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomthtoyear ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 242013

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equitytii@ryear ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yede@ December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The following financial statement schedulelsdf as part of this Annual Report on Form KO-

Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts anesBrves

58
59
60
61
62
63
64

All other schedules have been omitted as they atresguired, not applicable, or the required infation is otherwise included.

SCHEDULE II: VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions
(reductions) Reclass
Balance at to Costs Charged to
Beginning and Write Other Balance at
of Period Expenses offs Accounts® Accounts End of Period
(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
returns:
Year ended December 31, 2012 $ 1,50 $ 4,417 % (2,735 $ — 8 (15 $ 3,167
Year ended December 31, 2013 $ 3,167 $ 2,11¢ % (3,550 $ — 3 — 3 1,73¢
Year ended December 31, 2014 $ 1,73 % 6,56 $ (6,739 $ — 8 — 3 1,56:
Valuation Allowance for deferred tax
assets:
Year ended December 31, 2012 $ 20,22¢  $ 8,507 $ (1,675 $ — 3 — 3 27,05¢
Year ended December 31, 2013 $ 27,05¢ $ 9,80¢ $ (1,759 $ — 3 — 35,10¢
Year ended December 31, 2014 $ 35,10¢ $ 1,799 $ 817 $ — 8 — 3 32,49¢
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(b)

The following Exhibits are included in this Amal Report on Form 1K:

Exhibit

Number

3.1

3.2

3.8

4.1

4.2

10.1t

10.2t
10.3t
10.4
10.5t
10.61

10.7%

10.8%

10.9f

10.10t

10.11¢t

10.12t

10.13

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioregistrant

Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant

Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferenaed Privileges of
Series A Participating Preferred Stock registrant

Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated OctoberePyden the
registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

Registrant’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

Form of option agreement under Align’s 2001 Staotehtive Plan
Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Align’s 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Form of Indemnification Agreement by andasstn registrant and
its Board of Directors and its executive officers

Amended and restated 2005 Incentive Plan (as ardevidg 19,
2011

Form of restricted stock unit award agredmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan (General Form; Officer Fornr.e@tor Form)

Form of option award agreement under registrar@i@2Ancentive
Plan

Form of restricted stock unit award agregmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M. Prescott

Form of restricted stock unit award agreement ammemd under
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M.de ot

Amended and Restated Employment Agreenated dNovember 8,
2012 between Thomas M. Prescott and registrant

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreemeated
into by and between registrant and each of exeeuwtificer (other
than CEO)

Credit Agreement dated March 22, 2013 beatwegistrant and
Wells Fargo National Association
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Form S-1, as 12/28/2000
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No. 333-49932

mRBK
Form 8-K

nF6k1, as
amended (File
No. 333-49932)

Form 8-K

F8¢n
as amended
(File
No. 333-49932)
Form 10-Q
Form S-8
Form 8-K

Form S-1 as
amended (File
No. 333-49932)

Form 8-K

Form 10-Q
Form 10-Q

Fof¥K1
Form 10-K

mHAG-Q

Form 10-Q

Form 8-K

2/29/2012

10/27/2005

1/17/2001

10/27/2005

12/28/2000

11/5/2004

2/5/2001
5/25/2010
1/17/2001
5/25/2010

11/5/2007

8/4/2005

3/12/2007

3/12/2007

5/8/2008

5/8/2008

3/27/2013
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3.2
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10.2
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10.1C
10.4
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10.14

10.15
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10.19tt
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10.22t

10.23%
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10.25
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10.27
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23.1
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31.2
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101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF

Description Form Date

Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003 betweenGKPMDES 5/13/2003
(Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A. and regigtr Form 10-Q

Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Augaebetween 6/26/2008
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.Al Atign
dated June 24, 2008 Form 8-K

Lease Agreement between Align and Carr N.P. Prigseit.L.C. 1/29/2010
dated January 26, 2010 Form 8-K

Settlement Agreement dated as of Augus2a®9 between Align 2/24/2010
Technology, Inc. and Ormco Corporation Form 10-Q/A
Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of the 16thfdaygust by 11/5/2009
and between Align Technology, Inc. and Danaher @@ion Form 10-Q

Joint Development, Marketing and Sales@grent entered in as of 2/24/2010
August 16, 2009 by and between Align Technologg, &nd Ormco

Corporation Form 10-Q/A

Summary of 2013 Incentive Awards for Named Exeautfficers. Form 8-K 2/8/2014
Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (office Form 8-K 2/23/2011
Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (CEO) Form 8-K 2/23/2011
Description of Executive Officer Incenti®an Form 8-K 2/23/2011
Agreement of Plan Merger between Registrant ancetad 4/1/2011
Holdings, Inc. amongst other dated March 29, 2011 Form 8-K

Credit Agreement dated March 22, 2013 between Aligohnology 3/27/2013
Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association rmr@-K
Transition Agreement dated March 4, 2013 betweegnAl 5/3/2013
Technology, Inc. and Kenneth B. Arola Form 10-Q

Offer Letter dated June 12, 2013 betweegrAliechnology, Inc. 7/18/2013
and David L. White Form 8-K

Employment Agreement between Align Technology, brd David 8/5/2013
L. White Form 8-K

Fixed Dollar Accelerated Repurchase Traimaétgreement dated 7/31/2014
April 28, 2014 between Goldman, Sachs & Co. anistemt Form 10-Q

Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Int#g# Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuaotExchange Act
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursu&wction 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003

Certifications of Chief Financial Officer puant to Exchange Act
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursu&sction 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnts$o
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
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Number
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10.36

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.1
10.2
ltem 5.02
10.1

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.29

Filed

herewith




Exhibit

Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Dotent *
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim *
T Management contract or compensatory plan ongement filed as an Exhibit to this form pursuanitéms 14(a) and 14(c) of
Form 10-K.
tt Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pamsto a request for confidential treatment. Thefidential portions have been filed
with the SEC.

100




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized, on February 26, 2015 .

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT
Thomas M. Prescott

President and Chief Executive Officer

Know All Men By These Presents, that each persoasetsignature appears below constitutes and agpbidmas M. Prescott, his
her attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitatiéor him or her in any and all capacities, tansgny amendments to this Report on FornK10-
and to file the same, with exhibits thereto andepttiocuments in connection therewith, with the $i&ea and Exchange Commission, hel
ratifying and confirming all that each of said at®ys-infact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, mayr cause to be done by virtue her

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on bet
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
IS/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal February 26, 2015

Thomas M. Prescott Executive Officer)

/S/ DAVID LWHITE Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officand February 26, 2015
Principal Accounting Officer)

David L. White

IS/ JOSEPH LACOB Director February 26, 2015

Joseph Lacob

IS/ C. RAYMOND LARKIN Director February 26, 2015

C. Raymond Larkin

/S GEORGE J. MORROW Director February 26, 2015

George J. Morrow

IS/ DAVID C. NAGEL Director February 26, 2015
David C. Nagel
/SI ANDREA L. SAIA _ Director February 26, 2015

Andrea L. Saia

IS/ GREG J. SANTORA Director February 26, 2015

Greg J. Santora

ICT \AMAPPEA © TIHIAL D Director February 261 201



Warren S. Thaler
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Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioregistrant

Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant

Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferenaed Privileges of
Series A Participating Preferred Stock registrant

Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated OctoberePvden the
registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

Registrant’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

Form of option agreement under Align’s 2001 Stautehtive Plan
Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Align’s 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Form of Indemnification Agreement by andasstn registrant and
its Board of Directors and its executive officers

Amended and restated 2005 Incentive Plan (as ardevidg 19,
2011

Form of restricted stock unit award agredmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan (General Form; Officer Fornr.e@tor Form)

Form of option award agreement under registrar@@2Ancentive
Plan

Form of restricted stock unit award agredmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M. Prescott

Form of restricted stock unit award agreement ammemd under
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M.de ot

Amended and Restated Employment Agreenadet dNovember 8,
2012 between Thomas M. Prescott and registrant

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreemeated
into by and between registrant and each of exeeuwtificer (other
than CEO)

Credit Agreement dated March 22, 2013 beatwegistrant and
Wells Fargo National Association

Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003 betweenqKPNDES
(Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A. and regrgtr
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(File
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8/4/2005
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Description Form Date

Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Aggaebetween 6/26/2008
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.Al Afign
dated June 24, 2008 Form 8-K

Lease Agreement between Align and Carr N.P. Prigsert.L.C. 1/29/2010
dated January 26, 2010 Form 8-K

Settlement Agreement dated as of Augus2a®9 between Align 2/24/2010
Technology, Inc. and Ormco Corporation Form 10-Q/A

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of the 16thfdaygust by 11/5/2009
and between Align Technology, Inc. and Danaher G@fon Form 10-Q

Joint Development, Marketing and Sales@grent entered in as of 2/24/2010
August 16, 2009 by and between Align Technologg, &nd Ormco

Corporation Form 10-Q/A

Summary of 2013 Incentive Awards for Named Exeauificers. Form 8-K 2/8/2014
Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (office Form 8-K 2/23/2011
Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (CEO) Form 8-K 2/23/2011
Description of Executive Officer Incentikan Form 8-K 2/23/2011
Agreement of Plan Merger between Registrant anctad 4/1/2011
Holdings, Inc. amongst other dated March 29, 2011 Form 8-K

Credit Agreement dated March 22, 2013 between Aligohnology 3/27/2013
Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association rmr@-K
Transition Agreement dated March 4, 2013 betweegnAl 5/3/2013
Technology, Inc. and Kenneth B. Arola Form 10-Q

Offer Letter dated June 12, 2013 betweegrAliechnology, Inc. 7/18/2013
and David L. White Form 8-K

Employment Agreement between Align Technology, brad David 8/5/2013
L. White Form 8-K

Fixed Dollar Accelerated Repurchase Traimaétgreement dated 7/31/2014
April 28, 2014 between Goldman, Sachs & Co. anistemt Form 10-Q

Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Intigr# Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuaotExchange Act
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted purtu&@wection 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003

Certifications of Chief Financial Officer guant to Exchange Act
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursu&wction 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipat$o
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Dotent
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101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim *
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Form 10-K.
tt Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pamsto a request for confidential treatment. Thefidential portions have been filed
with the SEC.
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc.

The registrant’s principal subsidiaries as of Delsen81, 2014 , are as follows:

Entity

Align Technology De Costa Rica, SRL, Costa Rica
Align Technology, B.V., the Netherlands

Aligntech de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Cadent, Inc.

Cadent, Ltd.

Invisalign Australia Pty Ltd




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B34477, No. 333-143319, No. 333
161054, No. 333-82874, No. 333-116912, No. 333-885H0. 333-168548, No. 333-176134 and No. 338351) of Align Technology, In
of our report dated February 26, 2015, relatintheofinancial statements, financial statement saleeénd the effectiveness of internal cor
over financial reporting, which appears in thismdr0-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 26, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Align Technology, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officers and | are responsilie éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteald procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtites defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision to ensure that material informatiomtiat to the registrant, including its consolidasedsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this annual reportésny prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atamuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtids report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetiis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theistegnt's internal control over financial reporting thatcomred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#e the design or operation of internal controkmofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 26, 2015

/s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
I, David L. White, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornkKl®F Align Technology, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officers and | are responsilie éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteald procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtites defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureawused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual retpsrbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtihis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theistegnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officers and | are responsilie déstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtites defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#e the design or operation of internal controkmofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 26, 2015

/s/ DAVID L. WHITE

David L. White
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

906 Certification

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2003

I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify, pursuant to 18 B.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectiorBf: Sarbane®xley Act of 200z
that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc. &orm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31142fully complies with th
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the StéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationtedared in this Form 18 fairly present

in all material respects the financial conditiord aasults of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT
Date: February 26, 2015 Name: Thomas M. Prescott
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

I, David L. White, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.Gac&ion 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9iteobarbane®xley Act of 2003, thi
the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc. on Fot@K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2ol complies with the requirements
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangedk 1934 and that information contained in thagrg 10K fairly presents in all materi

respects the financial condition and results ofrafens of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /s/ DAVID L. WHITE
Name: David L White
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 26, 2015



